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China XLX Culture
A BN 3B

We attribute our achievements and breakthroughs

to our dedicated team at China XLX. The team is
committed to uphold the vision with integrity, discipline
and strong commitment.
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CHINA XLX DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY:

Adhere to the enhanced development direction of cleaner chemical
process of coal, and maintain the privileges and leading status in the
chemical fertiliser industry. Meanwhile appropriately develop new
energy and new chemical material, establishing the ‘Fertiliser as base,
fertiliser and chemical side by side’development plan.
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Company Profile

A EER
Chinese high-efficiency fertilizer advocator . PRSHIEESESE
State-level green factory . B R A4k 2 TR
Awarded “Standard Enterprise for Synthetic Ammonia Efficiency - EENFESTRARFEETE
Leaders’ by the China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Federation MegmE  EHERNERER
for nine consecutive years ¥
New/High Tech Enterprise in the PRC (enjoying preferential income . PRI ST R (E215% MER
tax rate of 15%) PRSI EK)
First state-level nitrogen fertiliser research center and largest -+ B AR R R R E R L2 E
agriculture service center in the PRC BREERBH O
First producer mastering the controlled release urea production - PEE-REREXR=ZEEZF
patented technology in the PRC Rt EEDZE
All our production facilities adopt new coal gasification technology . HERE 2 PERAN KRR

Strategic geographical location

BRI IR 5 D
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Continuously improving corporate \/ Obyi leadershi
governance and internal supervision 8 2 &ngg?%tﬁiﬂaﬂ%s P
—~ NN > I =S - 7

T e E M B EE RN AR AR

Stable, experienced

management team and “Low-cost + differentiation”
highly loyal employees 3 production strategy
BEAERBTNEREENE 7 MERCA + Z AL | EmBig
BERESELHET

Strong and healthy 6 4 Strong brand and
operating cash flow sales network
o8 SN R A A8 & SRR R 8 &
WEm R
S

Leading enterprise in the industry

ELEG
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China XLX was incorporated with limited liability on 17 July 2006 in
Singapore under the Companies Act, with the Group's registered office at 80
Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898. The Group's headquarters and
principal place of business is located in Xinxiang Economic Development
Zone, Henan Province, Taxihe Industrial Park, Baojiadian Town, Manas
County, Changji Prefecture, Xinjiang Province, and Jishan Industrial Zone,
Jiujiang City, Jiangxi Province in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group is principally engaged in developing, manufacturing,
and selling of related differentiated products such as urea, compound
fertiliser, methanol, dimethyl ether, melamine, furfuryl alcohol, furfural,
2-methylfuran and pharmaceutical intermediates. At present, the Group
owns 4 urea production lines and 18 compound fertiliser production lines,
the production capacities of each product are at the top of the list in the
industry. China XLX has been listed on the Main Board of the SEHK since 8
December 2009 with stock code “1866'".

FENELER-ZZEZENFELATLEH
IR IR T NI R DA F R s A 2 2
BRAR - AEE M I EELRS0
Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898 °
AREBRETMEZLEMBUNPEAR
HANE ([RE ) TR ERER - 3
EEEM%%%%@%E%ﬁﬁﬂlil

uu ’ /Iﬁﬂ/lﬁ%m:[%.& $$@$g
WEREZ BAE- - FEE - —Fl - =%

5% WREE - PR - 2-FR ALK - B &

BRESHEEZRCEMNITE £ERH
S BRIBAAMGRRKELER 181686

EAER  SEREMHBYIITERNS -
EP.’DL’P)Q—? ?j-l-rfﬁ+ H}\Elﬁ_%_t
B X P EARENE ET - B 5% [1866] ©

EOED —F - TFEH

3




Corporate Information
NEEHR

BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LIU Xingxu (Chairman of the Board)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ONG Kian Guan
LI Shengxiao
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BOARD COMMITTEES
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ONG Wei Jin
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HHELELLL L

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

MA Tongsheng

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

WONG Wing Wang Paul

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES UNDER LISTING RULES

YAN Yunhua
LEUNG Kwan Wai

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

LEUNG Kwan Wai
CHEOK Hui Yee

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP

One Raffles Quay

North Tower, Level 18
Singapore, 048583
Partner-in-charge: LEE Lai Hiang

LEGAL ADVISORS

Herbert Smith Freehills (Hong Kong)
Hiways Law Firm (China)
Shook Lin & Bok LLP (Singapore)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Export-Import Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Bank of China

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China
Bank of Communications

China Minsheng Bank

HSBC

REGISTERED OFFICE

80 Robinson Road
#02-00, Singapore 068898
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Corporate Information
NEEHR

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
PRC

Xinxiang Economic Development Zone
Henan Province
PRC 453731

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Code: 1866

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.chinaxlx.com.hk
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Financial Highlights

MEBE
RESULTS PERFORMANCE ¥ERR
2019 2020 Change (%)
(RMB million) (AREBRET) —E-NEFE ZECBFE 5] b S 48 (%)
Revenue WA 8,928 10,445 17
Cost of sales SHERK AN (6,987) 8,230 1738
Gross profit eyl 1,941 2,215 14
Profit before tax M Fi BT &R 526 631 20
Income tax expense Fr{SHE 2 (112) 107 4
Net profit el 414 524 27
Basic and diluted earnings per share AR EEAR K #EE 2 F 27.01 29.67 10
(RMB cents) (AR¥ED)
Dividend per share (RMB cents) BRIES (ARES) 8 10 25
I
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT DEEmBA

30% 32%
FY2020 FY2019
—ECEYMERFE “E-NMHFE
@ Urea @ Compound Fertiliser DME and Methanol @ Furfuryl Alcohol
fR& wahe — B AR R A
® AdBlue ® Melamine © Other
BERAKREAR =FER Hity
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| Major Events in 2020
“ECEFEARER

18 JANUARY

China XLX donated money and supplies to help prevent
and control the pandemic

IS SRl e | |

CCTV's "Xinwen Lianbo” praised Xinlianxin Group, “This
chemical fertiliser enterprise is taking actions in fighting
the pandemic and protecting spring ploughing!”
RBCGREBHE BB OB OEE « [BORIE - REH - ER
feeexars ! | B

3 A MARCH

The commencement ceremony of the port project of
Jiujiang Pengcheng Port Affairs Co, Ltd. (LT Z#iB %4
PR A]) were held

nirgmssaRAREEEsAstrees H

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

China XLX's first melamine container train headed to
Moscow

dao=Bapesany azans

5A may

Qingli Energy’s dimethyl furan project (Phase )
(production capacity of 3,000 tons/year) was put into
operation

T EEIR 2- FEKEE B — 5 (E 423000 M,/ F) B

wz B

China XLX was honored as “Xinxiang Five-star Industrial
Enterprise in 2019”

AROEDRE [FHH2019FERERTEELE] -

Hydrogenpower Energy, a subsidiary of China XLX,
completed the acquisition of 51 % equity interests in

Xinxiang Ruicheng Technology Co, Ltd

FRELLE L TFA BIE ) BETR TEAK S 3 48 T i R AR
DBRATS1%HIBIEIREE

73 Uy

The flood fighting and rescue team of Jiujiang XLX fought
against the flood in Pengze County in the frontline

nrbEbtanrerasezEnl— 5 i

Xinlianxin Group was awarded “2019 Advanced Unit
for Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction in
Nitrogen Fertilizer and Methanol Industry (2019 FE A&
BB - BT S ERAE IR Se s AL )

DO E B S [2019F F RN - FEITRE BRI B
LAY s |




9 A SEPTEMBER

China XLX was awarded the “Efficiency Leaders” in
the petroleum and chemical industry for the ninth
consecutive time

DEOERAE AR EER R T MnEns ) B

China XLX was elected as the senior vice chairman of
China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association; Liu Xingxu,
the Chairman, was elected as the senior vice chairman
SELEEPEALTIEGESREEEREN  EER
AmEeEsaEss BB

Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group ‘s industry upgrading
project was successfully put into operation

DELMcBRT 2 EmEEAguE R REsy B

Heli Energy (R 1188 signed a framework agreement
in Fushan Town, Ningyang County, Shandong Province to
ascertain the Ningyang Project
RAANERRIVREGBIKILEBRTIER B - BEER
HE

Ruicheng Tech's acetonitrile Phase Il project has officially
commenced

sang—mzmrms

Xinlianxin Group was successfully elected as the “Leading
Enterprise regarding Parts and Components in China
Internal Combustion Engine Industry (f1 B A1 T Z
BB

BRI EEP BRI TR R R AR

11 B NOVEMBER

The “Industrial Upgrading Project” of Xinlianxin Group
won the “2020 National Quality Engineering Award of
Chemical Industry (2020 4 /& 2 Bl 2 T #4885 Ti248)
DELEE [EXARER | KB 2 _2FE2RLE
THELTIEE]

Qingli Energy received the New High Tech Enterprise
Award

ansrmEanrmerzs Bl

Qingli Energy’s dimethyl furan project (Phase I1)
(production capacity of 3,000 tons/year) was put into
operation

TARLR2-FEKBIER — 8 (E/E3000M,F ) B

wz [

“Xinxiang Yuyuan Huineng Co,, Ltd* (GFr48m EIRERE
BFRA7R])" the holding subsidiary of Heli Energy Co.,
Ltd* (RTIREIREBRZA A)), passed the 2020 New High
Technology registration

RANERERATIERF AR (BT ERELERDA ]
@38 2020 F e R (B

FEDED —T_TFFR
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

LIU Xingxu %I %8
Chairman of the Board

EERLE

In 2020, the Group continued to promote transformation and development,
and according to the strategic guiding idea of “low-cost and differentiation”
as base, the Group eliminated obsolete production capacity and achieved
technology upgrading. With Jiujiang Project being put into operation,
forming a strategic layout of “strong presence across the nation with our
three major production bases’, the Group’s scale, strengths and influence in
the industry have therefore further enhanced.

The Group continued to optimize its capital structure and received
strategic investment of approximately RMB200 million from Central SOEs
Industrial Investment Fund for Poor Area Co,, Ltd,, thus further optimized
the Company’s financial structure and supported the Company’s rapid
development. Meanwhile, the Group has achieved an integrated circular
economy development model on furfural, furfuryl alcohol, biomass power
generation and pharmaceutical intermediates in the field of fine chemicals,
which has become the Company’s new business growth point.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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Dear Shareholders,

| would like to express my gratitude to you for supporting and having confidence in

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. ("China XLX" or “the Company’, together with its subsidiaries, is
collectively referred to as “the Group”). On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report
to the shareholders of the Company the audited consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020, while introducing the vision

and planning of the Group for the following year.

EAIRCR

R AR — B A RS R B 0@ OB RE AR A R) ([ R B OED | 3 [ AN ARF] ]
BT ARl AER ) MIHNET  RARRRARAIEES mmm
RABSMUBREREAEEHE T - TF+ - A=+ —BH It HFENLE
ZEIEHRE  RRNTAAEBETN —TENFESMRE

RESULT HIGHLIGHTS

Realized revenue of approximately RMB10,445 million, an increase of
17% year-on-year.

Net profit of the Group was approximately RMB524 million,
representing an increase of 27% year-on-year.

Overall gross profit margin decreased by 1 percentage point year-
on-year to approximately 21%, mainly due to the falling prices of
chemical products such as methanol, melamine and DME.

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of RMB10
cents per share and a total dividend of RMB10 cents per share for
the year.

FERYE

BRWALHARE 104457 0 [
IR 47 17% °

AEBMFHARES24E7C 0 [
IR #4927% ©

EREMNXFRLL TR IEGOHME
#21% TEANFE  ZBAR
KBRS TEREE NEMR -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group adhered to the strategic guiding idea of “fertiliser as base, fertiliser
and chemical side by side’ implemented the management transformation
of ‘customer-centric’, and promoted group management and control under
the idea of “centralized group management on overall operation”. Moreover,
the Group promoted safe and independent management, consolidated
the foundation for steady development, achieved upgrading of new coal
gasification technology and cost advantages, strengthened the chemical
fertiliser industry, and extended to the downstream of high value-added
fine chemical products. Thus, the industry chain advantages were further
enhanced, the product structure was enriched, and the Group’s profitability
and the ability to withstand risks have been significantly increased.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

With its mission to serve the best interests of the Shareholders, the
Board has consistently strived to enhance the standard of corporate
governance and to develop a standardised, highly effective and scientific
corporate governance mechanism. The Group held 6 Board meetings
in the year 2020 to review and approve matters including the quarterly
results, interim report, annual report, dividend payout ratio, connected
transactions and development strategies of the Group. The AC, the RC and
the NC have exercised and performed the rights and duties conferred on
them by the Board with a view of raising the standards of the Company’s
risk management and internal control and perfecting the Company’s
governance structure. For internal audit, internal audit was mainly
conducted by the internal audit team of the Company in 2020, focusing
on enhancing internal risk control over procurement management, capital
management and other key processes, and thereby enhancing operational
efficiency.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group highly values its relationship with its investors and
communicates with them through a number of channels. It aims to provide
the latest information on the Group's operations and business development
to its investors, so that they can obtain all necessary information on a timely
manner to make informed investment decisions. Please refer to the section
headed “Investor relations” of this annual report for more details.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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PROSPECTS

Increasing investments will continue to be put in safety and environmental
protection and industry transformation and upgrading will accelerate,
with the industry scale focusing on large enterprises, resulting in
competitions among large-scale enterprises. The Group will continue
to implement base upgrading according to the established low-cost
and product differentiation strategy, with the focus on strengthening
the three major bases, and consolidate the foundation of safety and
environmental protection, as well as promote product upgrade, marketing
upgrade and management upgrade. The Group will facilitate innovations
relying on its scale advantages, product advantages and technological
advantages, integrate social resources and enhance its brand influences.
The Group expects to take the proactive position in the next higher level of
competition.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

In the future, we will actively respond to the national requirements of
“carbon neutrality” and “peak carbon dioxide emissions’, and adopt a green,
modern, intelligent, large-scale and intensive development path with high-
quality development as its core. We will maintain a leading position in the
fertilizer industry and in safety and environmental protection, and lead in
research and development capabilities. Based on the base model, we will
lay out a complete national sales network, and establish a comprehensive
modern group management and control system and a “customer-
oriented” enterprise operation system. In addition, we aim to build up
a leading domestic coal chemical and fertilizer enterprise group, work
towards relevant diversification and downstream expansion, and develop
competitive new products. We also strike to explore new service models
that adapt to modern agriculture and make greater contributions to the
green and sustainable development of China’s agriculture.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

APPRECIATION

Looking back, we have achieved outstanding results; looking to the future,
we shoulder a heavy responsibility and are ready to sail with a fair tide
and wind. We always adhere to our original intentions of utilizing the least
resources to create the greatest value for society. We not only welcome
challenges but also seize opportunities, and we take the transformation and
upgrading of the industry as a valuable chance to enhance our capabilities
and to build our own core competitiveness, with an aim to become the
practitioner and leader of industry transformation and development.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, the Company’s management
team, all the staff, customers and friends who have been caring for and
supporting us. In 2021, the Group’s management and staff will continue
working cohesively and work together under the leadership of the Board to
endeavour to achieve better performance and investment returns for the
Shareholders, and the future of XLX will be more brilliant!

LIU Xingxu
Chairman of the Board
19 March 2021

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED T

()  BUSINESS REVIEW

COAL AND ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION

(m

EBEE

BMEHFERER

2020 2019
t et 223 —T-hNF
Fixed bed technology (& TE PR B i Urea per ton Urea per ton
coal consumption (tons) BB RE (B8) S TES HHafK =
Raw coal R 0.603 0.605
Fuel coal R 0.175 0.156
Total coal consumption BEFEE 0.778 0.761
2020 2019
—E-EF —Nn4F
Coal water slurry technology IR AR F g Urea per ton Urea per ton
coal consumption (tons) HEBRE (188) ES1UTES BEiPR &
Raw coal R 0.768 0.774
Fuel coal PR 0.174 0.180
Total coal consumption BEES 0.942 0.954
2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
KWh per ton KWh per ton
Electricity consumption (KWh) EFE(TERE) T LA BT FE
Urea (Fixed bed technology) RE=E (EEREM) 795 798
Urea (Coal water slurry technology) JRZE (KBEAZRAIT) 331 319
|
SALES VOLUME HEBR
2020 2019
o
Urea PrE= 1,947 1,907
Compound fertiliser Bahe 1,610 1,373
Methanol Bz 355 40
Melamine —BEE 138 130
Furfuryl alcohol i 56 42
Liquid ammonia BR 199 66
Dimethyl ether — g 309 320
|

FEDED —T_TFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T
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REVENUE

Revenue increased by RMB1,517 million or approximately 17%
from RMB8,928 million in the financial year ended 31 December
2019 ("FY2019") to RMB10,445 million in the financial year ended
31 December 2020 (“FY2020"). The increase of revenue was mainly
due to increased sales in compound fertiliser, urea solution for
vehicle, methanol, furfuryl alcohol and medical intermediate, while
such increases were partially offset by the decrease in sales in urea,
dimethyl ether (DME) and melamine.

WA

WABRBEE-_ZT—NLF+=A
=F+—RIEFE(ZE-NFHFE
Z 1) 8 A K # 8928000000 7T 3 N
% A R #1,517,000,000 7T 8 £ 17%
EEHE-_ZT-TF+=-A=+—H
FTFE(ZZEFBRFEDH
# N R ¥ 10,445,000,000 7T © Y A 1%
MEZERHENEARE - ERAKRER
&~ RS - R K B b RS A3
ERRILONFTEL » % 18 2B 99 4 FR
= —_HBROMHOR=BERILE
B PR FTHEEH o

UREA RZE
Finished urea products K3

The Group adheres to the idea of market-oriented, adjusted its
product structure to strengthen product flexibility adjustment and
converted part of the production capacity of finished urea products
capacity into urea solution for vehicle, which has a larger market.
Affected by the adjustment of our products structure and the
impact of market environment, revenue derived from the sales of
urea decreased by RMB233 million or approximately 7% year on year
("YoY") to approximately RMB3,080 million in FY2020 from RMB3,313
million in FY2019, and the average selling price of urea decreased
by approximately 9% due to the impact of market environment. The
decrease was partially offset by the increase of urea sales volume by
approximately 2% YoY to approximately 1,947,000 tons.

UREA SOLUTION FOR VEHICLE

Revenue derived from the sales of urea solution for vehicle increased
by RMB403 million or approximately 236% YoY to approximately
RMB574 million in FY2020 from RMB171 million in FY2019.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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The sales volume of urea solution for vehicle was approximately
415,000 tons, representing an increase of approximately 230%
YoY. This is mainly due to the country’s increasing emphasis on
environmental protection. In May 2020, the Announcement on
Relevant Requirements for Adjustments to the Implementation of
the China VI Emission Standard for Light-duty Vehicles was issued,
which raised the emission standard for motor vehicles and required
strict control limits. Leveraging on this favorable national policy, the
Group expanded its marketing network and developed distribution
channels, which resulted in a significant increase in sales of urea
solution for vehicle.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Revenue derived from the sales of compound fertilisers increased
by RMB306 million or approximately 11% YoY to approximately
RMB3,158 million in FY2020 from RMB2,852 million in FY2019, due
mainly to the increase in sales volume by approximately 17% due
to expansion of sales network. The sales volume of compound
fertilisers increased to 1,610,000 tons for FY2020. The increase in
sales volume was partially offset by a decrease in average selling
price of compound fertilisers of approximately 6%.

METHANOL

Revenue derived from the sales of methanol increased by RMB440
million or approximately 595% YoY to approximately RMB514 million
in FY2020 from RMB74 million in FY2019. The increase in sales of
methanol mainly derived from the new capacity from Xinjiang
Production Base after upgrade and transformation of the production
system, and newly-developed methanol trading business.
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DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Revenue derived from the sales of DME decreased by approximately
RMB170 million or approximately 19% from approximately RMB918
million in FY2019 to RMB748 million in FY2020. The decrease was
mainly due to the continued weak international energy prices,
causing the average selling price and sales volume of DME to drop
by 15% and 4% YoY respectively, which in turn affected the sales
revenue of DME.

MELAMINE

Revenue derived from the sales of melamine decreased by
approximately RMB36 million or 5% from approximately RMB657
million in FY2019 to RMB621 million in FY2020. The decrease was
due mainly to a drop in the average selling price of melamine by
11% YoY which was largely the result of the weakened demand
in domestic chemical products and the negative impact from the
outbreak of COVID-19. The decrease of the average selling price of
melamine was partially offset by the increase in sales volume by
6% YoY. Due to the impact of the epidemic, consolidation in the
melamine industry has accelerated, and also with cost advantage
of Xinjiang base, the Group managed to further increase its market
share.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Revenue derived from the sales of furfuryl alcohol increased by
approximately RMB117 million or 29% from approximately RMB407
million in FY2019 to RMB524 million in FY2020. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in sales volume of approximately 32%
YoY to 55,900 tons for FY2020, which was partially offset by a
drop in the average selling price of furfuryl alcohol products by
approximately 3% YoY.
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MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Revenue derived from the sales of medical intermediate was
approximately RMB232 million in the 2nd half of 2020.

PROFITABILITY
UREA

Gross profit margin of urea of the Group decreased to approximately
27.3% in FY2020 from approximately 28.1% in FY2019. The decrease
was due to a combination of a 9% decrease in the average selling
price and an 8% decrease in the sale cost due to the impact of the
market environment.

UREA SOLUTION FOR VEHICLE

Gross profit margin of urea solution for vehicle increased from
approximately 25.8% in FY2019 to 32.8% in FY2020. This was due
mainly to a combination of an increase in the average selling price
by 1% YoY and a reduction in the average production cost by 8%
YoY. The increase in the average selling price was due to an increase
in the demand as a result of stricter emission regulations, while the
reduction in the average production cost was the result of market
impact from the pandemic.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Gross profit margin of compound fertilisers of the Group increased
by 1.3% to approximately 17.1% in FY2020 from approximately
15.8% in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to the decrease
in average cost of raw material, such as phosphate fertilizer and
potash fertilizer, by approximately 4% and 12% respectively, and the
increase in the sales of high-efficiency fertilisers which enjoyed a
higher gross profit margin.
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METHANOL

Gross profit margin of methanol of the Group increased to
approximately 2.5% in FY2020 from approximately -0.1% in FY2019.
Due to the weakened international energy prices, the average
selling price and the average production cost (purchase price of
coal) of methanol dropped by approximately 22% and 24% YoY
respectively. After considering market factors, the Group reduced
the production of methanol and profit margin has been therefore
affected. Instead, the Group has developed profitable methanol
trading business to reduce the negative impacts from the market
downturn.

DIMETHYL ETHER (DME)

Gross profit margin of DME of the Group increased to approximately
5.8% in FY2020 from approximately 5.1% in FY2019. This was mainly
due to the weakened international energy prices, the average
selling price and the average production cost DME dropped by
approximately 15% and 16% YoY respectively.

MELAMINE

Gross profit margin of melamine decreased from approximately
35.6% in FY2019 to 32.4% in FY2020. This was due mainly to a
11% YoY decrease in the average selling price resulting from the
weakened demand in domestic chemical products. Under the
context that the melamine producers in the PRC have generally
recorded losses in FY2020, the Group leveraged on its technology
and cost advantages and managed to maintain the group profit
margin of melamine products above 30%.

FURFURYL ALCOHOL

Gross profit margin of furfuryl alcohol decreased from approximately
15.3% in FY2019 to 13.9% in FY2020. This was due mainly to decline
in the average selling price by 3% YoY.
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MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE

Gross profit margin of medical intermediate was approximately
17.0% in the 2nd half of 2020.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by approximately RMB39 million
from approximately RMB160 million in FY2019 to approximately
RMB199 million in FY2020. The increase was mainly due to (1) loss
on fair value change of financial instruments through profit and loss
of RMB16 million in FY2019; (2) an increase of net profit from sales
of by-products, water, electricity and steam by RMB15 million; (3)
an exchange gain of RMB16 million; and (4) an increase in subsidy
income by 13 million. The increase was partially offset by the one-
time gain of RMB6 million from on disposal of right-of-use assets
and RMB5 million gain on bargain purchases in FY2019

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB105 million from RMB516 million in FY2019 to RMB621 million in
FY2020. Such increase was mainly due to the increased proportion
of operations during the epidemic, and the adjustment of
settlement methods of transportation expenses has also increased
transportation costs by approximately RMB36 million. The addition
of new sales staff resulting from our active expanding in export
trade has also increased sales staff salaries by approximately RMB54
million.
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB37 million from approximately RMB661 million in FY2019
to approximately RMB624 million in FY2020, which due mainly
to the reduction in employee insurance in order to support the
development of the Company during the pandemic. At the same
time, our administrative staff reduced the number of site inspections
during this period.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses increased by approximately RMB113 million from
approximately RMB17 million in FY2019 to approximately RMB130
million in FY2020. The increase was mainly due to increase in the
impairment of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB113 million.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB27 million from
approximately RMB374 million in FY2019 to approximately RMB401
million in FY2020 due to the increase in amount of interest-bearing
borrowings and loans.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB5 million from
approximately RMB112 million in FY2019 to approximately RMB107
million in FY2020.

PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

The profit for the year increased by RMB110 million or approximately
26.6% from RMB414 million in FY2019 to RMB524 million in FY2020.
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The increase in the Group’s net profit in FY2020 was mainly due to:

m

the YoY growth of the sales volume of compound fertilisers,
methanol and furfuryl alcohol by 17%, 787% and 32%
respectively. During the pandemic, leveraging the green
channel transportation, sales volume of compound fertiliser
increased. The Group adjusted the business model of
methanol and raised the sales volume by changing the
methanol trading business, resulting in the increase in
revenue of compound fertilisers, methanol and furfuryl
alcohol. However, due to the impact of the pandemic, the
entire chemical industry was severely affected, which led to
the drop in the average selling price of chemical products.

the YoY increase in other income and gains of approximately
RMB39,000,000, which mainly include (1) loss on fair value
change of financial instruments through profit and loss of
RMB16 million in FY2019; (2) an increase of net profit from
sales of by-products, water, electricity and steam by RMB15
million; (3) an exchange gain of RMB16 million; and (4) an
increase in subsidy income by 13 million. The increase was
partially offset by the one-time gain of RMB6 million from
on disposal of right-of-use assets and RMB5 million gain on
bargain purchases in FY2019.
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(1n)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
GEARING

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the aggregate of total capital and net debt. The Group’s

(1)

B FS AR5 [
BEERE

AEBEEREEAGBLXR(BER
BB ARER B EFRRAM) K
EEERN - AEBHNBREKEE

policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 90%.

BELLRGRAE0%IAT -

2020 2019

—EoEE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFT

Trade payables E Z N FIE 508,978 366,636
Bills payable ANE S 1,110,814 809,050
Contract liabilities BHAE 818,149 582,181
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E A FE FRIE 1,936,405 1,198,812
Due to related companies FEREE A TIZIA 12,353 7,543
Loans from a non-controlling interest IS 2 B 24,870 48,670
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 588877 M E A& 9,347,719 6,513,256
Bonds payable ERHES 489,892 888,697
Lease liabilities HERE 72,541 170,400
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B W RIS ZEEY (682,041) (884,448)
Pledged time deposits [REGECHGIES (706,035) (499,346)

Net debt BEFH 12,933,645 9,201,451
Equity attributable to owners of the parent  BFA B A AFE(LHER 4,530,433 4,235,241
Less: Statutory reserve fund B R EREES (200,307) (145,518)
Adjusted capital AR 4,330,126 4,089,723
Capital and net debt BARMBEFHE 17,263,771 13,291,174
Gearing ratio BEABHEE 74.92% 69.23%
I

Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bonds payable, trade and bills payables, amounts due to a related
company, accruals and other payables, and lease liabilities less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Capital includes equity
attributable to the owners of the parent less the above-mentioned
restricted statutory reserve fund.
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LOANS

2020 2019
g% —T-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREBFT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AEBERITER
Within one year or on demand —FRFIREK 3,810,227 2,590,784
In the second year E_F 2,101,962 2,486,204
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=ZRF(E) 2,298,963 896,784
Beyond five years hFE 255,000 41,000
8,446,152 6,014,772
Loan from the government: BFE
Within one year or on demand —FREIEER - 909
In the second year E_IF - -
- 909
Loans from leasing company JENTAEARER ®E
finance lease payables: e
Within one year or on demand —FARIREK 327,433 182,476
In the second year E_F 385,306 119,355
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ERAF(F) 168,828 195,744
881,567 497,575
9,347,719 6,513,256
]
RELED — T -TFE
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(1)

(V)

PROSPECTS

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus in 2020, various
countries have limited exports of food products, causing food prices
to rise globally, and food prices also rose in tandem domestically.
Concurrently, in terms of agriculture, collectivized development
of land has been gathering pace in the PRC, this bode well for the
Group's promotion in product differentiation, which further drives
the prices and sales volume of the Group’s fertiliser products.

Following further tightening of the environment protection policies
in China, the prices of urea and other chemical products will
continue to rise. Furthermore, increasing export quantities led to the
increase in demand of fertilizers, overall urea products markets will
see continued growth in the PRC.

In order to meet market demand, increase fertiliser’s sales coverage
and market share, the Group has steadfastly implemented low cost
and product differentiation strategy, further expanding geographical
coverage, forming Central, Northwest and Southeast three strategic
production bases in the PRC. Third production base in Jiangxi
Jiujiang has been successfully commissioned in February 2021. After
the commissioning of the Jiujiang base, the Group will fully utilize its
advantages in water transportation, technology and product quality,
and strengthen the markets for fertiliser and chemical products in
the southern regions of the Yangtze River, while actively expanding
the export trade of urea solution for vehicle, and further raising the
Group's status in the industry.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB10 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) (2019: RMB8 cents per share), subject
to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company will further announce
details of the Proposed Final Dividend, the annual general meeting
and the determination of the Company’s register of members who
are entitled to attend the annual general meeting and vote on such
meeting, and the period of closure for register in due course.
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(V)

Amount in RMB will be translated into HKD and the payment of
the Proposed Final Dividend will be made in HKD, at the rate of
approximately RMB1.00 = HKD1.1882, which is the official exchange
rate of HKD against RMB as quoted on 19 March 2021 by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. Therefore,
based on the above translation of the exchange rate, the Final
Dividend to be paid in HKD will be HKD0.0842 per ordinary share.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
1. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS
) MARKET RISK

The major market risks of the Group include changes
in the average selling prices of key products, changes
in the costs of raw materials (mainly coal) and
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

(1 COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group is also exposed to commodity price risk
arising from fluctuations in product sale prices and
costs of raw materials.

(1) INTEREST RATE RISK

The major market interest rate risk that the Group
is exposed to includes the Group's long-term debt
obligations which are subject to floating interest
rates.

(IV)  FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's revenue and costs are primarily
denominated in RMB. Some costs may be
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars.

(V)
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INFLATION AND CURRENCY RISK

According to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the Consumer Price
Index of the PRC increased by approximately 2.5%
in the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared
with an increase of approximately 2.9% in 2019. Such
inflation in the PRC did not have a significant effect
on the Group's operating results.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk exposure to shortage
of funds. The Group regularly reviews the maturity
of both its financial investments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables and other financial
assets) and projects cash flows from operations. The
Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
the continuity and flexibility of funding through
the use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. As at
31 December 2020, approximately RMB4,138
million (31 December 2019: RMB2,774 million), or
approximately 44.26% (31 December 2019: 42.59%)
of the Group's debts will mature in less than one
year based on the carrying value of the borrowings
reflected in the financial statements.
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(VIl)  GEARING RISK

The Group monitors its debt ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders
value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise new debt or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as net
debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and
net debt) increased from approximately 69.23% as at
31 December 2019 to approximately 74.92% as at 31
December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration (2019: Nil).
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SCOPE OF WORK OF ERNST & YOUNG

The figures in respect of preliminary announcement of
group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been agreed by the Group's auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, to
the amount set out in the Group'’s consolidated financial
statements for the year. The work performed by Ernst &
Young LLP in this respect did not constitute an assurance
engagement in accordance with International standards on
Auditing, International Standards on Review Engagements
or International Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by International Accounting Standards Board and
consequently no assurance has been expressed by Ernst &
Young LLP on the preliminary announcement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the accounting principles and
standards adopted by the Group, and has discussed and
reviewed the internal control and reporting matters. The
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company devotes to best practice on corporate
governance, and has complied with all the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK
(the “Listing Rules") during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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10.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUER

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and its
amendments from time to time as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. The Board confirms that, having made specific
enquiries with all directors of the Company, all directors have
complied with the required standards of the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the securities of the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, there were 8,267 (2019: 7,036)
employees in the Group. Staff remuneration packages are
determined in consideration of market conditions and the
performance of the individuals concerned, and are subject
to review from time to time. The Group also provides
other staff benefits including pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, and grants
discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on
their performance and contributions to the Group.

DISCLOSURE ON THE WEBSITES OF THE SEHK AND
THE COMPANY

This report is published on the website of the SEHK
(http://www.hkexnews.hk) and on the website of the
Company (http://www.chinaxlx.com.hk).
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BOARD
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LIU XINGXU CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Aged 66, is principally in charge of overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director
on 26 July 2006. He is also a member of the NC. Mr. Liu has over 20 years
of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the senior
vice chairman of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association. Mr. Liu was
appointed the factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, a state-owned
enterprise, in charge of factory operations in 1994 and then became the
chairman and the general manager of XLX Chem from July 2003 to July
2006. He was the general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April
2016, and has also been the chairman of Henan XLX since July 2006.
In February 2003, Mr. Liu was awarded the “Provincial Safe Production
Advanced Worker" by Safe Production Committee of Henan Province and
Personnel Bureau of Henan Province for his outstanding performance in
safety work. In April 2004, he was awarded the "Henan Province Labour
Model (Advanced Worker)” and in 2005, he was awarded the Henan
Province Outstanding Private Enterprise Entrepreneur” by the People’s
Government of Henan Province. He was also the winner of “National Labour
Day Medal"in 2009 issued by All China Federation of Trade Unions, and was
awarded the “China Petroleum & Chemical Outstanding Private Enterprises
Entrepreneurs Innovation Award”in May 2014. He was awarded the “Henan
Economic Celebrity of the year 2014" and “Model Worker of China"in 2015
and also the “Most Excellent Citizen in Xinxiang”in 2017. He was awarded

the 2nd session of Henan Province's “Most Beautiful Environmentalist”

in 2018. Mr. Liu graduated from Xinxiang Broadcasting and Television
University in July 1986 with a Diploma in Arts. In 2006, he completed EDP
(Executive Development Program) from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University. In 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the qualification of "Senior
Economist” by the People’s Government of Henan Province and the EMBA
degree from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu is the sole shareholder and a
director of Pioneer Top Holdings Limited, a controlling Shareholder.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

EEE
HITES
ZWEEE EFEBEER

66 5% I£§“$EEWELﬂWﬂ%
NERER - ZEAER_ZTZEFLA
ZHABEERNTES  BNARKEEES
B BISEEMMERERB A 20FLK
% BRRTRARIX%(HEesRaIEE
Ko BEER—NNUFEZELERA
%%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ'ﬂiﬁﬂ B E Iﬁ%@ &
E/L\L/LWIZI%%JE&%L ?&ﬁ o MR =E
ERFLAZE-ZT—RFWUALEAE L
BB TR Igfq = /\itﬂ HEH T
AELELESER RNZEE _¢ A
%‘J?ﬁi%ﬂ@%?%%ﬁwﬂ Bg o
HEAANERER[2ELEEERETE
EIMKRE  URBERZZ2TIELIEN
BHRE - HETEEARBNR_EE
MEMABER [ ImESEiRaE(LET
EE) I RERR ST AFRE f/—Jﬁ
EEFRECER]MKE TR EF
NFEWFEZHBIERT2EE—%
PEE | REMNPR ZE—UFRARKT
[H .E/EEfﬂ{EI1E?§E**ﬁ%%E|J%ﬁEZ?ﬁ
LI GE - FR_E—HFE[ T —
FENELEEFEEAD] X ’—ilM@JTﬁ
W TR —tFE[&ZEND
AN EERER - —E— \FESAIEELESE
ZHEI&EERRAY] KEBER - B1E4E
R—ANARFEAEERHBEZRSEKR
Byaz R-ZETRFTRIERAKEN
EZHERSMRERABEIRE B
T-EFENTEEARBNEE [ SRL
ERD | BREE - WEBBERESREREA
E\I?ﬁ BB T - e AIERRKE
Pioneer Top Holdings Limited B M — f% 58 &
EHo



MR. ZHANG QINGJIN

Aged 54, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to
overall management and day-to-day business operations of the Group.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director on 27 March 2015. Mr.
Zhang was the deputy general manager of Henan XLX from November
2006 to July 2011, and was the executive deputy general manager of
Henan XLX from July 2011 to April 2016, and then he has become the
general manager of Henan XLX since April 2016. He has over 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the member of
the Advisory Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association.
Mr. Zhang joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in July 1987 and held various
positions, including unit head of equipment and facility department, unit
head of production and technical department, section head of equipment
and facility upgrade and department head of technical upgrade in Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the manager of the technical
centre of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. He was also the
manager of the technical centre of Henan XLX from July 2006 to November
2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently
known as “Zhengzhou University”) in July 1987 with a diploma in chemical
equipment, and obtained the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in
2009. In June 2016, he was awarded the “Outstanding Member of the
Communist Party in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region” by the Party
Committee of the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region. In September 2018,
he was awarded the “Outstanding Individual” by China Nitrogen Fertiliser
Industry Association.
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MS. YAN YUNHUA

Aged 50, is principally in charge of the decision making with respect to all
financial matters within the Group. Ms. Yan was appointed as an executive
Director on 10 November 2006. Ms. Yan obtained the “Accountant”
certification from the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in May 1997. She
graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University in July 2003 with a degree in
accountancy and obtained the “Senior Accountant” certification from
Henan Province Accountant Series Senior Assessment Committee in
December 2005. Ms. Yan obtained the EMBA (Executive Master of Business
Administration) degree from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University in July 2009. Ms. Yan has 20 years of accounting and finance
experience. Ms. Yan is currently the executive chairman of the Finance
Research Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association
and the vice chairman of Henan Provincial Association of CFO. She joined
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in December 1997 and held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the deputy head of finance division
and the deputy chief accountant. She was also the chief accountant
in charge of finance of XLX Chem from 2003 to July 2006. She was the
deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April 2016, and
has become the vice chairman of Henan XLX since April 2016. Ms. Yan
was awarded the "Accountants Contribution Award” in the PRC in 2008,
"Advanced Worker in Accounting of Henan Province” in 2009, “Labour Day
Medal of Henan Province”in 2015, and “National Labour Day Medal”in 2019.
Ms. Yan is the sole shareholder and a director of Go Power Investments
Limited, a substantial Shareholder.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. ONG KIAN GUAN

Aged 53, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the AC and a member of both
the RC and the NC. He is a practising member and a fellow of the Institute
of Singapore Chartered Accountants, and also a partner of Baker Tilly TFW
LLP. He has more than 20 years of professional experience in financial
audits of multinational corporations and public listed companies from
diverse industries. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of RMH Holdings Limited and IAG Holdings Limited (both companies are
listed on the GEM of SEHK) since 22 September 2017 and 19 December
2017 respectively. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Omnibridge Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
SEHK) since 15 December 2020. Mr. Ong resigned as an independent
director of Alliance Mineral Assets Limited (a company listed on SGX-
ST) with effect from 17 December 2019. He graduated from the Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy
degree in May 1992.

MR. LI SHENGXIAO

Aged 58, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the NC and a member of
both the AC and the RC. Mr. Li has been a professor in Shaoxing University
since 2004, and is currently the Head of Regional Development Research
Centre in Shaoxing University. He has been the instructor of establishment
of small and medium enterprises in Zhejiang Province, Small and Medium
Enterprises Bureau in Zhejiang Province since 2006. Mr. Li has been
appointed as an independent director of Bank of Shaoxing Co., Ltd. since
November 2013. Mr. Li is also an independent director of Zhejiang China
Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd (@ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange). He was as an independent director of Anhui
Jiangnan Chemical Industry Co, Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) between 2012 and 2018. Mr. Li graduated from Hangzhou
University (currently known as Zhejiang University) in July 1987 with a
graduation certificate in politics. He then obtained a master’s degree in law
from Hangzhou University in July 1990. He was awarded the “high school
outstanding youth teacher of Zhejiang Province”in September 1991.
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MR. ONG WEI JIN

Aged 54, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the RC and a member of
both the AC and the NC. He is a partner in Harry Elias Partnership LLP
(a Singapore law firm). He is currently an independent director of CFM
Holdings Limited and Camsing Healthcare Limited (formerly known as
Jacks International Limited), both companies are listed on the SGX-ST. Mr.
Ong resigned as an independent director of Luzhou Bio-chem Technology
Limited (@ company listed on SGX-ST) with effect from 8 December 2020.
He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from the National University
of Singapore in 1990, a Master of Business Administration degree from
University of Hull in 1993, and a Master of Laws degree from the National
University of Singapore in 1995.

MR. LI HONGXING

Aged 45, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 16 May 2018. Mr. Li has been the Managing Director of
CDG International Company Limited since 2016. Mr. Li served as the
head of energy, mining and equipment (corporate finance) in CITIC
CLSA Securities from 2010 to 2016; and an equity analyst of HSBC with
a focus on Asian oil and chemicals from 2007 to 2010. Before that, Mr.
Li had worked in BP Group, Dongguan Nokia Mobile Phones Co., Ltd.
and PricewaterhouseCoopers China. Mr. Li received a Master of Business
Administration from Australian Graduate School of Management in 2011
and a Bachelor of Arts in International Business from the Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies in 1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. MATONGSHENG

Aged 51, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 18 March 2019.
Mr. Ma has over 26 years of experience in the fertiliser industry in China.
Mr. Ma was the supervisor and assistant manager of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory* (FT#8{LAEARER), a state-owned enterprise, from July 1992 to July
2000. He joined the Group in August 2000, and successively served the
following positions in the Group: the production manager of compound
fertiliser of Henan XLX from August 2000 to October 2005; the deputy
head of Production Plant Il from November 2005 to January 2010; the head
of Production Plant Ill from February 2010 to July 2012; the manager of
production management from August 2012 to December 2016; the director
of Production Management Centre from January 2017 to July 2017; and the
general manager of the Compound Fertiliser Company* (184 /A &)) from
August 2017 to October 2018. He is currently the head of Fine Chemicals
and Biomass Power Generation Development and Research Team of the
Company. Mr. Ma graduated from Zhengzhou University with an EMBA
degree and Nanjing University of Science and Technology with a degree in
Computer Technology.

MR. PAUL WONG WING WANG

Aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of China XLX since 18 March 2019. Mr.
Wang has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance industry in
Singapore. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the managing director of
Crowe Howarth Capital (Singapore) (“Crowe Singapore”) since April 2017,
and was the chief executive officer of Partners Capital (Singapore) Pte Ltd.
(a boutique corporate finance firm with a CMS license from the Monetary
Authority of Singapore, which was acquired by Crowe Singapore in April
2017) from January 2008 to April 2017. He was a partner of SAC Capital
Pte Ltd., a corporate finance advisor in Singapore, from December 2006
to December 2007. Mr. Wong is a member of CPA Australia, and holds a
Bachelor degree of Commerce from Newcastle University in Australia.
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MR. LIYUSHUN

Aged 60, is the deputy general manager in charge of the research and
development department of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 30 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He
joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in August 1982 and was appointed as the
deputy factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in 1993. Mr. Li was the
deputy general manager of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. Mr.
Li graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently known as
Zhengzhou University) in July 1982 with a major in chemical technology.
In 2004, he was awarded the “First in Third Prize for Adopting the Improved
Water Solution Full Circulation Method Urea Technology to Expand
Production and Reduce Wastage” by the People’s Government of Xinxiang.
In November 2006, he was awarded the “Second Prize in Integrated
Treatment and Environmental Protection Project for Zero Discharge of
Waste Water Produced in the Production of Nitrogen Fertiliser” by China
Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association. He was recognised as a “Model
Worker of Hehan Province”in April 2014. He retired in April 2020.

MR. WANG NAIREN

Aged 57, is the deputy general manager in charge of the sales and
purchasing of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. He has more than 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the office head of nitrogen fertiliser
plant and the deputy head and assistant to head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from March 1993. Mr. Wang was the deputy general manager of
sales and marketing department of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July
2006. Mr. Wang obtained a certificate of completion in master’s course of
business administration from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Tianjin University of Finance and Economics) in June
2002. He no longer served as deputy general manager since November
2020.
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MR. ZHAO LIANZI

Aged 58, is the deputy general manager in charge of the strategy and
logistics department of Henan XLX since February 2012. He has almost
20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various
positions in the Group, including the deputy head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from February 1999 to August 2000. He was the general manager of
Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. GAIEE T #T{LIEAR D BBR 2 F]) from August
2000 to December 2003, the general manager of Compound Fertilizer
Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co, Ltd. (Al @ 0 i@ ML BB R R RIE &

fE % 2 §]) from December 2003 to July 2010, and the assistant to general
manager of Henan XX from July 2010 to February 2012. Mr. Zhao obtained
a certificate of completion in master’s course of business administration
from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics) in June 2002. In 2007, he
completed EDP (Executive Development Program) from Guanghua School
of Management, Peking University. He no longer served as deputy general
manager since November 2020.

MR. WANG PINGBIAO

Aged 50, is the deputy general manager in charge of the safety,
environmental protection and engineering management department
of Henan XLX since 29 April 2016. Mr. Wang has more than 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He joined Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory in July 1992 and held various positions, including the deputy
director of technical transformation of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory and the
deputy head of nitrogen fertiliser plant. He was the head of Branch I,
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co, Ltd. ()7 @ /0y 38 LML BE B IR A 7] =9 A &) from
January 2005 to September 2008, the head of Factory [, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. (AIRDELMEIEB R AT =) from September
2008 to January 2010 and the head of Branch |\/ Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,,
Ltd. GAE D ELMEIEABR A FIE 9 A 7)) since October 2010. Mr. Wang
graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently known as
Zhengzhou University) with a tertiary certificate in June 1992, and obtained
a master degree in Executive Master of Business Administration from
Tsinghua University in 2008.
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MR. REN RONGKUI

Aged 52, he was appointed as the Deputy General Manager of Henan XLX
on 18 March 2019. Mr. Ren graduated from Henan Normal University in June
1992 and obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Xi'an
Jiaotong University in January 2017. He was qualified as a safety engineer.
From June 1992 to January 1997, he served as a workshop staff member
of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From January 1997 to July 2000, he served as
director of the Instrument Workshop of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory. From
July 2000 to July 2005, he served as manager of the agrochemical center
of Henan Xinxin Fertilizer Co,, Ltd., and served as deputy director of Factory
I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from January to July 2007. He served as
director of Factory I, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to August
2008, and manager of Branch Il, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from August
2008 to October 2010, and served as the assistant of general manager of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from October 2010 to July 2017.

MS. SUN HONG

Aged 52, she was appointed as the deputy general manager of Henan
XLX on 18 March 2019. Ms. Sun graduated from Henan Normal University
in July 1991 with major in chemistry, and obtained a master’s degree in
applied chemistry from Dalian University of Technology in July 1994. She
obtained a Ph.D. in Business Administration from Huazhong University of
Science and Technology in June 2011. From August 1994 to February 2004,
she worked in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance Co,, Ltd,, as a technician,
the deputy director of the manufacturing department, director, manager
of the advertising department, and deputy manager of the marketing
department, etc. From March 2004 to October 2012, she served as the head
of quality department, deputy general manager of quality department and
general manager of quality department in Henan Xinfei Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd. In November 2012, she served as assistant to general manager
of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. and manager of enterprise management
department.
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MR. JIA XINCHAO

Aged 47, is the deputy general manager in charge of the department
of sales for Xinxiang compound fertilisers division of Henan XLX since 2
November 2020. Mr. Jia held various positions in the Group: the corporate
management officer of Xinxiang Fertilizer Factory from August 1996 to
August 2003; the director of supply of Henan XLX Chemicals Co,, Ltd. from
August 2003 to October 2005; the manager of the purchasing department
of from October 2005 to July 2011 Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd.; the
executive deputy general manager of Compound Fertilizer Branch, Henan
XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from July 2011 to August 2012; the general manager
of Compound Fertilizer Branch, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from August
2012 to September 2015; the general manager of marketing centre of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from September 2015 to April 2016; the
assistant of general manager and general manager of marketing centre of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from April 2016 to July 2017; and the assistant
of general manager of Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. since
July 2017. Mr. Jia obtained a EMBA Master from Zhengzhou University in
April 2013; and obtained a EMBA Master from Tsinghua University School of
Economics and Management in June 2016.

MR. GUO ZHENG

Aged 47, is the deputy general manager in charge of the production
department of Henan XLX since 2 November 2020. Mr. Guo held various
positions in the Group: participated in the preparation of building
the first urea device of China XLX on 1 July 1994; the director of the
thermoelectricity workshop and deputy head of Factory I, Henan XLX
Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from 1999 to September 2008; the head of Factory |,
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from September 2008 to August 2012; the
head of Factory Ill, Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from September 2012 to
March 2014; the deputy general manager of the production department of
Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to September
2015, participated in the preparation of constructing Xinjiang 28-48 Project;
the executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy
Chemical Co., Ltd. from October 2015 to March 2016; the assistant of
general manager of Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy Chemical Co,, Ltd. and the
executive deputy general manager of Xinjiang company from April 2016
to June 2017; and the assistant of general manager of Henan XLX Fertilizer
Co,, Ltd. and general manager of Xinjiang company since July 2017. Mr. Guo
graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College in July 1994 with a major
in chemical technology.
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MR. CHAN ENXING

Aged 50, is the deputy general manager in charge of the corporate
administration of Henan XLX since 2 November 2020. Mr. Chan held various
positions in the Group: the office staff member of sealing plant of Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory from March 1995 to July 1995; the assistant to head and
deputy head of nitrogen fertiliser plant of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from
March 1996 to August 1997; the deputy office head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from July 1995 to March 1996; the deputy office head of corporate
management department of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from August 1997
to September 1998; the office head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory from
September 1998 to August 2001; the general manager and chairman of
Henan Shenzhou Heavy Sealing Co,, Ltd. from August 2001 to November
2014; the general manager and office head of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd.
from December 2014 to June 2017; board secretary of Henan XLX Fertilizer
Co.,, Ltd. from July 2017 to June 2019; the assistant of general manager of
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. since June 2019.

MR. YANG HAITAO

Aged 43, is principally in charge of the decision making of overall
management and day-to-day business operations of Qingli Energy, and
he has been appointed as the general manager of Qingli Energy since
December 2018. Mr. Yang graduated from School of Chemical Engineering
and Energy of Zhengzhou University, majoring in chemical machinery, in
2011. He has more than 25 years of experience in the chemical industry.
Mr. Yang has joined Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. since 1996
and successively served the following positions in the Group: the leader of
the gas supply workshop of Factory | from August 1996 to April 2006; the
deputy director of the gas supply workshop of Branch Il from May 2006 to
October 2007; the director of the gas supply workshop of Branch Il from
November 2007 to July 2014; and the manager of furfuryl alcohol division
from August 2014 to November 2018.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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MR. ZHU YINGHONG

Aged 51, is principally in charge of project development, research and
construction, and has been appointed as the chief engineer and manager
of technical department of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. since November 2020.
Mr. Zhu has more than 20 years of experience in the field of engineering
project construction. From April 2005 to June 2014, Mr. Zhu served as
section head of automatic control for 18.30 Project, 24.40 Project and
45.80 Project in Xinxiang base. In July 2014, he served as chief engineer
of automatic control for 30.52 Project in Xinjiang base. He was awarded
Technology Model, XLX Figure of the year, Model Worker, etc. during his
tenure as the manager of Engineering Project Department in October 2016.
The engineering projects he mainly participated in include 18.30 Project,
24.40 Project, 45.80 Project, Xinjiang 30.52 Project, Xinjiang Melamine
Project, Sulfur-based Fertilizer Project, 300,000-ton of Methanol Project,
Dimethyl Ether Projects (Phase | and Phase II), Industrial Upgrading Project,
Green Manufacturing Project, and Formaldehyde-amino resin Projects.

MS. FENG JIAOXIA

Aged 37, is principally in charge of organisation and development of areas
such as corporate management, human resources and procurement
management, and has been appointed as the deputy general manager
of Henan Xinxing Chemical Materials Co., Ltd.* (A m /0B E Rk
BBR/AR]) since March 2020. Ms. Feng graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University, majoring in public administration, and obtained
bachelor’s degree in management in 2006. Ms. Feng has more than 15
years of experience in the chemical industry. She has jointed Henan
Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co., Ltd. since 2006 and successively served
the following positions in the Group: the training supervisor in the Human
Resource Department from November 2007 to April 2012, the director of
Outstanding Performance Office from May 2012 to September 2012; and
the deputy manager of Corporate Management Center from October 2012
to April 2018
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MR. WANG Ql

Aged 39, is principally in charge of “furfural & furfuryl alcohol” business
financial development. He has served as the financial manager of the
“furfural & furfuryl alcohol” business of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. since 24
June 2019. Mr. Wang obtained bachelor’s degree from Henan Normal
University in 2020 and he has more than 15 years of experience in financial
work. Mr. Wang served as the financial manager of a subsidiary of Henan
Xinkelong Electric Co., Ltd.* (RIEFTEHEEZ AR A R]) from July 2006
to September 2009; the financial manager of Henan Kelong New Energy
Co., Ltd.* CAImRIE#EERA R A a]) from October 2009 to March 2013;
the business financial supervisor of Henan XLX Fertilizer Co., Ltd. from April
2013 to March 2015; the financial supervisor of furfuryl alcohol division of
Henan XLX Fertilizer Co,, Ltd. from April 2015 to October 2018; the financial
manager of Henan Hydrogenpower Energy Co,, Ltd* CAITE = I EERB IR
A 7)) from November 2018 to December 2019; and the financial manager
of the "furfural & furfuryl alcohol” business and the financial manager of
Henan Xinxing Chemical Materials Co., Ltd. since January 2021.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
MS. LEUNG KWAN WAI

Ms. Leung Kwan Wai was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 4 July 2019. Ms. Leung is a manager of Corporate Services of
Tricor Services Limited (a global professional services provider specializing
in integrated business, corporate and investor services). She has over 10
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Leung is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an Associate of both
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

MS. CHEOK HUI YEE

Ms. Cheok Hui Yee was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 6 March 2018. Ms. Cheok is a senior manager of Tricor
Evatthouse Corporate Services, a division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd. (a
leading provider of integrated business, corporate and investor services
in Singapore). She has over 10 years of experience in corporate secretarial
practice in Singapore. Her area of exposure includes advisory and
assistance in compliance matters of public and private limited companies
in Singapore, foreign companies registered in Singapore as well as offshore
incorporated companies. She is currently the appointed company secretary
of several public companies listed on the SGX-ST. Ms. Cheok is a Practising
Chartered Secretary and an Associate of The Chartered Secretaries Institute
of Singapore.
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Investor Relations
BREEBR

During 2020, despite the impacts brought by the pandemic, the Company
actively maintain investor relations, and capital market recommendation
and media promotion became the main focus for work promotion, so as to
truly serve as a bridge for effective communication between the Company
and the capital market. The Company also listens attentively to various
suggestions and proposals from the capital market with regard to the
Company’s operations and management in a proactive, sincere and humble
manner, so as to improve the Company’s operational management quality,
enhance the Company’s profitability and Shareholders’ value and maximise
their interests.

TIMELY, RIGHTEOUS, FAIR AND ACCURATE INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE

The Company has been in strict compliance with the information disclosure
principles for listed companies by making timely, righteous, fair and
accurate information disclosure, which improve the transparency of the
Company, moreover, establish a smooth communication channel and
enhance its interaction and communication with the capital market. In
2020, the Company published 39 documents on SEHK's website. Such
publications have objectively and comprehensively disclosed information
regarding the results, operating performance, financial information,
dividend payment, poll results of shareholder meetings and certain other
voluntary disclosures. The Company’s website (www.chinaxIx.com.hk) is also
an important channel for its information disclosure and important platform
for investors to obtain information on the Company.

MULTIPLE-CHANNEL, COMPREHENSIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Company continued to conduct comprehensive communication
with capital market through various communication channels including
results announcement conference, roadshow activities, one-on-one
investor meetings, investor forums, press release and WeChat group,
communicating its development philosophy and strategies, growth
progress and latest updates and results on operation and management, and
sharing its understanding and expectation on the industry and the market.
Further, the Company also developed various user-friendly promotion and
communication platforms such as website, WeChat public platforms and
other formats, with their contents covering corporate news, important
announcements, updates of the Company’s capital market, media report,
and analyst’s report.
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Investor Relations
BREEBZ

Due to the successive introduction of preventive measures against
pandemics by various regions in 2020, only a few investors had onsite visits
to the headquarter of the Group. However, according to the needs and
styles of analysts and different investors, the Group flexibly and proactively
arranged corporate senior management to participate in numerous
online investor relations activities. During 2020, the Company’s senior
management including the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Financial
Officer participated in plenty of investor activities to fully communicate
with the capital market, which realised multi-channelled communications.
Besides holding press conferences after interim and annual results
announcements, the Company also attended various investor forums
organised by a number of investment banks and funds, conducted one-
on-one meetings and conference calls regularly, and made interactive
communication with around 200 investors and analysts throughout the
year, so as to further give investors and analysts a better idea of the business
and operations of the Group.

STEADY AND CONTINUOUS SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the Shareholders’ views on its
dividend payout. The Company determines its dividend payout every year
with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term development
needs and potential investment opportunities. When the Company was
listed on the SGX-ST in 2007, we promised to the Shareholders that our
dividend payout ratio for each of the 3 years from 2007 to 2009 would not
be less than 20% of our net profit after tax, and we have kept our promises.
In 2020, the Group proposed dividend of RMBO.1 per Share and a dividend
payout ratio of 33.7% net profit attributable to owners of the parent.

—ETFHRESEERERB TR
G EELHBOIREEEMERAEE
AEB - BAREBIRE S ITADFIR R AR A
BENTRMES  BE - LT
TEEBERAMETRZREREEBEREE
o _T_TF ARAEECTEELE
FUBEERELETAENTHEAKRE
B mOBEBEAMBETRIR BR
TEZREBEMBER -BRY¥FE FEEER
EREBIREERMGEIN BE2NTZ

RIITHNESBRNIREERE - BiE
E'T%L'E}‘] Tiéuﬁc ;Eu ggi'ifﬁéﬁiﬁ
—BARKREENS ﬁ%ﬁ TEHR
//Ib ! E "'HJH/?KTTXQ% 7fﬁEﬂ5%ﬁ$%

3 R AR B AN IR SO B A

HFERENRRER

ARASEERRREKRETHNER -
TRARRNERB BN RERRS
EMREREBERERETTFNIKE °

KRB BR BT FEFNLAT TR
[ERFE  —EELFE_FETNF=F

AEFHIR B HIMERSFERE AT A
20% ARARIBEBE#EEAR —E=2F
F - AEBEFEEFREROREARE
T RB G FBE A RHEE ASFHE
#933.7% °

The situation of the Company’s dividend payment since listing
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance principles and processes in managing the
business and affairs, so as to improve the performance, accountability,
and transparency of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed its
corporate governance practices and considers that the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised below.

A THE BOARD
A1.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The primary role of the Board is taking leadership and
control of the Company to protect and enhance long-term
Shareholders’ value. It sets the corporate strategies of the
Group, and sets directions and goals for the management.
The Board also supervises the management and monitors

performance of these goals to enhance Shareholders’

value. The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and
the management. Each executive Director has accumulated
sufficient and valuable experience to hold his/her position
in order to ensure that his/her fiduciary duties can be carried
out in an effective and efficient manner.
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TEERRE
The Board has established an internal framework to ensure EESCDBLARIERE - #
that the type of material transactions which required Board's REZESFGHENEAR
approval is consistently applied throughout the Group. SEASEAN—BEA - F
Matters requiring Board's approval include: ZESSHIANSEEE
Overall Group business and budget strategy i AEEEBEBLE
RS
i Capital expenditures, investments or divestments i BEARX - BREX
exceeding certain material limits RERIRESBE
i, All capital-related matters including capital issuance ii. BRERZETRED
and redemption EAREEARIEAE
=H
iv. Significant policies governing the operations of the iv. RAARIEREENE
Company BHER
V. Corporate strategic development and restructuring V. PEFENEHARR
Vi, Risk management strategy vi. [\ B I R
vii.  Any major corporate activities involving changes in vi. S RIRERE N KRR
Shareholders'rights and risk profile A S EAEE
BEEE
Regular meetings of the Board are held to deliberate the EEgRTEHERE  UBE
strategic policies of the Company including significant AARREH BB B - B
acquisitions and disposals, review and approve annual FREAMKEMEESIE -
budgets, review the performance of the business and BN EFEEE - el
approve the publicly issued periodic financial results. FE B FRIBARE RN EY
TE BT TS SEAE o
All Directors from time to time obtain information concerning FBEEHEITRESEH
the Company to enable them to be fully cognizant of the RATFIER - LAEMFI8E
decisions and actions of the Company’s management. The HEAEBAARRREEEE
Board has unrestricted access to the Company’s records A R R AR {TE) - E
and information. Any Director may request for independent =R R RIAECEA
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the ER T EILAZREI o ([
Company’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the EERMESSFEHAEE
Board. kig - AIREE BN TEOK
BUEXER BRAAR
AJEHE -
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A2.

Senior management members are available to provide
explanatory information in the form of briefings to the
Directors or formal presentations at Board meetings, or by
external consultants engaged on specific projects.

The Board has formed specialised committees namely the
AC, the RC and the NC (collectively the “Committees”)
to assist in carrying out and discharging its duties and
responsibilities efficiently and effectively. The Committees
function within clearly defined terms of references and
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular
basis. The effectiveness of each of the Committees is also
constantly reviewed by the Board.

The company secretary(ies) of the Company (the “Company
Secretary(ies)”) and/or his/her representative(s) attend(s)
all Board meetings and meetings of the Committees to
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. Draft minutes of
meetings of the Board and the Committees are circulated to
Directors and the Committees members, as the case may be,
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version of minutes are available for Directors’
inspection.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2020, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Xingxu (Chairman of the Board and

Member of the NC)

Mr. Zhang Qingjin
Ms. Yan Yunhua

A2.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ong Kian Guan (Chairman of the AC, Member
of the RC and the NC)

Mr. Li Shengxiao (Chairman of the NC, Member
ofthe AC and the RC)

Mr. Ong Wei Jin (Chairman of the RC, Member
ofthe AC and the NC)

Mr. Li Hongxing (Member of the AC, the RC
and the NC)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has
met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having at least three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors
bring different business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Committees. Through participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on
the Committees, the independent non-executive Directors
have made contributions to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safequard the interests of both the Group and the
Shareholders.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
between Board members, if any, are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretaries” of this annual report.
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A3.

A4.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in order to ensure a balance of
power and authority and preserve a balanced judgement
of views. During the year under review, Mr. Liu Xingxu is
the Chairman of the Board, focusing on the overall strategic
planning and business development of the Group; whereas
Mr. Ma Tongsheng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, taking care of the overall management and day-
to-day business operations of the Group. Such separation of
the roles and duties of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
would enable timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group's development.

In addition, the Directors are of the view that the balanced
composition of executive Directors and non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
on the Board and the existence of AC, RC and NC (comprising
all or a majority of independent non-executive Directors) in
overseeing different aspects of the Company’s affairs would
help to maintain the balance of power and authority.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and processes of appointment and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Constitution.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas the Company has
issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors. All
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years.
They are also subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Constitution at least once every three
years at an AGM.

A3.

A4.
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A5.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group are provided to Directors from time to time for their
studying and reference.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
have participated training as follows:

- All Directors (being Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao,
Mr. Ong Wei Jin and Mr. Li Hongxing) received regular
briefings and updates from the Company Secretaries/
Company’s management on the Group's business,
operations and corporate governance matters.

- Mr. Liu Xingxu, Mr. Zhang Qingjin and Ms. Yan Yunhua
attended relevant seminars organised by professional
firms/institutions.

- All Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals
and other publications on subjects relevant to the
Group and on their responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.
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DIRECTORS' ATTENDANCE RECORDS A6.

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board and the Committees and the annual general
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

BEETAT -
Attendance of Meetings
SRLERY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
EZ® ENZEe  HHZEE REZEE RREFAS
No. of Meetings held 6 4 2 2 1
LV
Name of Director
£
Executive Directors; HiTEE:
Mr. Liu Xingxu A\ s 6 - - 2 1
Mr. Zhang Qingjin REGKE 6 - - - 1
Ms. Yan Yunhua BRELT 6 - - - 1
Independent non-executive Directors: BV HB/TEE -
Mr. Ong Kian Guan TRRLE 5 4 2 2 1
Mr. i Shengxiao TEREE 6 4 2 2 1
Mr. Ong Wei Jin TACEE 6 4 2 2 1
Mr.Li Hongxing TIELAE 6 4 2 2 1

EOED —F - TFEH
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A7.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of executive Directors during the year under
review.

While the Board considers Directors’ attendance at the
meetings of the Board and the Committees to be important,

it should not be the only criterion to measure the Directors'

contributions. The Board also takes into account the
contributions by Board members in other forms including
periodical reviews, and provision of guidance and advice on
various matters relating to the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules) as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’'dealings in the Company'’s securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions
by the relevant employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period
for dealings in the Company'’s securities, the Company will
notify the Directors and relevant employees in advance.
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A8.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
AC, the RC and the NC, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All the Committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are available on the
websites of the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaxlx.com.hk). All the Committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

B1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The AC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei
Jin.and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the AC is Mr. Ong
Kian Guan, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
None of the members of the AC is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor.
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The main duties of the AC are reviewing the financial ERZBEENIEBARSE
information and reports of the Group and considering any BAREENTBEER KR
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers o URAEESREZA
of the Group or the external auditor before submission to EZEAEEUBET AL
the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms B SR FTIR BT E X
of appointment of the external auditor and making the KA FEEHIE - A HEIN
relevant recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the Z EEM A B8R 2 1N BF A% 8RR
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and WAEEA MZE S EIE A
internal control systems and internal audit function. HEEE MR AR RN
BRERS BREERA
EIE R RN EBE X
B o
The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy for RARIRASEEEIRAER
employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible FIEE - AIHPBRE - A
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or Bzl =k H At =5 B (E AT AT B
other matters. The AC constantly receives updates from BHREREER BFRE
the external auditor pertaining to the latest changes to the B —HWHUNBZEAT A
accounting standards and issues which have a direct impact R BRREEETE
on financial statements. B & 512 Bl K ) R A SR
BRI AR o
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the AC has held 4 REEZE-_ZT_ZTF+=H
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member =+—RIFE %8
at the meetings are set out in section A6 above. The AC has FERTIREE - TLB
performed the following major works during the year ended BRI E g & T B IR
31 December 2020: EXneHi o REE-T-F

FHZA=1t—HILFE "
BEZLZBERETMIEE

THE:

- Review and discussion of the annual financial - BRI REEZT
statements, results announcement and report for —NF+ZA=1+—
the year ended 31 December 2019 together with AIEFENFEMB
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Wk EBE N BER
and the related accounting principles and practices HERRE g K
adopted by the Group; ERAMEALLAEEH

K EE g RA
-LE

- Review and discussion of the interim financial - ERRAREBEEZ
statements, results announcement and report for —EFRA=THL
the six months ended 30 June 2020, and the related 7B A #Y AR HA B 7 R
accounting principles and practices adopted by the xCEBEAMERSE
Group; LA 2 7 &2 B 5 4 1) 4R

st RRI MBS

56 China XLX 2020 Annual Report



Review and discussion of the financial results for
the first quarter ended 31 March 2020 and the third
quarter ended 30 September 2020 respectively;

Consideration and discussion of the major audit
findings (including Key Audit Matters) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 from the external auditor;

Consideration and discussion of the major internal
audit issues for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the six months ended 30 June 2020 respectively;

Review of the independence of the external auditor
and recommendation of its re-appointment for the
year ended 31 December 2020;

Review and discussion of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020;

Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, the risk management
and internal control systems and the internal audit
function;

Review of the arrangement of whistle-blowing
policy; and

Review and discussion of Ernst & Young LLP’s audit
plan for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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B2.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the external
auditor has met the AC twice and discussed with the AC on
issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.

The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided
by the external auditor of the Company, was satisfied that
the nature and extent of such services would not affect the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The
AC recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for
re-appointment as the Company's external auditor at the
2021 AGM. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the AC regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The RC currently comprises a total of four members, being
the four existing independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin
and Mr. Li Hongxing. The chairman of the RC is Mr. Ong Wei
Jin. All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited
to Directors' fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits
in kind, will be covered by the RC. Each RC member will
abstain from voting on any resolution in respect of his own
remuneration package.
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The principal responsibilities of the RC include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management (i.e. the
model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code is adopted). The RC is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, and the remuneration will be determined
by the Board with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as the market practice
and conditions.

In setting remuneration packages, the RC will take into
consideration the pay and employment conditions in
comparable companies within the industry. The RC will
also review the remuneration packages of the independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director to
ensure that they are commensurate with the contributions
and responsibilities of the Directors. Each of the executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company,
which covers each of their terms of employment. The
Company will submit the quantum of Directors' fees of each
year to the Shareholders for approval at each AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the RC has
held 2 meetings. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above. At
the said meetings, the RC: (i) reviewed the remuneration
framework for the Directors, key executive staff, top five
highest paid employees and employees who are immediate
family members of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the remuneration proposal for the
year ended 31 December 2020, by reference to the Group’s
performance and profitability as well as the remuneration
level of certain listed corporations within the industry; and
(i) reviewed, confirmed and ratified the renewal of service
contracts and/or letters of appointment of the Directors with
recommendations to the Board for approval.
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Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

RIE TG F B SFRIHE X
FEBISKE HEZZ-ZTF
+—A=+—HLFESHR
ERERN B K FE F izE
B D& :

Number of individuals

FNEE (AR®ET) AE
700,000-900,000 6
900,001-1,000,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The NC currently comprises a total of five members, being
the Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Liu Xingxu, and the
four existing independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao, Mr. Ong Wei Jin and
Mr. Li Hongxing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the
NC is Mr. Li Shengxiao.

The principal responsibilities of the NC include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on an annual basis
and recommending any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become Board
members and selecting and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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The NC has established and implemented processes
including taking into consideration the attendance records
at the meetings of the Board and the Committees for
monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Board
as a whole and effectiveness and contribution of individual
Directors.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other significant offices held by them. Where a Director has
multiple directorships, the NC will evaluate whether or not
the Director is able to carry out and has been adequately
carrying out his/her duties as a Director. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Board is satisfied that each Director
has allocated sufficient time and resources to the affairs of
the Company.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination
Policy. Such policy, devising the criteria and process of
selection and performance evaluation, provides guidance to
the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of
the Company. The Board believes that the defined selection
process is good for corporate governance in ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level,
and enhancing better Board effectiveness and diversity as
well as in compliance with relevant applicable rules.

The NC and/or the Board may select candidates for
directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other
member of the management and external recruitment
agents. In selecting and evaluating candidates for
directorship, the NC may make reference to certain criteria,
such as the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience,
skills and professional knowledge of the candidate, and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. Each candidate
shall be ranked by order of preference based on the needs
of and check by the Company. The NC shall report and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
appropriate candidate for directorship for decision.
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The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company’s competitive advantage. The Company believes
that greater diversity of directors is good for corporate
governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents, and
assesses regularly the diversity profile of the Board and the
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on
achieving diversity objectives, if any. A Board diversity policy
was adopted by the Company, pursuant to which the Board
and the NC is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Board composition under diversified perspectives (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience) and for ensuring
that changes to the Board’s composition can be managed
without undue disruption. The NC shall report its findings
and make recommendation to the Board, if any. Such policy
and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness in determining the optimum
composition of the Board that are aligning with the
Company’s strategy and objectives.

The NC considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective for implementing the Board diversity

policy.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

RABNRAILREESTS
KREZTlt#EaERE - Bl
EXeEEMNZ LR BME
RARRGHEENERR
Z-ARBRR BEFE
ZANEERES LB
Wl RBEFEFEREA
UEREERERZOATE
R AREMALESTES
THEBER KB AR ARNES
A(ERT S BEARRE RO S T &
ZEREFNERERE -
femERZ T BIRER (0
B RRBIRMEFEZTT
EBE Bt EFERRE
HRBEERERZTTILAE
(BRRETERMER - Fik
XL RBEERRBELR)
A hFHEEEXREAR
B WHERENSTE TE
BRATAEEEFTGHAKE
FolRAZBEERMEELSE
ARAEFTSELHERER
(nE) - ZEREMBZD
B) KR i AR R (55
REMAARRRENER
MESSREMEKNERE -

RAZEERDEZTIRHSE
FRETTCBRAMNEE T
WERTAEARITEEEN
BZIT BRI AT 2R o



During the year ended 31 December 2020, the NC has
held 2 meetings. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above.
At the said meetings, the NC: (i) reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed
the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors; (iii) recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors at the 2020 AGM; (iv) reviewed, confirmed and
ratified the renewal of service contracts and/or letters of
appointment of the Directors with recommendations to the
Board for approval and ratification.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and is mindful of
its obligations to furnish timely information and to ensure full
disclosure of material information to the Shareholders in compliance
with statutory requirements and the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Group
and put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have
a key role in the identification and management of risks that are
significant to the achievement of the Group's business objectives.
The process of business risk management has been integrated
throughout the Group into business planning and monitoring
processes. The Company’s management continuously assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, monitors
the risk management progress, and reports to the AC and the Board
on all findings. The management would also report to the AC and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The AC ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
internal controls (including financial, operational, compliance
and information technology controls), with respect to the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, is conducted
annually and put forward to the Board for consideration. In this
regard, the AC reviews the audit plans and the findings of the
external and internal auditors, and ensures that the Company will
follow up on the auditors' recommendations raised, if any, during
the audit process.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, with the assistance of
the management and the AC, has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Based on the reports submitted by the external and internal
auditors and the various management controls put in place, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2020. With the concurrence of the AC, the Board
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems maintained by the management are effective and adequate
to address the financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management of the Group throughout the year ended 31
December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has also
received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company that (i) the financial records have
been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company/Group’s operation and finances; (i)
the Company/Group have put in place and will continue to maintain
reliable, comprehensive and sound systems of risk management,
internal control and corporate governance that will withstand the
scrutiny of any audit and review by the external auditor.

The Company has implemented control procedures throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020 to ensure that unauthorised access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The primary functions of the Company'’s internal audit include
assessing if adequate internal control system is in place to protect
the funds and assets of the Group and to ensure compliance
with the internal control procedures; assessing if operation of
the business processes under review is conducted efficiently and
effectively; and identifying and recommending improvements to
the internal control procedures, where required.

The Board, with the concurrence of the AC, is satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget and effectiveness of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Leung Kwan Wai of
Tricor Services Limited and Ms. Cheok Hui Yee of Tricor Singapore
Pte. Ltd., both of which companies being external service providers,
have been engaged as the Company’s Joint Company Secretaries.

The Company Secretaries' primary contact persons at the Company
are Ms. Yan Yunhua, an executive Director, and Ms. Gui Lin, the Head
of Securities Department of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company Secretaries
have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report”of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external
auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are analysed below:
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Fees paid/payable
et ENER
Type of services provided by the external auditor (S$'000)
MR B R RIS E R (FFrhnsoT)
Audit services
ERRE
- Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2020 186,773.85
HE_Z-ZF+-_A=t+—HIEFEMNEZER
Non-audit services
EEFZIRTE
- Tax compliance service 24,272.95
MIA G #7 AR TS
TOTAL:
st 211,046.80
|
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. Price sensitive
information will be publicly released before the Company’s
disclosure of any of such information to any investors or analysts.
Financial results and reports will be announced or issued within the
prescribed periods under the statutory or regulatory requirements.

In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the Board's policy is that all Shareholders be informed
of all major developments that impact the Group. Information is
disseminated to the Shareholders and investors on a timely basis
through:

i. Announcements, financial reports, circulars and news
releases published on the website of the SEHK;

ii. Financial reports prepared and issued to all Shareholders;

iii. Press releases on major developments of the Group;

iv. Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGM and EGM;
and
V. the Company’s website at www.chinaxlx.com.hk at which

the Shareholders can access information of the Group,
roadshows and plant visits.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings to ensure
high level of accountability and to stay apprised of the Group's
strategy and goals. Notices of general meetings will be published
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company. The chairmen of the
Committees are normally available at general meetings to answer
any question relating to the work of the Committees. The external
auditor shall also be present at AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Besides, for putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders b - R ES G EL TR &AM
and investors may send written enquiries to the Company. The T BRRRBEEARARATE
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous EHEHR ARF—METEEE
enquiries. Shareholders and investors may send their written EAEKERER - RERIKE
enquiries to the following: EAEBUATHFATRXREEERS
i
Address:  Room 1903-04, 19/F, Hong Kong Trade Centre, 161 Des ik - HALREHHES 16198
Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong BEBEZHPL19TE
1903-1904 =
(For the attention of the Head of Securities Department) (FEFRBEH R
Fax: (852) 2435 3724 B H : (852) 24353724
Email: ir@chinaxix.com.hk BHE : ir@chinaxlx.com.hk
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. B AGERTR R IE o
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS : PR 3R A RER
To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate ARERROER RER - KA7
resolution shall be proposed at general meetings on each BREEXNERNEE (BEEEE
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual AMEE)RNBRRERAGREB LRE
Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting. RUAHBEREEREERR -
1. CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING . BRERREBHIKRE
Pursuant to Article 47 of the Constitution, the Directors RIBEZERRMAE471E E=
may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in MR AEERIMRIZETH
accordance with the statute, proceed with proper expedition TE 0 AIEE HBER B AR R
to convene an EGM. BRIKE o
Pursuant to the Companies Act: BEARNE
@  Shareholders holding 10% or more of the paid- @ REXEZXKBHEFEBR
up capital of the Company which carries the right R EEE RA10%
to vote at general meetings as at the date of the A LW ERERIRER
deposit of the requisition, may request the Board AEELIREMNRE -
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must AEREETELRRK
specify the objects of the meeting, be signed by R - EEHE
the Shareholders concerned and deposited at the KA RE B &Y
registered office of the Company for the attention of RWWBEBRBAREZE
the Board or the Company Secretaries; 2 BZREXRQTH
AL SR (AT AR
HAREEZEHAT
W)
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The Board shall proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days of the deposit of such written requisition.
Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such written requisition; and

If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene an
EGM, the Shareholders who deposited requisition, or
any of them representing more than 50% of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves, in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors, convene
an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from that date.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In general, subject to the paragraph below, no resolution
may be proposed at a general meeting (whether it is an EGM

or an AGM) if such resolution is not included in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, if the proposal

is to amend an existing resolution set out in the notice

convening the general meeting and such amendment

is within the scope of the notice, such amendment may
be made if approved by the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution.
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On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which
the requisition related; or (i) not less than 100 Shareholders
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than $$500, the Company shall be
under a duty to:

(a) Give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and

(b) Circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of
the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given
to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general
effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him/her notice of meetings of the Company. The requisition
shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
least 6 weeks before the meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder must provide his/her
full name, contact details and identification, in the originally signed
written requisition, notice or statement (as the case may be), in
order to give effect thereto. Information of the Shareholder may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to the Constitution. An up-to-date version of the
Constitution is available on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company. Shareholders may refer to the Constitution for further
details of the rights of Shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings shall be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company after each general
meeting.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”)
are pleased to present their statement to the Shareholders together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the statement
of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

In the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group
and the statement of financial position and statement of changes
in equity of the Company are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2020 and the financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Financial Highlights of this
annual report. Discussions on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with its key stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group are included in the Chairman’s Statement,
Investor Relations and Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
and in this Directors' Statement.

The Group places much importance on environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, continuously processes environmental
transformation of production systems, promotes the implementation of
clean production, and continuously formulates and improves a series of
regulation policies to improve our environmental management, laying
a solid foundation for future development. Please refer to the separate
2019 Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG’) Report of the Group,
sent together with this Annual report, for further details of the Group’s
ESG-related risks, environmental policies and performance and other ESG
information.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company is committed to sharing its development and achievements
with shareholders through stable and sustainable dividend payment whilst
maintaining an optimal capital structure which allows the Company to take
advantage of any investment and expansion opportunities that may arise
from time to time.

The Board shall consider the following factors before declaring or
recommending dividends, including without limitation to: (i) financial
results; (i) cash flow situation; (iii) availability of distributable profits; (iv)
business conditions and strategies; (v) future operations and earnings; (vi)
capital requirements and expenditure plans.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
Constitution and the applicable laws and regulations. The Board will review
relevant dividend policy as appropriate from time to time and there can be
no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 85 to 225 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMB10 cents (2019: RMB8 cents) per
ordinary share in respect of the year to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 6 July 2021. Subject to the approval
of Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 23 July
2021,

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 225 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or
the laws of Singapore, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
amounted to approximately RMB481,293,000 of which RMB117,162,100 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 8% (2019: less than 7%) of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 26.7%
(2019: 35.6%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 9% (2019: 12%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB5,585,960 (2019: RMB553,996).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Liu Xingxu
Zhang Qingjin
Yan Yunhua

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ong Kian Guan
Li Shengxiao
Ong Wei Jin
Li Hongxing

Pursuant to Articles 89 and 90 of the Constitution, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Mr. Ong Kian Guan and Mr. Li Hongxing shall retire by rotation at the 2021
AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARIES

Biographical details of the Directors, the senior management of the Group
and the Company Secretaries are set out on this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 March 2020,
unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of the service contract
by either party giving to the other not less than six months’ prior notice in
writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director for
a term of three years, unless terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors' remuneration is subject to approval by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group. Details of the Directors’

remuneration are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the
Group are all Directors and senior management of the Company. Details
of the highest paid individuals are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As set out in Article 147 of the Constitution, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in Note 39 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in shares of the Company, as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the
Companies Act and Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS
3y}
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BIFERERS | — 8RB BHRRME
9B REBEFEEEBRFEAE

IS EERESNAEERHENAK
NEIREAEFME R BRI L AN EE %
BMEBERNTMNRS - KA RF
BEERNEERBEAES °

EERFETRAERKROVES

750*7f%5¢+ A=+—8 K&K

NAIEZEITHRAERARRARBRGOFERT
IR A RDASE 16415 M 3B 5 K B E 150
FIEARARFENELMANER
AR IR TR BT 8 1 PR AUIZ XE ST A ZA
MERNE) R ZFTRERSET ¢

Number of ordinary shares interested

EERENEBEREA
Approximate
percentage’ of
the Company’s
Name of Directors/ issued share
Chief Executive Corporate capital
//_ _ Personal interests interests Total interests  {LhA DA T2 1T
FETHAEHE BIARER ANRIER wiER RAMOEIH
Mr. Liu Xingxu 600,000 413,007,999 413,607,999 35.30%
RIE B E (Note MiI5E @)
Ms.Yan Yunhua 300,000 276,465,000 276,765,000 23.62%
BiaEL LT (Note FI3E (b))
Mr. Ong Kian Guan 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
FRREE
Ma Tongsheng 8,000 - 8,000 0.01%
BEAESLE
# The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2020.
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Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Pioneer Top Holdings Limited (“Pioneer Top"), an
investment holding company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
Mr. Liu Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top,
and held the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7
beneficiaries (including Mr. Zhang Qingjin) under a trust agreement dated 26
July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Mr. Liu Xingxu is irrevocably granted
the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights and the rights to the day-to-
day management of Pioneer Top.

(b) These shares were held by Go Power Investments Limited ("Go Power”), an
investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan Yunhua beneficially
owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held the remaining 87.26%
of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of 1,463 beneficiaries under
a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Ms. Yan
Yunhua is irrevocably granted the absolute discretion to exercise the voting
rights and the rights to the day-to-day management of Go Power.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act
and Section 352 of the SFO, or which has been notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

OPTIONS

The Group has no share option scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has no equity-linked agreements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the following parties had interests of 5% or more
in the issued shares and underlying shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS

"R

PR SR 9 160 o
7RI B30 AT (T AR SR ER ik

FERRARS - HERDNERE
& RS

N_Z_ZFF+_A=1+—H"

7NN

BIEAQ T&%%M&;%&%EMH%

336 fi&

/8

AlFENERERM  TI&IR

RNABID BT TEA 5% A _FHRERS ¢

Number of issued
ordinary shares

Approximate percentage?
of the Company’s issued share

interested capital

BEERN EEDRB BT

Name of substantial Shareholders Capacity 217 BRAS A A

TERRER 14 ZRREE ERil

Pioneer Top (Note B 5+ (a)) Beneficial owner 413,007,999 35.25%
EnEAA

Go Power (Note Ff{3 (b)) Beneficial owner 276,465,000 23.60%
EwmEEA

Nitro (Note M1 5E () Beneficial owner 112,640,000 9.61%
ERBEAA

Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | L.P. Interest of controlled corporation 112,640,000 9.61%
(Note P () XimiE R

The percentage represents the number of issued ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31

December 2020.
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Pioneer Top is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Mr. Liu
Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top, and held
the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7 beneficiaries
under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016, including 7% for Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
an executive Director and the Company's Chief Executive Officer; 7% for Mr. Li
Yushun and 7% for Mr. Wang Nairen, the Company’s senior management; 7% for
Mr. Ru Zhengtao, 7% for Mr. Zhu Xingye (retired) and 7% for Mr. Shang Dewei,
the Company’s employees; and 16% for Mr. Li Buwen (retired), a former executive
Director. Mr. Liu Xingxu has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights
held by Pioneer Top in the Company in accordance with the trust agreement.
Such interest held by Pioneer Top has also been disclosed as the interest of Mr.
Liu Xingxu in the above section headed “Directors'and Chief Executive’s Interests
in Shares”.
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(b) Go Power is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan
Yunhua beneficially owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held
the remaining 87.26% of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of
1,463 beneficiaries under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Ms. Yan Yunhua
has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held by Go Power in
the Company in accordance with the trust agreement. Such interest held by Go
Power has also been disclosed as the interest of Ms. Yan Yunhua in the above
section headed “Directors’and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares"

(©) Nitro is an investment holding company established in the Cayman Islands and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | L.P

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other than

the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed "Directors’

and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which are the related party transactions set out in Note
39 to the financial statements that constituted continuing connected
transactions, and has complied with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua and Mr. Zhang
Qingjin (being executive Directors) collectively held an aggregate of
approximately 10.6% interest in XLX Chem, and together are the largest
shareholder of XLX Chem and have the largest influence through their
shareholders’ rights on the major decisions in XLX Chem. Therefore, XLX
Chem, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively "XLX Chem Group”) are
deemed as the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A.07 of the
Listing Rules.
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NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Equipment Purchase Agreement on 30
December 2016 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX Chem
Group agreed to supply and provide the relevant installation services
for equipment, including pipes, vessels and pressure vessels, to Henan
XLX. Accordingly, the Group benefits from reliable and timely delivery of
equipment and cost effectiveness. Pursuant to the agreement, the prices for
equipment purchases are determined by the Group's internal qualification
and tendering procedures with potential suppliers of equipment, which
vary depending on the product type, quantity and quality specifications as
required by Henan XLX.

The Equipment Purchase Agreement has an original term commencing
from 1 January 2017 up to and including 31 December 2019. In line with the
expanding sales network and increasing production capacity of the Group,
there has been an increasing demand of equipment by the Group. In order
to provide flexibility and rates for the needs of the Group for equipment
to support its production, Henan XLX entered into a new Equipment
Purchase Agreement with XLX China Group on 24 December 2018, among
other things, to revise the annual caps for the 12 months ended/ending
31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively, and to expand the term to the
year ending 31 December 2020. The Group has set the annual cap for
the amount paid by the Group to XLX Chem Group for the purchases of
equipment under the agreement at RMB90,000,000 for FY2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount paid by
the Group for the purchases of equipment from XLX Chem Group was
approximately RMB86,803,000. The amount of RMB74,363,000 has been
included in spare parts inventories in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. Besides, the Group paid RMB12,440,000 as anti-corrosion
service fees which has been accounted for as general and administrative
expenses in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available from independent suppliers; and

3) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the SEHK.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF HENAN XLX AND XINXING
CHEMICAL

On 19 June 2020, the Company and Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group
CO, LTDX* A D b B T ¥ & B R 9 B IR 2 7)) (‘Henan XLX),
a subsidiary then owned as to 78.37% by the Company, entered into
investment agreements with Central Enterprises Poor Regions Industry
Investment Fund CO., LTD. (FR{IDEBRMEEFREESRKRN
BIRATD (“the Investor”) (collectively, the “Investment Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, The Investor agreed to subscribe
for an aggregate of 50,000,000 shares in Henan XLX for RMB200 million.
As at 30 June 2020, Henan XLX has received an aggregate amount of
RMB200,000,000 from the Investor with respect to the issue of 1,895,480,000
shares. Upon completion of the Investment Agreement in June 2020, Henan
XLX remains as a subsidiary of the Company and is owned as to 76.31% by
the Company. Details of the shareholding of the relevant Investors in Henan
XLX are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 21 June 2020.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 31 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at the date of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. These financial statements should give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period of a particular year and on the financial performance of the Group
for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
should:

(a) select and apply consistently appropriate accounting policies, and
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgement and estimation;

(b) report the reasons for any serious deviation from accounting
practice; and

(@} prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless
it is inappropriate to assume that the Group could continue to
operate.

The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of accounting records
in order to secure the assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors
are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent and
check any fraudulences and irregularities.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-
appointment as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors:

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
Director Director
19 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY ZBETRE

e
EY:

To the members of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd
(Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise
the statements of financial position of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2020, the statements of changes in equity of the Group and
the Company and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the statement of financial position and the statement of changes
in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act”), Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS (1)s”) and International Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“IFRSs”) so as to give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and of the consolidated
financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing ("ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authority ("ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public
Accountants and Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF CASH GENERATING UNITS (“CGUs")

The management has performed the mandatory annual impairment
assessments of the following CGUs with allocated goodwill as at 31
December 2020:

Coal mining operations (“Coal mining CGU") with property, plant
and equipment, coal mining rights, and goodwill amounting to
RMB725,353,000, RMB84,643,000 and RMB25,361,000, respectively;
and

Nucleoside products CGU with goodwill of RMB34,021,000 and
other non-financial assets of RMB223,313,000 that comprise
property, plant and equipment, intangible asset, and right-of-use
assets.

Management has determined the recoverable amount of the CGUs based
on value in use calculations using discounted cash flows projected for the
CGUs. As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
key assumptions included budgeted sales, growth rates, gross margins,
operating costs, commodity prices and the discount rates that consider
the specific risks relating to the respective CGUs. Based on the impairment
assessments, management has concluded that the CGUs are not impaired.
We determined this to be a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments were complex and involved significant management
judgements in making assumptions about the future market and economic
conditions, revenue growth, margin and efficiency improvements.

As part of our audit, we obtained an understanding of management’s
bases and processes to determine the carrying amounts and recoverable
amounts of the respective CGUs. We checked that the CGUs cash flow
projections were based on approved management budgets that reflected
business plans and the estimates of coal outputs and mining reserves of
the Coal mining CGU. We engaged our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in assessing management’s valuation methodologies and the key
assumptions used in the respective discounted cash flow computations.
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We evaluated the key cash flows assumptions used by considering our
findings on past budget variances, comparing management’s budgeted
sales and operating costs to historical data and information on expected
efficiency improvements; corroborating these budgets against economic
and industry forecasts from external sources; and additionally in the case
of the Coal mining CGU, comparing the mineable reserves inputs that
budgeted sales are based on to the mines' proven and probable reserves
estimates provided by the relevant authority; and comparing commodity
prices used to external observable data.

We assessed the discount rates used by the management by comparing to
external data of comparable companies. We performed sensitivity analyses
of the impairment assessments to reasonable changes in key assumptions.
We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures made on the
impairment assessments and related sensitivity analyses that are included
in Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements and those
disclosures related to significant accounting judgements and estimates that
are included in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group completed an
acquisition of controlling equity interest in Xinxiang Ruicheng Technology
Co., Ltd (the “Acquiree”) for purchase consideration of RMB141,525,000 that
is accounted for as a business combination (the “Transaction”).

The Group has applied the acquisition method to account for this
Transaction and performed the purchase price allocation ("PPA") exercise
with the assistance of external valuation specialist to allocate the purchase
consideration to the fair value of the identified assets and liabilities of
the Acquiree. We determined the accounting of the Transaction and PPA
exercise to be a key audit matter because it is a material transaction and
significant management judgement is required in the PPA exercise to
determine the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and to identify
intangible assets acquired in the acquisition.

As part of our audit, we have amongst others, read the relevant sale and
purchase agreement, share transfer agreements, Board meeting minutes
and announcement of Xinxiang Ruicheng Technology Co., Ltd to obtain
an understanding of the Transaction its key terms and conditions; assessed
the accounting treatment applied by management to the Transaction and
measurement of the fair value of the consideration transferred based on the
requirements of IFRS 3 Business Combinations; and traced the issuance of
shares issued as purchase consideration to the share register.
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We reviewed management’s identification of the assets and liabilities
acquired by corroborating the results of the identification against our
discussion with management and our understanding of the Acquiree’s
business. We have assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the external valuation specialist engaged by management. We involved our
internal specialist to assist us in reviewing the valuation methodologies and
key assumptions used by management and the external valuation specialist
in the fair valuation of Acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities. We
assessed the reasonableness of the key valuation assumptions such as cash
flow projections, discount rates, growth rates, comparable market prices,
and depreciation rates by comparing and analyzing these assumptions
against both internal information, historical data, our understanding of
commonly accepted valuation practices and available market data. We have
also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures made on this Transaction that
are included in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, SFRS (I)s and IFRSs, and
for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit
the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain
accountability of assets.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional EREKBEBEBREZERFEEZA —
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 73 » I FI1EH B8 #IE I £ B2 BE
also: RIFEHERERRREE - TN

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to
be kept by the Group have been properly kept in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Lai Hiang.

Ernst & Young LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore

19 March 2021

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

ESEEEEANTNERAERE
EBMMBEMBEN T T AEE
HEZRBIE - UHEE M ERR
FER - RMAEESEERNE
2 BEBRHT - MY MANE
ZERABEMEE-

BB = BRI T S8 E K EZEFE
URBEENEZER  HETPeRRME
BEZBIE T IR A BRI F AN E KR
(REEEEECZEQHETER -

BATERERZESRE—MNERMARE
BB 5% 8 12 45 0 O 98 321 B ST Il E B0
# o M Eh Al 8E48 200 M FIR B 1% K
ERHERRENEER R MEER
BERETEE -

REEBRZZEGRRBRNER  HMAEE
TEAHRRVHERRELTONREANS
B A AEREZFE - RIS EZH
AR S PR ZF IR - HARIEHRLE
IERFAREZEAGIN  HEHDHBER
THRMFEE NEER MRS HBENE
B ARSEZ TRERAAEMTEHE
BELEBR RN E -

HMERNERRENRE

HPRR  EEECRRZERNENE
RRFLEEREESEBARTFNGE R
HipFosk o

ABY BB REMBEL ABABS
*E -

RKEFTEI BT
BEBE DR A& AT
N

—E-—%=A+A1H



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEeBER HMZ2HEKER rorme financial year ended 31 December 2020 82 —E = FF+=H=+—HIFFF

2020 2019
. —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥ TR ARETIT
Revenue 'ON 6 10,444,722 8,928,255
Cost of sales SHE AR (8,230,163) (6,987,218)
Gross profit EF 2,214,559 1,941,037
Other income and gains HAYA KMz 6 198,730 160,349
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEMATZ (620,599) (515,827)
General and administrative expenses —MITHAY (624,260) (661,442)
Other expenses B (129,755) (16,712)
Finance costs B TR AR 8 (401,379) (374,076)
Impairment losses on financial assets S RIEERRESE 7 (5,640) (10,007)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates FE(RESE A T]
(B18),&F (582) 2,298
Profit before tax BRBLAT R A 7 631,074 525,620
Income tax expense FriSfif sz 11 (106,926) (111,557)
Profit for the year FREF 524,148 414,063
Profit attributable to: FEASER :
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE7 YN 347,662 316,495
Non-controlling interests I 176,486 97,568
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2E U AL 524,148 414,063
T
Earnings per share attributable to BAREBERER
ordinary equity holders of the parent BEANELERER
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) EARR#E
(BIRARES) 13 29.67 2701
T

EOED —F - TFEH
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Statements of Financial Position
Eji%;lﬁiﬂrﬂsﬁ As at 31 December 2000 R = E - F#E+—H=+—H

Group Company
REE ARTF

2020 2019 2020 2019
vl T ¥ et T NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE AR¥T T AREETIT AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #12 « Bi&E &% 14 15,000,465 10,474,752 - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 1,140,330 1,079,808 - -
Intangible assets B EE 16 63,385 46,883 - -
Goodwill eSS 17 63,022 29,001 = -
Coal mining rights R SR 18 84,643 86,180 - -
Equity investments at fair value ##/2ATAEET AIBas
through profit or loss HIIRAEIR A 19 6,708 6,708 - -
Prepayments for purchases BB MRS MR
of property, plant and 18 B MERRIR
equipment 20 120,060 844,713 = -
Due from related companies  fEUR F8:E A RIZ1E 24 = 33,788 - -
Pledged time deposits BT B 25 1,400 - - -
Deferred tax assets REFIB A B 34 100,430 93,860 - -
Other assets HEE 14 101,115 100,877 - -
Investments in associates REEERRIEE 37 94,411 16,993 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARIEE 44 - - 1,672,275 1,620,755
Total non-current assets FRBEEL 16,775,969 12,813,563 1,672,275 1,620,755
Current assets REBEE
Equity investments at fair value &2 T{EET A Bz
through profit or loss IR & 19 16,092 20,903 16,092 20,903
Prepayments SN O 20 514,181 402,564 - 254
Deposits and other receivables %4 & E th fE Uk
g 20 509,988 454,609 - -
Inventories 7E 21 992,149 083,604 - -
Other assets HiEE 14 13,441 13,441 - -
Derivative financial PTESmIA
instruments 22 = 1,358 = -
Trade and bills receivables B 5 WA &
U EE 23 743,392 393,419 - -
Due from related companies/ FEURESEAT]
subsidiaries L PNGIESE] 24 1,804 745 139,398 7,600
Income tax recoverable BBy - 22,865 - -
Pledged time deposits B EHRER 25 706,035 499,346 - -
Cash and cash equivalents BENMIREEEY 25 682,041 884,448 18,976 16,086
Total current assets REEEARE 4,179,123 3,677,302 174,466 44,843
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Group Company
TEE FIN/NE|
2020 2019 2020 2019
vl T ¥ et T NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BEE AR¥T T AREETIT AR¥T T ARET T
Current liabilities HREIEE
Trade payables B 5 RETFIE 26 508,978 366,636 - -
Bills payable JERTEE 27 1,110,814 809,050 = -
Contract liabilities AHaE 28 818,149 582,181 - -
Accruals and other payables  fETE &
H e /I8 28 1,847,288 1,091,793 16,462 17,427
Due to related companies/a FEfTEEE AR,
subsidiary o) NEIE e 24 12,239 6,092 16,850 7,268
Income tax payable FESERS R 42,709 29,720 = -
Deferred grants TR AL 29 9,317 7,976 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 15 45,343 102,887 - -
Loans from non-controlling IR ERE R
interests 30 24,870 25,000 = -
Interest-bearing bank and HERITR
other borrowings HiE 31 4,137,660 2,774,169 137,450 181,381
Bonds payable FENES 33 - 500,000 - -
Total current liabilities RS ERRE 8,557,367 6,295,504 170,762 206,076
Net current (liabilities)/ KB (BE) BE
assets B (4,378,244) (2,618,202) 3,704 (161,233)
Total assets less current HEERREBARS
liabilities 12,397,725 10,195,361 1,675,979 1,459,522
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Due to a related company FE BN RIZRIE 24 114 1457 - -
Loans from non-controlling JEFE R E R
interests 30 - 23,670 - -
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRIT R EAME
other borrowings = 31 5,210,059 3,739,087 - -
Deferred grants TERERHBh 29 82,105 69,253 - -
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 27,198 67,513 - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEBE 34 50,143 52,715 = -
Provision for rehabilitation VRIEBHE 32 24,723 24,276 - -
Accruals and other payables — fEZTE A K& H{thfE
I8 28 89,117 107,019 = -
Bonds payable ERHES 33 489,892 388,697 - -
Total non-current liabilities  JEREN & S48 5,973,351 4,473,681 - -
Net assets REE 6,424,374 5,721,680 1,675,979 1,459,522
RELED —TTFFHR
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Statements of Financial Position
Ejﬁ%;lﬁiﬂ:i% As at 31 December 2000 R = E - F#E+—H=+—H

Group Company
rEE NN
2020 2019 2020 2019
- Imb 5 T T bl T HF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARETT BNGERWE ARYET T NGNS
Equity s
Equity attributable to BATEE AEML
owners of the parent R
Share capital %N 35 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686 1,194,686
Special reserve Rl 36 4,599 2433 - -
Statutory reserve fund EERES 36 200,307 145518 - -
Other reserve HibfER 36 2,217,760 2,176,500 - -
Retained profits {RBHA 913,081 716,104 481,293 264,836
4,530,433 4,235,241 1,675,979 1,459,522
Non-controlling interests JEE AR R 1,893,941 1,486,439 - -
Total equity AR 6,424,374 5,721,680 1,675,979 1,459,522
Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
2198 Bz
Director Director
EE EF
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Statements of Changes in Equity

RESBEIR  rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2020 42 —F —FF+ A =+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARDTERAEL
Special
reserve Non-
Share  Statutory Other  safetyfund  Retained controlling
capital  reservefund reserve  HSTRE profits interests  Total equity
BERE AEREE  RAtRE RES  RERR FEREs s
(Note35)  (Note36)  (Note36) (Note36)
(WiEs)  (Wes6)  (WaEse)  (Wi36)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARMETR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETz ARMTn ARETn ARMTR
Group 158
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-85-A-H 1,194,686 145518 2,176,500 2433 716104 4235241 1486439 5,721,680
Profitfor the year TEREH - - - - MTE6  MTE62 176486 524,148
Total comprehensive incomefortheyear  ER2TNALE - - - - 37662 347662 176486 524148
Disposal of partial nterests HENBLAH AR
in subsidiaries without losing control MR EEHE 37(¢) - - 41,260 = = 4260 192220 233480
Acquisiton of subsidaries e lf=INg 370a) = - = - - - 182 152822
Transferto statutory reserve fund SETETER 36 - 54,789 - - (54,789) - = -
Safety product costfund REERNAES - - - 2,166 (2,166) = = =
Dividends paid to TNEHERER
non-controling shareholders BRE = = - = - - (114020 (114026)
Final 2019 dividends paid SRZE-NERERE 12 - - - - (93730)  (93,730) - (93,730)
At31 December 2020 -3
+-A=1-H 1,194,686 200307 2,217,760 4599 913,081 4530433 1893941 6424374
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Statements of Changes in Equity

EEBEHR ore financial year ended 31 December 2020 82 = E = FF +=H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

YNl 2: PN
Special reserve Non-
Statutory safety fund Retained controling
Sharecapital  resenvefund  Otherresene  BTERE profits Total interests — Total equity

BEORE  EEREE  EREE RE:  RE&T B SARER iy

(Note 35) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)

(BsEss)  (sEse) (W) (Bi3e)
Notes RMB1000 RMVB1000 RMB1000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB100
WE  ARETR ARETT ARETn ARMTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Group T&E
At1January 2019 R=B-nE-A-A 1,104,686 4575 2060422 2143 618520 3921814 90985 4912799
Profitfor the year ERaH - - - 316495 316495 97568 414063
Total comprehensive incomefor theyear ~ FRZERALE - - - - 316495 316495 97568 414063
Disposal of partial nterests HEMBATR AR
in subsidiares without losing control AL AERE 370 - - 187,174 - - 187,174 609,326 796,500
Acquisition of subsiciaries =N 374 - - - - - 5267 2267
Transfer o statutory reserve fund SRTETEED 3% - 99,765 - (99765) - - -
Acquisition of non-contralling interests WERHERER - - (71,09) - - (71,09) (428304) (499400)
Dividends paid to TN EHERRRORE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - (35.808) (35808)
Final 2018 dividends paid HZE-NERERE 0 - - - - (n9ie) (19146) - (19140)
At31December 2019 RIB-NE
+ZA=+-H 1,194686 145518 2176500 2433 TIGIA 4041 1486439 5721680
|
Share capital Retained profits Total equity
[ RE &R MRS
(Note 35)
(Pff=E35)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTFT ARETT
Company VNN
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZEF—-H—H 1,194,686 264,836 1,459,522
Profit for the year REERR - 310,187 310,187
Final 2019 dividends paid (Note 12) IR ZE-NFRRKRE
(MF3E12) - (93,730) (93,730)
At 31 December 2020 R-TB-EHF
+=HA=+—H 1,194,686 481,293 1,675,979
|
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE-hE—HA—H 1,194,686 286,081 1,480,767
Profit for the year AEERR - 97,901 97,901
Final 2018 dividends paid (Note 12) TNZZE—\FREAKE
(MfEE12) - (119,146) (119,146)
At 31 December 2019 R-B—NEF
+=HA=+—H 1,194,686 264,836 1,459,522
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HMEBEERER  rorthe financial year ended 31 December 2020 B8 = E = FF+=H=+—HIFFF

2020 2019
. —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥ TR ARETIT
Profit before tax BRI A 631,074 525,620
Adjustments for: KR
Finance costs BAREARAR 8 401,379 374,076
Amortisation of intangible assets m A E#H 7 7,409 6,202
Amortisation of coal mining rights R RS 7 1,537 1,992
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - B R
equipment e 7 723,266 673,564
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER
equipment HAEIEE e 6 (27,280) (29,347)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEGCRREERN
Was 6 - (5946)
Bank interest income RITHLEMA 6 (18,711) (19,229)
Dividend income from equity investments 3R EIZAFEETA
at fair value through profit or loss BRI E
PB A 6 = (494)
Gain on other investments Hhig g e 6 (2,706) (5,868)
Loss/(gain) on derivative financial TEERT A
instruments EiE () 6 2,194 (5)
Loss on fair value change of financial T AEMNATE
instruments through profit or loss b)) p= 7 4,811 16,275
Exchange (gain)/loss from bank loans RITEREN,
(Wzs) BHE (32,076) 5211
Gain on bargain purchases HEBEWR 6 - (4,543)
Impairment losses on financial assets B EMNREEIE 7 5,640 10,007
Impairment of property, plant and Y% - BB Kk
equipment RE 7 113,109 -
Impairment of inventories FERE 7 1,727 1,443
Amortisation of deferred grants i R A B 8 6 (12,670) (8,051)
Amortisation of other assets Efth & EE 1,073 13,441
Interest accretion on bonds payable FEEHFIBIE 0 4,195 1,862
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 7 53,618 48,547
Share of losses/(profits) of associates by kNG|
B8 Cafl) 582 (2,298)
Fair value change of derivative financial s T EAFE
instruments 2E) 6 - (1,906)
FEOED —T-FFEH 99



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRERER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 &% —

EoFFEF A= —HIFFE

2020 2019
—EZHF — 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE AR¥TT ARETTT
Operating cash flows before changesin B & RS F & &
working capital HERE 1,858,171 1,600,553
Decrease in inventories FERb 44,774 87,092
Increase in trade and bills receivables E 5 FEUGRIA K FE IR
ESEsl (296,738) (18,160)
Decrease in other receivables ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁl%ﬁlﬁﬁd\ 387,431 294,337
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and Fa a5k
prepayments (i'jJ[])//DZ’J\ (111,617) 135,897
Movement in balances with related RAE N R AL ERE S
companies 3,740 21,747
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 IR R FER
= Srbili] 160,487 516,592
Decrease in pledged time deposits EHIRE BESOR (301,959) (196,137)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other FEst B A M E MR
payables FEE, CRd) 1,617 (53920
Cash flows generated from operations RETHELENRSE
e 1,745,906 2,388,001
Government grants received B U BB T 47 B 29 26,863 7,030
Interest received 2UF B 19,768 18,172
Tax paid BAHIE (88,508) (111,734)
Net cash flows generated from operating & EEELWES
activities mEFHE 1,704,029 2,301,469
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEESRE
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand &% « K= X%
equipment FriS 508 118,706 45,046
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB W% - HE K& E (3,920,760) (2,867,077)
Cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries EENBARENRE (62,525) (6,627)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBRRIFE
B = (967)
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE (9,253) (5573)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets &1 B & E 5
;I8 = (18,706)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W FE I i o = (499,400)
Proceeds from disposal of other investments & E At & FriS RUR - 81,500
Purchase of investment in associates BEREEATIRE (24,000) (20,810)
Dividend income received BURAR B E - 494
Gain on other investments and derivative EREMIEE RITAE
financial instruments received ST BEINES 512 5,873
Purchase of derivative financial instruments  BEELTA SR T A (6,100) (500)
Disposal of derivative financial instruments  tHEHTAE SR T A 6,610 -
Cash paid for purchasing business BEEBENES (5,004) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities REFEIFTARERE
i (3,901,814) (3,286,747)
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2020 2019
. —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥ TR ARETIT
Cash flows from financing activities BETHRERE
Dividend paid on ordinary shares BT mALAS B (93,730) (119,146)
Dividend paid on non-controlling shares BT IR IS (114,026) (67,808)
Injection of non-controlling interests IR TE 233,480 796,500
Payments of lease liabilities XHHEEaE 15 (111,112) (113,933)
Proceed:s from issue of a long-term bond BITRAGESMGHIEAE 3 97,000 194,000
Repayment of a long-term bond BERHES 31 (500,000) -
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B R EHESRIE 31 7,843,231 5,195,290
Increase in pledged time deposits EHIRE AR S N 93,870 6,129
Interest paid 2 E (352,235) (339,850)
Repayments of loans and borrowings EBEERLER 31 (5,101,100) (4,027,607)
Net cash flows from financing activities REITHREBHRESRE
FH 1,995,378 1,523,575

Net (decrease)/increasein cashand cash BHERESZEEY

equivalents CRA) /tEhnEsE (202,407) 538,297
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ FHER S LIRS EEY

year 25 884,448 346,151
Cash and cash equivalentsattheend of ERBEERBREZEY

year 682,041 884,448

]

Analysis of balance of cash and cash BeRBESEEYELH

equivalents Baii)
Cash at banks and on hand and cash RGBS AR R 2R Pt

and cash equivalents as stated in the ZIRTFEREBREE R

consolidated statement of financial R RESEEYD

position 25 682,041 884,448

]

During the financial year, there were acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment with a total cost of RMB5,478,488,000 (2019: RMB2,348,433,000)
of which RMB447,000 (2019: RMB440,000) pertains to the provision for
rehabilitation. In addition, accruals and other payables increased by
RMB825,357,000 was unpaid (2019: RMB49,204,000 was paid) (Note 28). Bills
payable for property, plant and equipment increased by RMB241,659,000
(2019: RMB40,800,000) was unpaid. Prepayments for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment decreased by RMB758,441,000. The VAT
input was paid to gain the property, plant and equipment with a total cost
of RMB268,176,000. The net cash outflow for the purchase of property, plant
and equipment was RMB3,920,760,000 (2019: RMB2,867,077,000).

RAMBFEE - BEME - BERZEN
R B NREE 5,478488,000 T (—ZE— 1
& AR#23484330007T) * Hf AREE
447,000 C(ZZF—NF + AR¥440,0007T)
BRIERERR - 1N BT ERRHEA
JE {5 FRIE 0 A R #8 825,357,000 (= F
—NE : B ARK492040007T) ¢ MK
AT (MI5E28) © W12~ B Mk B r e
TR A R #241659000 T (= — A
F: AR 408000007T ) © M A It e
BEWE - WE MEHEIEB NTERMRIER
D AR 758441,0007C ° SLEVS W E ~ B
BEREBEIMTHEER - BRABARE
268,1760007C ° EEE W% - HE L& EH
Rem b FE A AR 3920,760,0007T (=
T—HF  ARE2867,077,0007T) °
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Singapore on 17 July 2006 under the Singapore Companies
Act and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898. The principal place of business of the Group is located at
Xinxiang Economic Development Zone (Xiaoji Town), Henan Province, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activity of the Company
is investment holding. Particulars of the Group's subsidiaries and associates
are disclosed in Note 44 and 37(b) respectively.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
(International) (“SFRS (1)) and International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs").

For the purpose of SFRS (l)s, financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance and complied with IFRS are deemed to have also complied with
SFRS (I)s. SFRS (I) comprise standards and interpretations that are equivalent
to IFRS. All references to SFRS (I) and IFRS are referred to collectively as “IFRS”
in these financial statements, unless specified otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”) and all values in the tables
are rounded to the nearest thousand (‘RMB'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB4,378 million
(2019: RMB2,618 million), the Company had net current assets of
approximately 4 million (2019: net current liabilities of approximately 161
million), as at 31 December 2020. After taking into account the available
unutilised banking facilities, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
financial obligations as and when they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e,, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(@) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries in the PRC is based on the subsidiaries’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. Profits reflected in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs may differ from
those reflected in the PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries,
prepared for PRC financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations, profits available for distribution by the PRC
subsidiaries are based on the amounts stated in the PRC statutory financial
statements.

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except that in the current financial year, the Group has
adopted all the new and amended standards which are relevant to the
Company and are effective for annual financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. The adoption of these standards did not have any
material effect on the financial performance or position of the Group and
the Company.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretation
applicable to the Group that have been issued but not yet effective:

Description

Amendment to IFRS 16 Leases: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

23 CEEMERERERER

REBWREA TN IERANRARRINEE
fofB i R AR AR M R

Effective for annual
periods beginning on
or after

RT3 A#Mg 2%
PR Y FE R

REATS R ERISE 1657 [HE | &
17K COVID-19 18R Z R

1 June 2020
—ZE-FTFRA—H

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, |AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, |FRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures, |FRS 4 Insurance Contracts, IFRS 16 Leases:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

BRI RSB ot [ A L
A B ERIE 0% (24
TA: #RRE] BBV E®
HERNE 7R (B LA - #EF
BRI RS 2ERIE 457 [(Re S
A7) - BBR B RS AR 1657
[FHE MBI - FUREAELRE -
FIEE

1 January 2021
—T-—%—H—H

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceed's
before Intended Use

B e ERE 1658 [ £  BE
Rkt | ERTAR « BEE A A2 AT 1 January 2022
125008 —E-__F—A—H

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Bl et ERIE 3758 [ 24 - A

Contingent Assets: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract B &R (i AEE | (BN ¢ a1 1 January 2022
BR - BITERZ B —E-—_%—AF—H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 BRI ERR - N\FEZ 1 January 2022
ToTFEZFENE —T--%—A—H

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: BIFR & 2ERIE 1 5% [ B R EZE5) ]
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current BRI - EaESEAREIIE 1 January 2023

RED —T-=%—H—H

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

BRI EEANF 1055k [A54
FH#E | MBI GRS 2857
[RERBZ LA RAEEPRE &
R REEBREBENRNE
EhEZHENEENERHA

Date to be determined
FERE

The directors expect that the adoption of the other standards and
interpretation above will have no material impact on the financial

statements in the period of initial application.

EEFMFRD LR A ER R RBETE
HEREREEN B RRELEAY
@O

MELED T -TEFER

105




106

Notes to Financial Statements

MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 B = E = FF+=H=+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December 2020. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not
have control or joint control of those policies.

The Group account for its investments in associates using the equity
method from the date on which it becomes an associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group'’s share of the net fair value of the investee’s identifiable
assets and liabilities represents goodwill and is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment is included as income in the determination of the entity’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates are carried in the
balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of net assets of the associates. The profit or loss reflects the share of results
of the operations of the associates. Distributions received from associates
reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Where there has been a
change recognised in other comprehensive income by the associates,
the Group recognises its share of such changes in other comprehensive
income. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associates.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in associate. The Group determines at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared as the same

reporting date as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are mad to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Group’s principal operations are conducted in the PRC. The directors
have determined the currency other primary economic environment in
which each entity in the Group operates, i.e., functional currency, to be
RMB. Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and services including
major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss.

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESBERHEE(E&)
(CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES BER
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: i N ORI E A - EARE AR
3
(@) thepartyisa person or a close member of that person’s family is and (@) B ATHZALTHERNE - B
that person: AT
0 has control or joint control over the Group; 0) 2 ok A AR
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAKEEABERTEN:
9
(i) isamember of the key management personnel of the Group (i) RAEERNEEZHFAF
or a parent of the Group; MEZEBABRKE
or 5%

it

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (b) 1|J] T FIERMEHER - B — K2

HM

@) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ZERBEAEEE SR —
Ez0)p A= VNCIlE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (ih ZEBRS—HERBNEE
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other @aﬁé%ﬁ%(ﬁﬁﬁ F'ﬁ
entity); EEMERAE - W E A
gﬁ@ﬁ%W?@Tm%g
NRIREEDRE)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (i) ZERBEAKEERR S
party; =HMEERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other (iv) —RERAF=HFEENS
entity is an associate of the third entity; BB —REBR%ZE
=HEREEQR
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit Vv HREBRAAEEFIAKHEH
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the B ERNESNRmMm&R L
Group; RRREFIETE
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person V)  RERR @ TR ALTES
identified in (a); EEEE %'J
(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (vii) ﬁﬁ?ﬁ MATHZE ag/\ﬁﬁ
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of AREN  HBRZEE(K
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and ZEENEARNTEE
BABHKE &
(viiiy  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (viii ZERIEEMEEKER
provides key management personnel services to the Group AREFETEA E\HWK%
or to the parent of the Group. AEBNAEE 2 & RA]
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MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 B = E = FF+=H=+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used for

3. TESHBEREE(E)

M3 - BB MRBUARITE (&)

FrEABRETE - IR EME AR AF
HIMEE S - BERRIBEENKAZE
HFIREE - AIFLAE 2 EaraEmF

this purpose are as follows: R FIREBERAT -
Years
Buildings gF 20-25 4F
Other fixtures and structures HAbEE I E Y s 20-45 4
Plant and machinery ﬁ%&%%ﬁ 10-154F
Office equipment and furniture NEHRBERERE 5-154F
Motor vehicles /‘Ti 5-154F
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different EWE  WELXEEENIDE TR
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis  AIFFAFEH ZBEEAXKASRAER
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, ERHE D 2HOE - MBSO SIEBILIT
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if £ - Ft}BE - A ERAFHALIFTELE D
appropriate, at least at each financial year end. RE BN ARETIR R R AR (AEA) -
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part ~ #1%¥ - ENREER - BIENSER
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future ~ EAIEZEHH IR EEESEFAREE

economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F ZFF+ = =1 —HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

COAL MINING RIGHTS

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. A coal mining right is amortised over its
useful life using a unit-of-production method once production commences.
The coal mining right is written off to profit or loss if the coal mining
property is abandoned.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately are measure on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group recognises prepaid land lease payments as right-of-use assets
at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Refer to the accounting policies on Leases for more
details.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price as
disclosed in the section Revenue Recognition.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through OCl, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are
‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed
at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCl are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no
recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity
instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade
receivables, and loan to an associate and loan to a director included
under other non-current financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through OC| (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income,
foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCl. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is
recycled to profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

3. TESTBEREE(E)

TREE (&)

HigstE (8)

© Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity © EBEEAFEFAEMEEKRED
instruments) SEVEE (R E)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCl
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
OCl. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss(continued)

Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-
financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

DERECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset When the Group
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
DERECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial
guarantee contracts. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of the default
(a lifetime ECL).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCl, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the internal
credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when the contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bill payables, certain
accruals and other payables, loans from a non-controlling interest, amounts
due to related companies, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

(b) Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a
liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

WA ENRET ERTFRENHH AT
% AT

(@ ERRER

RNAFER R - 5H B E KRB RBER A
HAAFTE - RIFTEFEATER " &
AEE R BRNTOX - WARARII - B
BETHERR - WaEMEBRRERERA
FER - WHETTERF R EHBIE -

B A E R B IR R AR 2
— D MU EEITESORE N R B AR
MAZREEN - BERNZHHENE
R SRR o

(b)  AIARERES

AMBEESFAEEREREZHY - Rk
RGRAEEFBIRARAERREE
RBEITRAIRRESR - AERD 2 AFE
TRBERFE T ABRER 2 iGN R mE
TE o M BERBE N AEEIERE -
BEBHFEAMIBOAIL - FSHIER
BRABRZEAE - HDEECHERILF
ABCR o 7 R o R 2 BRE(E T
ERERFEENAE - LHRARET
HERERARAERESEEAEEER
Moz hl - DEEABREEFZAER

e

B



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable are classified under loans and borrowings and recognised
initially at fair value. After initial recognition, bonds payable are
subsequently measured at cost because the effect of discounting would be
immaterial as their terms are relatively short.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred

income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — PENSION BENEFITS

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund Scheme in
Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)

(i) Rights-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land
Plant and machinery

2to 15 years
5to 15 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in section Impairment of non-financial assets.

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease
liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASES (CONTINUED)
GROUP AS A LESSEE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low- value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

GROUP AS A LESSOR

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

3. TESHBEREE(E)

L (58)
NEEAEAA (B)
(ii) HEBBWE)

Rt BEHENK 2 RER - HEERSF
LSBT IAKEERBEERKBAEH

23 F“hﬂﬁ_u RN RS R E i
ERESRMIEMRRAEZIER Ye
A NEEMNRRD o o - fmHIRE
R HEHEE  HEENREE(HInm -

mﬁﬁﬂﬁmkﬁﬂﬁﬁ G0k CRIES

REH)ABER
%ﬁFZ E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm - RIHES®
BZRmMERSENTE -

iy REHEENMEEEEEHE

AREEEE MR ERERE (A E A
EIHﬁﬁ_frﬁi;fﬁ)%?%121IH&LATHTAB%E\
EREgECHE)ERERHEHEERH R
WHERSBEEE HEEREHEEE

ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁéﬁ?? HERER o MEHE N
B AR 2 A (TR A S SRR
SR RAX

AREEBESEEA

AEEYEERE ERAROBAID R
&ﬁfﬁ’”tﬂ s HE AN BEREEH
- HEWAREEMREREARILH
E@ﬁ%«%’ﬂi—t%’rﬁ/ﬁ@ SRPETAME - BEE
R EREMEE S ERRAE N
AEEEERAE  YREHSKAHER
EEENHE HAREZ - AAESRERI
HRfR e A ML

EOED —F - TFEH

127




128

Notes to Financial Statements

MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 B = E = FF+=H=+—HIFFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer, which is
when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A performance
obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of
revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance
obligation.

SALE OF GOODS

The Group is in the business of manufacture and trading of urea, compound
fertilizer, dimethyl ether, methanol, melamine, urea solution for vehicle,
furfuryl alcohol, medical intermediate and related products. Revenue is
recognised when the goods are delivered to the customer and all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

The amount of revenue recognised is based on the estimated transaction
price, which comprises the contractual price, net of the estimated volume
rebates. Based on the Group's experience with similar types of contracts,
variable consideration is typically constrained and is included in the
transaction only to the extent that it is a highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting date, the Group updates its assessment
of the estimated transaction price, including its assessment of whether
an estimate of variable consideration is constrained. The corresponding
amounts are adjusted against revenue in the period in which the
transaction price changes.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

3. TESTBEREE(E)

LON-E

WATDERAEBERR N EARE R
KRB TEFMAERBLESHRER
& TERERKRF=7TUWERFAE -

WARAEEEBK D AHEERIRER
MiaErF (MEFPEEE MRS
) RETRORFE®ER - BOERHK
] DA A PR ) A =X B 5 B T O HERE T 15

BEST - BMRHBATBEANEZECED
EENEHE

HEEM

ZNES E“%ﬁ%‘@é%*:ﬁ%‘ﬁ
B ZBER - EREKETER 1 -
B RE &W%EWMEFﬂ%%%%
?é?‘éiu%’?é TheEP XM EMARRERE

- BFERUMA -

ERNWASBRENGTNRZZER - &
BREANER  AHNRHEANBEN -
%#$EIEWMWNQ%EEMN%

ﬁ%éﬁﬂ%&hﬁ
ﬁmAﬁ%AmuﬁﬁﬁTuﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
BEERT  TEHAKRS °

RERE AR - AEBEHELETR
ZERNE - BEFEAZAENGE
EARFBAR - REXHERESHHED
WNETTIHE SR HE -



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating
segments based on their products and the segment results are reported
directly to the management of the Company who regularly reviews the
segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in Note 5, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.

CONTINGENCIES

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group;

or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

0] it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which
the fair values can be reliably determined.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore and the PRC.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s income tax payable, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2020 were RMB42,709,000,
RMB100,430,000 and RMB50,143,000 respectively and no income tax
recoverable (2019: RMB29,720,000, RMB93,860,000, RMB52,715,000 and
RMB22,865,000 respectively).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

IMPAIRMENT OF COAL MINING RIGHTS AND GOODWILL

The carrying values of coal mining rights and goodwill included in coal
mining CGU are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy for the impairment of non-financial
assets in the section of summary of significant accounting policies. The
recoverable amounts of the coal mining rights and goodwill, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating units to which they belong, are calculated
as the value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2020, no impairment loss has
been recognised for the coal mining rights and goodwill. The carrying
amount of the coal mining rights and goodwill at 31 December 2020
were RMB84,643,000 (2019: RMB86,180,000) and RMB63,022,000 (2019:
RMB29,001,000) respectively. Further details are given in Note 17 and
Note 18.

COAL MINE RESERVE

The estimation of the Group’s coal mine reserve is inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before an estimated
coal mine reserve can be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable coal mine reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals
taking into recent production and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of the proved and probable coal mine reserve also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates.

The capitalised cost of the coal mining right is amortised over the estimated
useful life of the related coal mine reserve. The useful life is reviewed
annually in accordance with the production of the plants of the Group and
the proven and probable reserves of the coal mines. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2020 was RMB84,643,000 (2019:
RMB86,180,000).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

Purchase accounting requires extensive use of accounting estimates to
allocate the purchase price to the fair values of the assets and liabilities
acquired, including intangible assets. The Group has exercised judgement
to determine the fair value adjustments required during the purchase price
allocation review. Significant estimates have been made to determine the
fair value adjustments amount. Details of purchase price allocation are
disclosed in Note 37(a).

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on its products, and has eight reportable operating segments (2019:
six) as follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sale of urea

(ii) Manufacturing and sale of compound fertiliser

(iii) Manufacturing and sale of dimethyl ether (DME)

(iv) Manufacturing and sale of methanol

(v) Manufacturing and sale of melamine

(Vi) Manufacturing and sale of urea solution for vehicle*

(vii)  Manufacturing and sale of furfuryl alcohol

(viii)  Manufacturing and sale of medical intermediate

*Not material in 2019

In the opinion of the directors, there were only limited operations in the
subsidiaries that are engaged in coal mining and the sale of coal and
the assets and liabilities were not material for the purpose of segment

reporting. Accordingly, a separate operating segment for the coal mining
business carried out by these subsidiaries has not been presented.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable operating segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of gross profit. Group
financing (including finance costs), income taxes and other unallocated
items, as explained below, are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.

ALLOCATION BASIS

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise other income and gains, other expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense.

Group assets and liabilities cannot be directly attributable to individual
segments as it is impracticable to allocate them to the segments. Assets of
the Group are utilised interchangeably between different segments and
there is no reasonable basis to allocate liabilities of the Group between
different segments. Accordingly, it is not meaningful to disclose assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure by operating segments.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. RK&o5H&ER (&)

7 BRI E R

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the segment result is ~ ARFIEERBHDEHEERER -

the gross profit.

Urea Solution Furfuryl Medical
Urea forvehicle alcohol  Intermediate Others  Elimination Total
Year ended 31 December 2020 & ERRERR BE  BEoER ) if 5
BE-E-EE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB'000 RMB000
tZR=t-ALEE ARETR MeETn  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR
REVENUE WA
Salesto externel ustomers HERgEE 30003 SBI9 SM19 BIST 99343 -0
Intersegment s AHERE 661,568 145525 4 - B8 (00 2
Total evenue 2\ 374161 19317 524230 3151 1251299 (1770022) 10444722
Seqent et P 841,763 188,245 73 08 m - 0155
Reconciaton: HE
Interestincome FlagA 18711
Undlocated other ncomeand gains~ KAREAMA
B 180019
Unalocated expenses et RAREY 78 (1,380836)
Finence costs g (401379)
Proftbefore tax eyl 631,074
Income taexpense FERRR (106926)
Proftfortheyear RERRH 524,148
Other segment information: EhauEs.
Ganon disposal property, pentend — HEHE + iE
equipment ote) et
(Bfite) (27,280)
Depreciton of poperty dantend 41 R
equipment rote) REE
(Rf&27) 723266
fmorisafon ofnengbleasels  EREREER
e ) (t7) 2
Degrecitionafightcfuseassels ~ (EHEAENE
(note) () 53618
Amortisaton of coalmining rights (SRS RS 1537
Capltl expenciture® G 5813391
||
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right- * ERARZBIEREWE  BELEE - F

of-use assets and intangible assets including assets acquired from the acquisition RAREERBVAE BIERBKEWNES
of subsidiaries. NAMBHEEE -
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5.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. &E&2MER (&)
Compound Furfuryl
Year ended 31 December Urea fertilser DME Methanol Melamine alcohol Others Elimination Total
019 & Bal i) R =Rk i1 i b a3t
§E-T-nE RYBOND RVBODD RUBOOD RUBD RUBD VB0 RVBOND RVBOND RUBOOD
tZAZT-RLLER MNEFT MRETT AREfR ARETRT ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR
REVENUE A
Sles o ertemal csomers EERINIER 3312620 2851631 917653 77 657497 407468 07415 - 8928255
Intersegment sales NiEEE 517210 34101 15778 - 298 - 186,843 (1356930) -
Total revenue N 3829890 32574 1203431 B3I 660425 407468 894258 (1356930) 8928255
Segment result pEiE 930890 44921 4711 () 133818 62351 N7657 - 1,941,037
Reconcilation #E
Interest income FIEHA 19229
Unallocated otherincome ~ RAEEMAA
and gains e 143418
Unallocated expenses net ~— AAERR
et (1,203988)
Finance costs HEmA 374076)
Proft before tax IR 525600
Income tax expense FERAY (111557
Profitforthe year KEGER 414063
Other segment B2 HEN .
information:
Gain on disposal ofpoperty, (&1 B (29347
plant and equipment Tattia
note) (Kiio)
Gain ondisposalof HEFHIELE (5946)
ihtofuseaseersnote) KA (H3k6)
Depreciationof poperty, 1%+ BER 673564
plant and equipment SENE
note) ()
Amortiction of ntangible B AR 6202
assets ote7) (H7)
Depreciation ofrightofuse ~ (FRIEZENE 48547
assels ote7) (H7)
Amortisation ofcoal mining ~ KEFHREZ S
rights 1992
Capita expendiure* ATER 2919268
|

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets including assets acquired from the acquisition of subsidiaries.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China.

5. EEDWER ()
HELH
AEEEEETEABLEE -

Revenue from external customers: REINEBE P HIHA -
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
China: - Central Region AR - ARl i 3,701,923 3,533,518
East Region TR i 4,417,526 3,344,586
Western Region FaEBlR 1,339,901 1,372,468
North-east Region AL ERE 738,827 530,170
Overseas RSZIN 246,545 147,513
10,444,722 8,928,255
T

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the
locations of the customers.

INFORMATION ABOUT A MAJOR CUSTOMER

The Group had no customers from whom the revenue derived individually
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue in year 2020
and year 2019, including sales to a group of entities which are known to be
under common control with that customer.

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after deduction of relevant taxes and allowances for
returns and trade discounts.
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(CONTINUED)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

6. WA - HBRAK W ()

REEE YA - E A R 5 5 AT 40
-

Group
rEE
2019
—E-NF
RMB'000
AREFIT
Revenue N
Type of goods or service ERSBRBES
Sales of goods* HESm* 10,444,722 8,928,255
T
Timing of revenue recognition U A TR B ]
Ata pointin time E AR B 10,444,722 8,928,255
T
* Please refer to Note 5 for disaggregation of revenue. * RBRAR DI - B2HMRES -
CONTRACT BALANCES BRI
Group
REE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Trade receivables (Note 23) E S W EE (M3t 23) 204,032 148,006
Contract liabilities (Note 28) SHEE (it 28) 818,149 582,181

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group's obligation to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received advances from
customers. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Group

performs under the contract.

Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

ENEEFERAEERAKED BT
FEMRBENEFEBEMNAETERM -
EHRERAEEREASNBNRERS
YA o

AP B AT S ERERH A ST -

Amount included in contract liabilities at the

beginning of the year

SAFVIENAGEZHIA

Group

REE
2020 2019
— —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
558,998 679,619

EOED —F - TFEH
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA - Htr AR Wz (&)
(CONTINUED)
OTHER INCOME AND GAINS HpW AR Wz
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—B-%F N
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt ARETR AREFT
Bank interest income ERITH SUA 18,711 19,229
Net profit from sales of by-products, water,  SHEBIEM * K ~ EX
electricity and steam FEARAEF 74,809 60,169
Dividend income from equity investments at & A FEEF AIBZEHY
fair value through profit or loss AT & HRR B R - 494
Rental income HEWA 2,190 5,570
Amortisation of deferred grants IR RGNS 3 7e] 29 12,670 8,051
Subsidy income IR WA 33,282 19,899
Compensation income fE Y= 7,016 9,453
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER
equipment R Y 27,280 29,347
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEENKE = 5,946
Loss on fair value change of financial FFAEZNERTIA
instruments through profit and loss AT EZEEERE - (16,275)
Gain on fair value change of derivative PTEESRTIANATE
financial instruments b=k s - 1,906
Gain on bargain purchases HEEEWE - 4543
Gain on other investments HAb1% & Was 2,706 5,868
(Loss)/gain on derivative financial instruments $T4 & g T A
(&518) e (2,194) 5
Exchange gains b H U e 15,691 -
Others Hh 6,569 6,144
198,730 160,349
]



7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBLATER
AEBOBRBALET MR GIA)

Group
REE
2020 2019
t St 2 —TNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥ TR ARETIT
Cost of inventories sold SHEFERA 8,230,163 6,910,405
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE NG
equipment BT E 14 723,266 673,564
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EH 16 7,409 6,202
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 15 53,618 48,547
Amortisation of coal mining rights FE T e £ 18 1,537 1,992
Minimum lease payments under operating & &FHAYTE AKX
leases: Me
Factories W 8,678 76,813
Buildings gF 225 1,690
Land - 114 -
9,017 78,503
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN % 4,138 3,990
Employee benefit expenses (including REBFFEX
directors remuneration: (BRESFH) - 9
Salaries and bonuses %ﬁ(ﬁ&?Eﬁ\I 706,921 552,619
Pension scheme contributions (defined RIRE 2R
contribution scheme) (REHRETED 85,674 92,787
Benefits in kind BEYHZ=E 74,253 62,495
866,848 707,901
Impairment losses on financial assets SRVEEREETE 23 5,640 10,007
Impairment of property, plant and M - BEX
equipment* RAERIE 14 113,109 -
Impairment of inventories® FERE* 21 1,727 1,443
Unrealised exchange (gains)/losses, net* REIRE, (W)
Eﬂé » R (5,941) 4,027
Realised exchange (gains)/losses, net* BIE N (W)
Eﬂa RERT (9,750) 1,353
Loss on fair value change of financial TRTEMNRTE
instruments through profit and loss* EEhEIE 4,811 16,275
T
* Included in “Other expenses” disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or * BiETGEEEakEMEEKERPEE

loss and other comprehensive income.

B [EARFIS ] o e

EOED —F - TFEH
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8. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

8. HIHA
AR A DTN T

Group
rEE
2020 2019
—ECEE —hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts, other loans and 7B FRZEHEEH
bonds wholly repayable within seven years HBITE  RITEZ
H ERREFHHE 394,261 357,156
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFIE 7,107 16,880
Interest on government loans B EFEFE 1 40
401,379 374,076
]
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEMeE

AEEEERFETHAENHE  RBIE
FRANIEEE - FE R EMEBIZE383(1)(@)

Directors’and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of ~ (b) * (Q & () IE R R aEH FE 280 H (K&
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: EREFENHER) FEWNT -
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—E-EF ZT-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Fees s 1,050 1,050
Other employments: ﬁ’rﬁl@ﬂ@
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind REE MBS 2,523 2,483
Performance related bonuses* % a{EiI* 13,651 11,146
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 128 110
16,302 13,739
17,352 14,789
]

* RAFETHTESHRESRASER
Bt F & 7 LB TE BTEAT

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonuses which are
determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(A)  INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were
as follows:

9. EEM2R)
A BUFBITES

FANTBEBILIFNTEST2ESIT

Group
AEE
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREEFTT
Ong Kian Guan TER 300 300
Li Shengxiao THER 250 250
Ong Wei Jin F A 250 250
Li Hongxing THE 250 250
1,050 1,050
]
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- AL EN T & IEB1TE 5 &9 E (0 B
executive directors during the year (2019: Nil). E(ZE—NF  E\E)-
HELED —T_THFR
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 9. E=EM<E (&)
(B)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, A NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (B) HITEENR—BIFHITES
Salaries,
allowances and Pension scheme
benefits in kind Performance- contributions Total
Fees #4285 related bonuses k€  remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2020 e RENFIR ZERA HE- 5 aHme
BE-8-8& RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+-A=t—RILEE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET T
Executive directors: HITESE:
Liu Xingxu 218 - 867 5,281 33 6,181
Yan Yunhua BigE - 687 3,300 33 4,020
Zhang Qingjin RES - 687 4,620 33 5,340
= 2,241 13,201 99 15,541
]
Chief Executive directors: 1B,
MaTongsheng St - 282 450 29 761

Yearended 31 December 2019 HZE-Z—HE+=A

=t+-HALtEFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Liu Xingxu 2@ - 872 4459 28 5,359
Yan Yunhua Bz - 692 2,786 28 3,506
Zhang Qingjin RES - 692 3901 28 4621
- 225 11146 84 13486
|
Chief Executive directors; THER
MaTongsheng itk - 27 350 26 603

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to ~ F A ME RN E KRB WE T B R A
waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil). TH(ZE—NF - &|&) -

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directorsas A * NEBWBAEEZ NG - EA

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for — ANABKR AN AN £8 B B #) 22 Bh 3k 7 Bl Bk
loss of office. BF1E -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAY EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2019:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2019: two) non-director,
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

10. HERERSHFMES

AEEBAFENTIERSFMEREBE=
Z(ZE-NF: =ZR)EE - HHEemNs
BERN XM EI BRESMA(ZF
—NEF:MB)FEERFHMES OB
THFBWOT

Group

rEE
2020 2019
—E-FF A
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYF = 667 523
Performance-related bonuses Exviaal 1,300 1,300
Pension scheme contributions RS FHEIHR 65 57
2,032 1,880

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

MEB T EE AR EESE= FE
EMHEBNT :

Nil to RMB500,000 T & AR 500,000 7T

Group

REE
2020 2019
—B-%E —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFT
2 2

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

T
AEER - AEEWEE T LS HHD

BEXNME - ER/MAIRINAKREHE
5 0 22D A F S RER A (E

EOED —F - TFEH
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11. INCOME TAX

The Company is incorporated in Singapore and is subject to income tax at
the rate of 17% (2019: 17%) for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income tax at
the rate of 25% (2019: 25%). In year 2020, nine of the subsidiaries were given
the New/High Tech Enterprise Award as recognition of their innovation and
use of state-of-the-art equipment. This award brought these subsidiaries a
tax concession of a lower income tax rate (i.e. 15%) for three years since the
subsidiaries awarded the New High-Tech Enterprise Award.

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 are:

1. FBH

RATRI SRR - RAFEAR
179 ( =B — JUE © 17%) 8 FFF 19 B4 % S 484
KOBLIE -

A EAb 3077 FEER B M| O TR TR IR AN SR B4
ERERNBEZFIRITORERAE -

AAEIRKTE A E AT B A BIRAEH
FRE25% (= — LF : 25%) BUMTRIE -
RZZEZZF HPARMBRAREES
MREMEEBE - U EERHLAIF R
FREERNREMRE - ZEEFEZEHNB A
RIEESHESMEMNECERFEEL=FNK
AIZAREAMEHRE (AN 15%) (I BE
%o

HE_Z-_ K -_FT—NF+=-HA
=+ —HIRFEMEHRESY 2 EEE
ST :

Group
AEH
2020 2019
—E-EH —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETTT
Current — PRC BNER - Hp
Charge for the year FEMYZ 133,510 104,476
(Oven)/underprovision in respect of prioryears B FE (FBREEE)
BETRE (9,146) 209
Deferred (credit)/charge (Note 34) ESEIER, (BEA) (BiEE34) (17,438) 6,872
Total tax charge for the year REERIBF T 85 106,926 111,557
]
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax charge for the financial year at the effective tax rate

is as follows:

11. Fri8% (&)

AHBRFEEFERBEARARARILREWNBA
AIFTTE B R 80ATE L R 5t E 09 bR B AT 7
B I8 A 2 iR
IR ¢

ERHEFTENHIBERY

2019
—T-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Profit before tax FRAE Al ) 631,074 525,620
]
Tax at statutory tax rates A EMERTEANFIE 157,227 131,405
Effect of a tax concession BsEEnTE (69,586) (63,028)
Withholding tax TEINIE 24,008 33451
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIEEE 4,493 8,666
Expenses not deductible for tax AR NFE R 3,107 5126
(Oven)/underprovision in respect of prior years BEEE (BRERE)
BET R (9,146) 209
Income not subject to tax BAFBIRA = (833)
Recognition of deductible temporary differences  #52.4t Bl AR HERRAY A 30
previously not recognised TR ER = (789)
Effect of other concession HEmEENgE (2,706) (1177)
Others EAh, (471) (1473)
Tax charge at the effective rate of 16.9% (2019: X BFREI K 16.9%
21.2%) (ZZ—NEF : 212%) T EH
sl 106,926 111,557
]

EOED —F - TFEH
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12. DIVIDENDS

Final dividend paid-RMB8 cents

(2019: RMB10 cents) per ordinary share

T RERE - B EAR
AR¥ESH (ZFE—NF -
FEBRARE109)

Proposed final dividend-RMB10 cents
(2019: RMB8 cents) per ordinary share

EERAIRE - S A

ARE 10D (ZE—NEF -

ShEBRARE8)

12. RE
Group
REE
2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
93,730 119,146
]
117,162 93,730
]

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (inclusive
of mandatorily convertible instruments issued) of 1,171,621,000 (2019:
1,171,621,000), as adjusted to reflect the convertible bonds issued in 2011.
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o

13. BARZERESZEEAEMN
SREF

BREAAMEERFCEIRBES AR Y
BREREEABRGEFRGES - REHE
AR — T ——F BT BRRESN
T FAR hE 5 E01,171,621,000 % (BHEE
BITHRFIMETRETR) (ZE— N4 :
1,171,621,000 %) st EBH ©



13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the

following data:

13. BRAREBERESERARG

sRER (&)

BREANEERFSENATEEAE

=]
1=

Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders AR ESRERREERT
of the parent, used in the basic and diluted HE AR T EREEFAA
earnings per share calculation JEE & 347,662 316,495
]
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
Number of shares Number of shares
R BB avarid=
Shares i4n)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares M EORAER R ERF
(inclusive of mandatorily convertible = 8 mAR e T 8
instruments issued) for the purpose of (BIEEEITRIR S
calculating basic and diluted earnings per R T A)
share 1,171,621,000 1,171,621,000
]

EOED —F - TFEH
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14.

ME - BMERRE
—E-EF+-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2020

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

Office
Otherfixtures equipment
and structures Plantand  and funiture Construction
Buidings ~ HftEEe  machinery HAZE  Motorvehicles  inprogress Total
BT WEUREE HEREE REREE HE  KBIR szt
RMB0OO  RMB000  RMBO00D  RMBO000  RMBOOO  RMBO0D  RMBI0O
ARETT AR%TR ARMTR ARETn ARETn ARETn  ARETR
Cost A
At1 January 2020 W-Z-ZF-F-H 1528867 1874034 7,663,084 335,004 141580 2615203 14157741
Additons e 1783 4498 90,508 24,304 2241 538154 5478488
Trangfers i 369,573 589794 1,897,141 72575 6 (297634) (47,201)
Reclassfication EEip (9,356) 9,19 - 160 - - -
Acquistion of subsidiaries (Note 37 () WEME AR (M 37) 32,007 10,197 109,179 1,364 1931 41,649 196,327
Disposzls & (125467)  (191331)  (237,665) (6,195) (8424) - (569082)
Acquisition of business i £ - - 4355 108 541 - 5,004
At 31 December 2020 WZF-BF+=A=1-H 1797407 2296388 9526562 427320 164940 5008660 19,221,277
Accumulated depreciation: ZithE:
At1 January 2020 RZE-F5-F-H 296,666 39078 2566415 28,378 90,203 - 3570740
Depreciation during the year (Note 7) ERFE(NET) 62,233 B34 533958 37492 16171 - 723,266
Reclassfication EFiped (122) - - 122 - - -
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (Note 37 () e ENTIGREIC) 3,569 832 38,536 563 1,253 = 44,753
Disposals e (35,851) w72 (152452 (5313) (7,065) - (244,393)
At31 December 2020 RZEZEF+ZA=1-H 326495 409610 2986457 724 100,562 - 4094366
Impaiment: e
At1 January 2020 \ZE-EF-F-H 40,407 30,660 2410 402 - 11370 11249
Additons T8 10365 5,984 96,639 121 - - 113,109
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37 2] e ENIGREIC) - - = - - an an
Disposzls e (39,324) (30,569) (29092) (398) - = (99,383)
At 31 Decernber 2020 RZZZEETZA=1-R 11,448 6075 96,957 125 - 11,841 126,446
Carrying amount R -
At31 December 2020 e e o 1459464 1880703 6,443,148 155,953 64378 4996819 15,000,465



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

In 2018, a subsidiary of the Group sold plant and machinery with
net carrying value of RMB431,118,000 to a third party and entered
into an arrangement with the third party to lease back the assets for
RMB300,000,000 over a period of three years. The sales and lease back
arrangement is to secure a bank borrowing of RMB300,000,000 granted to
the Group (Note 31). The difference between the net carrying value of the
assets and lease consideration of RMB131,118,000 is deferred and amortised
over the lease term as other assets. As at 31 December 2020, the balance of
other assets amounts to RMB100,877,000 (2019: RMB114,318,000).

The Group has plant and machinery with a carrying value RMB985,424,000
(2019: RMB709,589,000) is mortgaged to secure the Group's bank loans
(Note 31).

During the current financial year, a subsidiary of the Group has upgraded
some phased out production equipment for Plant Il and Plant IIl. The
management has carried out a review of the recoverable amount of that
specific production equipment. An impairment loss of RMB113,109,000,
representing the write down of these equipment to the recoverable
amount was recognised in “Other expenses” (Note 7) line item of profit or
loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

14. Y% - BENKE (&)

RAZZE—N\F  XEBH—RHBLAR]
ME=ZFHERE LR REFEAR
AR 4311180007 + WEFZE = F 13
ZH - WZ=ZFHOHEEE  REAARE
300,000,000 7T © $HE K& B L HE 5§ 7R
MAEERBFETEE AR 300000000
(M3 - EEMBEMFEERAER
BRZE%E AR 131,118,000 7T & #E LI 7
HERRNEKEMBEES#RE KT _F
F+-_A=+—H EMEESBAA
E#100877000( —E— NE: AR
114,318,000 7T) °

REEIIFEREE A R 985,424,000 7T( =
T—NF: ARH709589,0007T) & =
Nz AREBRIRITEFURHIER (K
31) o

RAMBFEE AEB—KWBARE A
BE_TIREE=ZTHHIDEKREE
B ERENRETEERENITRE
THETEN - H#E T -_ZF+ A
S+ —HLYBREE REBBEBARE
113,109,000 7T (36 #57%2 Za& e UR 2= AT U 2]
SR R ERA [ HaFE J(Mizx7)ER
T OARERR ©

EOED —F - TFEH
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

4. W¥ - BERRME GE)
—E-hE+-A=+-H

Office
Otherfixtures equipment and
and structures Plantand furniture Construction
Buldngs  EftEE  machinery HAZ  Motorvehices  inprogress Total
BF WEWREE AEREE  RERBE e fERIE st
RMBOOD RMBOQD RMBOOD RMBOOD RMBOOD  RMBOOD RMBOQD
Group 158 ARBTL  ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETRT ARETT  ARETR
Cost A
At January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 1295695 20830 7686115 334130 98103 95679 12430765
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 ROEREH RS ER
E165EN - - (300000) - - - (300000)
At31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-\ETZA=1-Ak
ZE-NE-A-H 195,695 203043 7386115 334130 98,103 95679 12132765
Additions hE 1018 1086 88751 16302 088 223039 2348433
Transfers B 140658 1332 199%6 14925 197 (62279%) (202000
Reclassfication N8 73367 (171,564) 9,197 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAE 2039 8364 319177 4806 34590 11930 309277
Disposals & 267 o) (479,162 (35179 (3919) - (520734)
At31 December 2019 R-E-NE+ZF=1-R 1528867 1874034 766304 335004 141589 261503 14157741
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE:
At 1 January 2019 RZF-75-A-H 34690 325619 2393151 25170 61122 - 323975
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 REEE R
F105EM - - (6910) - - - (6910)
At31 December 2018and 1 January 2019 RZE-\ETZA=1-Ak
“E-NE-A-H 234690 325619 238641 25170 61,122 - 3230842
Depreciation during the year (Note 7 ERFE(NET) 57718 65383 490945 44% 1704 - 673564
Reclassfication Eiipp 351 (13370) 9789 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENB AT 1476 14% 69057 1917 1523 - 89127
Disposals & (199 ] (389617) (3103 (3166) - (6479)
At31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=T-H 2966 379078 2566415 138378 90203 - 3570740
Impairment: W
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 40908 30863 106,266 3084 - 11370 192491
Disposals & (501) (203) (76,856) (2682) - - (80242)
At31 Decermber 2019 RZE-NFT-A=1—F 40407 30660 29410 40 - 11370 112249
Carying amount: FEFE:
At31 Decernber 2019 RZF-NETZA=1-H 1,191,794 146429 5067219 924 5138 260383 10474722
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15. LEASES

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, plant and
machinery used in its operations. Leases of plant and machinery generally
have lease terms between 4 and 15 years, while land generally have lease
terms between 2 and 68 years. The Group's obligations under its leases
are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some
contracts require the Group to maintain certain financial ratios.

The Group also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12
months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The Group
applies the 'short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.

(A)  CARRYING AMOUNTS OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised
and the movements during the period:

15. HE

AEBEEZEEERY  SEKLRY
RERNSELN  BREREIER © K
FEHSHENHENRT /42 15F - M
THHENHERATE R2EBF - KK
EAEREPAENEERHEASEE
BEMMBREER  —RME - ARET
BEEIEEEEEE  MBNBAHEKX
AEREMERISEM LR o

AEENBETHSEE  HEHR 12
AT - YHERBENHARE - K
SEYSRSHERM [CHHEE ] M 1EKE
BEEMHE | AR -

(A)  FEAEEENREE

TRHFINZPRDEREREEENE
[EeA=PrEY

Land Machinery Total
+i #58 @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Group

As at 1 January 2020 815,933 263,875 1,079,808
Additions NE 101,744 - 101,744

Acquisition of subsidiaries W BERT B A R (FI5E37@))

(Note 37 (a)) 12,921 - 12,921
Depreciation expense (Note 7) WEER (W:E7) (24,403) (29,215) (53,618)
Revision of a lease term arising from FAETAIREEEIE 2 BB EE

achange inthe non-cancellable ~ EVTEERIERT

period of a lease (525) - (525)
As at 31 December 2020 R=F=FF+=A=t—H 905,670 234,660 1,140,330

|
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE-NE—HA—H 622,820 293,090 915910
Additions NE 230,752 - 230,752
Acquisition of subsidiaries UgBE R A B 15277 - 15277
Depreciation expense (Note 7) WEER (H3E7) (19,332) (29,215) (48,547)
Disposals k= (33,584) - (33,584)
As at 31 December 2019 HN_ZB-hE+=-HA=+—H 815,933 263,875 1,079,808

EOED —F - TFEH
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)
(B)  LEASE LIABILITIES

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the

15. HE (&)
B) EAE

TREINZBEEERE(BRAEE
REER) RS2

period:

Group

AEE
2020 2019
. —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
As at 1 January R—A—H 170,400 249,406
Additions NE 6,671 18,047
Accretion of interest FEIE N 7,107 16,880
Payments (NE=N (111,112) (113,933)

Revision of a lease term arising from a change in ~ F& T~ A HsH EAR 2
the non-cancellable period of a lease SHELMEBIEET (525) -
As at 31 December W+=-—B=+—H 72,541 170,400
T
Current BNER 45,343 102,887
Non-current JEBNER 27,198 67,513
() AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS O RNERBEINSHE
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: U TRNERERASEE -
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets CREEEREER (ME7)

(Note 7) 53,618 48,547
Interest expense on leases liabilities HEBEMBFAX 7,107 16,880
Expense relating to leases of short-term leases 2 HATA S +ERIE

(included in cost of sales) (FEASHERA) - 76,885
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KEEEEHEMHEER

(included in administrative expenses) GrtATTHAX) 9,017 1618
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIERERNETE 69,742 143,930

]
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15.
(D)  TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of RMB120,129,000 in 2020

(2019: RMB192,436,000).

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

LEASES (CONTINUED)

HE (&)
(D) BERHAEE

AEER —_ZE-_ZTFMHERS T EE
A ARE120129000T( ZF—LF - A
R #192,436,0007T) ©

15.

16. EFEE

Group
rEE
Prepaid land
lease payments
Patents Software FE{fLibFEE Total
=R B4 MIE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥ TR AR%T T AR¥ TR
2020 BB
As at 1 January n—A—H 16,226 30,657 - 46,883
Additions NE 198 9,055 - 9,253
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B A A
(Note 37 (a)) (M5E376)) 14,658 - - 14,658
Amortisation during the year
(Note 7) FseH (st 7) (4,729) (2,680) - (7,409)
As at 31 December K+=—BA=+—H 26,353 37,032 - 63,385
|
2019 —E-hEF
As at 1 January n—HA—H 19,399 19,030 609,930 648,359
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 B4 B B B 5 R
RIS 16 5RE K - - (609,930) (609,930)
Additions NE - 5573 - 5,573
Acquisition of subsidiary I EE P A R - 9,083 - 9,083
Amortisation during the year
(Note 7) Fsss (HeE7) (3173) (3,029) - (6,202)
As at 31 December W+=—A=+—H 16,226 30,657 - 46,383

EOED —F - TFEH
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17. GOODWILL 17. &8
2020 2019
- e 23 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group REE AR%TT AREFTT
Cost: AR
At 1 January ®n—H—8 29,001 29,001
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37 (a)) WEER B AR (M1EE37() 34,021 -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 63,022 29,001
Net carrying amount: BREDVFE -
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H 63,022 29,001
I
IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL EESNCAERE

Goodwill acquired through business acquisitions have been allocated to
following cash generating units ("CGU") for impairment testing:

Coal mining cash-generating unit;

Furfural products cash-generating unit;

Humic acid products cash-generating unit; and
Medical intermediate products cash-generating unit

COAL MINING CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amount of the coal mining CGU has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a 15-year period approved by management. The
pre-tax discounted rate applied to the cash flow projections is 13.0% (2019:
11.2%).

FURFURAL PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT, HUMIC ACID
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT

The recoverable amounts of the furfural products CGU, humic acid products
CGU and medical intermediate products CGU have been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering continuity periods approved by management. The pre-
tax discounted rates applied to the cash flow projections are 17.7%, 19.4%,
and 17.4% respectively (2019: 17.6%, 20.0% and Nil respectively).

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was
recognised during the year.
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AR RETEARKA 13.0% (T — N F -
11.2%) BHTIREITIR -

BPEERREELEN BERERR
TELBEVRBETEHRERRSEL
B

WREERRSEASN  BEBERRS
EAXBNNBEPHEERRSELS
AR E & BEIRFEAEBEFEARE
BT mMERBENEALEEEIARN
PRIBE AEE  REEEHRBMNELR
EEAFE - HARES RSB BIHRB
17.7% > 194% B2 174% TR /[ (=&
—HAE  DRIERA 17.6%  20.0% EREE) o

REBFRBERS > RAFERNILEER
EERE R o



17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

FURFURAL PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT, HUMIC ACID
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT AND MEDICAL INTERMEDIATE
PRODUCTS CASH-GENERATING UNIT (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating
units is as follows:

Coal mining
BRI
2020 2019 2020 2019

Furfural products

BEER

il T\ R TN F R T R ~TNF

RMB'000 [ERMGIVEN RVB000 EERINE

ARRT Rl ARRT GGl ARR T GGl ARRTT e

2112 2112 34,021 - 63,022 2001
T T T -

BEEHE 25,361 25361 1528 158
T

Carrying amount of goodwill

ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION

The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake the impairment testing of coal
mining CGU, furfural products CGU, humic acid products CGU and medical
intermediate products CGU:

0) BUDGETED SALES AND OPERATING COSTS

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted sales
and operating costs are compared to the historical data and adjusted for
management’s expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

(1 GROWTH RATES

The forecasted growth rates are compared to the historical data and do not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industries relevant to the
medical intermediate products CGU.

(D COMMODITY PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to commodity price is the
expectation of future changes in the market.

(V) PRE-TAX DISCOUNT RATE

The pre-tax discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.

Humic acid products

REERER

17. BHE(E)

BEERREELEN BERERR
TELEVRBETEHRERRSELE
B (&)

SEZEEREEHEVAEERTABEN
o

Medical intermediate
products Total
BEYHRER @t

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEC3E mesglkd
AvB000 [TV RMB000 MEREOWI AvB000 [N
ARETT PNE RS

= REEEERANRE

SEXBERROTAL - BHEEEBERIE
ReneRAERERRREELSEM
BEERRSELEN RBERERRD
EEEVMBETHEERRSEEEN
EITRERIR -

()  FREHEBRREERAR

ARBEEREHERMEERANIETE
B EERR S BIERT LR - XA RIEE
2 E MR R SGE RITEAM ISR RIEL

FHE -
m ERE

FRE R RBE R (TILR - AT
BB S R & B A BB TT R
BT R -

my  ERER
ARETRMRERNEEEENEEAT

V) FRATTERE

BRAROBL AT I IR R B AT 3 [ BR 4 A AE R
TRV IRERR ©
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17. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

With regards to the assessment of value in use for coal mining CGU,
furfural products CGU, humic acid products CGU and medical intermediate
products CGU, management believes that no reasonably possible changes
in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the
coal mining CGU, furfural products CGU, humic acid products CGU and
medical intermediate products CGU to materially exceed its recoverable

amount.

18. COAL MINING RIGHTS

17. BHE(#E)

R HREERERESEESN  BREED
fﬁ/i\ﬁiﬁﬁ BEBRERRESEESN

BEhHEERRSEASUNERAE
Tﬁﬁ’ﬁ.:. EEERE AR L EEBRK
ZEBA BT EREERRKE S
EEBN BEEQRSELRMNL - BE
BExBeELEUNBEPHBERS
TEABMHRIERAR WO S5 -

18. RIEBAEAE

RMB’000

31 December 2020

—E-RF+-A=1—H

AR®TR

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated ZECTF A B - HIR RS
amortisation 86,180
Amortisation provided during the year (Note 7)  FE & 5 #E45 (M5 7) (1,537)
At 31 December 2020 R_E_ZFE+_A=1+—H 84,643
|
At 31 December 2020: A—EZTF+A=+—H:
Cost [DEN 109,570
Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (24,927)
Net carrying amount AREFE 84,643
|
31 December 2019 —E-AF+=A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated AZE—NF—A—BHERA - k255
amortisation 88,172
Amortisation provided during the year (Note 7)  FFE #5185 (Bt sE 7) (1,992)
At 31 December 2019 R_E-NFt+-_A=1+—H 86,180
At 31 December 2019: RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8:
Cost XA 109,570
Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (23,390)
Net carrying amount AREHE 86,180

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF COAL MINING RIGHTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the coal mining CGU as disclosed in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, which include the above coal mining
rights of RMB84,643,000 (2019: RMB86,180,000), goodwill of RMB25,361,000
(2019: RMB25,361,000) (Note 17) and property, plant and equipment of
RMB725,353,000 (2019: RMB649,501,100). The key assumptions are included
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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18. COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Based on the annual impairment testing, no impairment charge was

recognised during the year.

19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ*w% (IIE)

R ERRERRIERE (&)
BEFERENR  REAFEARL EHER
BB

19. BRAFEFARSHRERE

PROFIT OR LOSS
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR AERETTT
Non-current IERE
Unquoted equity investment, at fair value: FELETAREIRE - RATHE
PRC ik 6,708 6,708
]
Current TED
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBRTE
Singapore Frhnig 2,271 3,194
Hong Kong B 13,821 17,709
16,092 20,903
]
Company
AT
2020 2019
—ECEH —T—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETTT
Current TED
Listed equity investments, at fair value: FTRIERE - IBATE
Singapore #rhns 2,271 3,194
Hong Kong B 13,821 17,709
16,092 20,903
]
LISTED EQUITY INVESTMENTS EHRERE

As at 31 December 2020, the listed equity investments were classified as
current assets because the directors of the Company have intention to
dispose of these investments in the forthcoming year.

W-F-2E+-A=+—R LTRE
BARBMARDEE HAKAANE
FEBEAR—FRHERER

EOED —F - TFEH
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19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIRVALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

UNQUOTED EQUITY INVESTMENT

The Group's investment in unquoted equity investment represent equity
investment in Manas Biyuan Water Supply Company Limited (“Biyuan”).
The Group has no control nor significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of Biyuan. The Group does not intend to dispose of them
in the near future.

The investment is carried at FVPL and the fair value as at 31 December 2020
is RMB6,708,000 (2019: RMB6,708,000).

19. EAFEFABESNRERE
(&)

FLEMRERE

REBZIF EMBHERE RN B AT
BEREKEREERA(ZIR ) R
BE - ARREFRREELAEAEER

FE - AEBEBRAI R ARKEERBR
B o
BRERDNVFEFABRIIE R-_F=

ZFE+ A=t —HHAFEAAREK
6,708,000 7L ( —ZE— N4 : AR% 6,708,000
JC) °

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FANFKIE G ZEREMERR
RECEIVABLES |
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREFTT
Non-current IERE
Prepayments for purchases of property, plantand BEE Y3 - /5 MR HE
equipment HTE AR 120,060 844,713
T
Current RED
Prepayments: TERFRIR
Advanced deposits to suppliers AN ER RS 491,662 386,887
Others Hity 22,519 15,677
514,181 402,564
Deposits and other receivables: e R E AR
Deposits b 3,193 10,126
VAT recoverable FEYCBER 353,925 386,576
Interest receivable FEUFIE, - 1,057
Others Hity 152,870 56,850
509,988 454,609
Total prepayments, deposits and other TERUE -« me REAmE
receivables — current W IEABEE - & 1,031,089 857,173
T
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. FEARNRE REREMERR

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 15 (%)
Company
VN
2020 2019
A —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Current RED
Prepayments TERTFRIR = 254
]
21. INVENTORIES 21. F&
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E=FF —TNF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AEBTFT
Raw materials at cost RS BR R R 431,402 402,599
Parts and spares at cost B ARSI BRI R A 167,678 130,101
Work-in-progress at cost LRSS BRI TE R 16,432 -
Finished goods at lower of cost and net realisable  LARK 7N & A] & 35 SR 2B 8R (K &
value FrEMRN G 379,753 452,347
Allowance for inventory obsolescence FEiBEEE (3,116) (1,443)
992,149 983,604
T
22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22, f{TH€MTIA
Group
rEER
2020 2019
—E-BE —E-NEF
Notional Notional
amount Asset amount Asset
=t k] BE EHREHE BE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFT ARET T AREETIT
Foreign currency swaps AN 22 HR - - 99,760 848
Futures BB - - 165 510

= - 99,925 1,358
I
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EZRUWREREWRRE

Group

TEE
2020 2019
. —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
Trade receivables H 5 EYGRIE 220,498 161,853
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B TREMEEEERE (16,466) (13,847)
Total trade receivables (Note 6) B S REGRIEREE (fize) 204,032 148,006
Bills receivable YR IE 543,224 247,815
Less: allowance for expected credit losses B AR EE SRS (3,864) (2402)
Total bills receivable e ZE 4 RE 539,360 245413
743,392 393,419

T

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts
which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The Group’s bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of
90 to 180 days. Trade and bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payment in
advance or on credit for certain customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
RECEIVABLES THAT ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as
follows:

23. EZRWHREREBWRRERE (&)
EEHERRE < B RRIR

REBEE 5 RWGIAN R E BRI RE D
T (RBEFZAHIRNGREE) T

Group

rEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AERETTT
Within 1 month TEA A 119,892 90,899
110 3 months 1Z231EA 31,829 25,693
3 to 6 months 3FE6MEA 37,092 13,738
6to 12 months 6= 1218 A 9,314 10,458
Over 12 months 121MEA MU 5,905 7218
204,032 148,006

T

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer based on
customer type and rating.  The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The movement in allowance for expected credit losses of trade and other
receivables computed based on ECL are as follows:

R TR ARRE R FEURIR B A B30 #1082
BRERCHENDHMEFER -

BB HERBEMN B RIR RS T EALE
BEEFAERFEECHENBIEFLERM - R
BBELER  ARAREFERRBEANLT
EHEHRBERE  REEERAESAK
BE) LS mR DA R AT 28U

EHMEERR

NEIRE B RA B EREEETRED
i LEFEEMEEEIR - BEXDHER
BB EFENZERPEITOAMmE
HIM B S EE - Lt ERRSA R I
R ERRELRNBREAHASNER
BIEFIE - B AR SRR B R 1R R
MEENAISEER - —RME - EHEW
SRR B AR S — F I B AR B BT
ABHYR BRI T AR ©

REBEHEEBRTENE I L E MR
FENBHEEHRRGEESMT -
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

23. EZRWHREREBWRRERE (&)

TRADE RECEIVABLES g 5 EWFIE
Group
rEE
2020 2019
i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
At the beginning of year T 13,847 6,467
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) Ug BB A A 1,704 1,639
Written off s (868) (44)
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BEREE - B (MR 7) 1,783 5,785
Atend of year FAR 16,466 13,847
T
OTHER RECEIVABLES H ftl FE YRR TE
Group
AEH
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
At the beginning of year REEF) 26,770 23,645
Written off Hfi g (162) -
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) BEETE - B (MR 7) (10) 3,125
Atend of year R 26,598 26,770
]
DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES FEWRBEE A R HIE D RIRIE
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-FF A
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT
At the beginning of year NG 23 1,328
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) WIEETE - PR (MEE7) 3 (1,305)
At end of year RER 26 23
]
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

23. EZRWHREREBWRRERE (&)

BILLS RECEIVABLE e

Group

rEH
2020 2019
i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBFIT
At the beginning of year EH] 2,402 -
Written off Hfi s (2,402) -
Impairment losses, net (Note 7) EEE - 28R (I 7) 3,864 2402
Atend of year RER 3,864 2402

T

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the T X#HJIBEAEERE FRWFKIE - HA
Group's trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related FEUNFRIE - {5 B B P A FE IR B3 1 A
companies/subsidiaries and bills receivable using a provision matrix: ST

ECL FORTRADE RECEIVABLES

¥

/HBARRERERRENEERR

B2 RURENEHEEER

Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
Ik DR—F 125 254
2020 —T-ZF
Gross carrying amount (RMB000)  #BEEE (ARKTTT) 123,285 81,087 6,162 9,964 220,498
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BEHEEEE(ARETT) 3,393 257 9,964 16,466
|
2019 —E-NE
Gross carrying amount (AMB000)  ARBREE (AR TL) 94,069 7362 872 161,853
Expected creditlosses (AVB00D)  BEIEEBB(ARETL) 3170 15 8710 13847

ECL FOR OTHER RECEIVABLES

HttEWGENRBEEERE

Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
BE PR-F 12E 25N E
2020 —E-F
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) &85 E(E (AR T T) 133,908 9,360 24,725 182,661
Expected creditlosses (RMB000)  FEEREEEE(ARET L) 4 1358 23,608 26,598
|
2019 —E-NE
Gross carryingamount (RMB000D) SR EE(AREFTT) 62014 534 2026 24363 93745
Expected creditlosses (RMBO00)  BEREEEBE(ARET L) 1950 987 1,308 2525 26770
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 23, BESRWREREKRERE (&)
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (CONTINUED) FEHEEEE ()
ECL FOR AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES/SUBSIDIARIES N EEAR,/ B ARFENESREE
[Esta
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
BIE PR-F 12 280 E
2020 —B-EE
Gross carrying amount (RMB1000) BEEE(ARETT) 858 516 411 45 1,830
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARETR) 3 10 12 1 26
]
2019 “T-nE
Gross carryingamount (RMB000)  BRREE(ARET ) 17 647 55 49 768
Expected creditlosses (RMB000)  FEEREEEE(ARET L) 2 15 2 4 3
ECL FOR BILLS RECEIVABLE EWE R TEEE EEE
Past due
il
Current Less than 1 year 1to2years Over 2 years
B DR—F 128 25N E
2020 —ECER
Gross carrying amount (RMB000) SEEAEAEETT) 543,224 = = = 543,224
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BHEEER(ARETT) 3,864 = = - 3,864
]
2019 “E-RE
Gross carryingamount (RMB000)  #RREE(ARETT) 247814 - - - 247815
Expected creditlosses (AMB00D)  BEEEBBE(ARETT) 2402 - - - 2402
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the "Endorsed Bills") with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB690,951,000 (2019: RMB719,576,000) with maturity ranging
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period, to certain of its
suppliers for settlement of the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
opinion of the directors, all risks and rewards relating to the Endorsed Bills
have been substantially transferred upon the Endorsement. Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure arising
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Endorsed Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Endorsed Bills. No
gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.

23. EZRWHREREBWRRERE (&)
R RE

RZEZZEF+__A=+—H x&EED
MEATHESSEZEEPEHANMIRITE
I - BRAERTE A AR 690,951,000 7T(=
T—NF : AR 719,576,000 7T ) HY FE UL 2=
BUBEER])  NEERNZEHER
MESENRBE(EE])  BRNTHRE
HAR—ZXRNEARN - RIFTPE G EZE
ZRARE  WPEBITERER B8
ZENFBEABEAAEB BRI ([#
B2HE]) - BEEZRE AEEEERAEN
BRIMHRBMEIREELEEREEE
FoAM AEEERIEEREEEEM
HENE S ENREN2ERAE - A%
ERAFELEEERE M EGRANRARR
MBRAZESEZENRTARESRE -
HRENEERE -ESR5  AEEEF
B2EEEZENNFELTEK -

REBEE-_E_ZEFR_FT-—NF+A
= t+—HLFE AEEVEBERNEE
EEZEHBMNEMRESEE - RER
HREHME - HEREFELENTMAK
N BEEER c BEERBEFEAYF
EER o

EOED —F - TFEH
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the balances with related companies and subsidiaries, in
which certain shareholders, executive directors of the Company are also

24. EHEBERRHEDQBRBER

HEE N T LB ARSI E(H
FARRETRR WOTEETRER

direct/indirect shareholders and directors are as follows: MERRRES)NT :
Group
rER
2020 2019
it 223 ZE-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BsE AR®T T ARETIT
Due from related companies FEUWEEE R RFIE
Non-current; JEBNHA -
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment AP OB ME TR
O, LTD. BRAT] (0 - 33,747
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation  FT48 T 14 1B 68 22 2
o, LTD. BRAT - 41
- 33,788
]
Current; BIER -
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Fab T E M TR
o, LTD. BRAT] 1,494 421
HenanLingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. /—JI:'E.&L/U H0BEIR
BRI 264 5
Anhui Xinlianxin Heavy Sealing CO, LTD. TQ/L\L/L\E*UI
BRA 44 22
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. /Tﬁ/L\L/L\ RS K]
BRA 2 297
1,804 745
]
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24. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/

24. ERERQRHEDQBRMER

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) (%)
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—ECEF —TNF
Notes RMB’'000 R\f\//lB’OOO
BisE AR® TR ARETIT
Due to related companies ENREEARIE
Current: BIES
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment #4808 0MbE T
CO, LTD. HEBRAT] (ii) (6,065) (2,867)
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation %8 1 18 5 8 22 5€
O, LTD. BRAT] (i) (5,760) (2,667)
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO, LTD.  SAIE/DEOME TEE
BRAT] (261) (229)
Qingjin, Zhang KES (60) (50)
HenanLingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD.  JAIFA & 38/0E D BER
NG (53) -
Yunhua, Yan SkEs (25) (20)
Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. T RLNBOME R £ R
BRART] (14) (258)
Xinjiang Antai Shenzhou Fengtou CO, LTD.  $T5@ %2 248N =128
BRARA] (M (1)
(12,239) (6,092)
Non-current JEBNHA -
Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation #7814 )1 B/ 68 22 2
O, LTD. BRAF (114) (1451)
Company
¥ NN
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB/OOO
MR AR¥T T AREFIT
Due from subsidiaries FEUEEE R RFIE
Current: BNER :
Henan Hydrogenpower Energy CO, LTD. AEaIERERAR (iv) 97,873 -
Henan Heli Energy CO, LTD. A AR 1 BEIR AR 19 (iv)
BRAT] 41,525 7,600
139,398 7,600
]
Due to a subsidiary PE — KT E A RFRIE
Current: BNES
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser CO, LTD. AR LNBIMEET %
SERMDBRAA 16,850 7,268
]

MELED T -TEFER
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24.

(i)

(iv)

BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES/
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Balance represented prepayments for equipment and spare parts
purchases from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.
Further details are set out in Note 39(a)(iii).

Balance represented other payable for equipment and spare parts
purchases from Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.
Further details are set out in Note 39(a)(iii).

Balances represented other payable for maintenance fees and anti-
corrosion expenses charged by Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion
Installation CO.,, LTD. Further details are set out in Note 39(a)(iii).

Balances represented investment receivables from Henan
Hydrogenpower Energy CO,, LTD. and Henan Heli Energy CO,, LTD. as
ended 31 December 2020.

The balances are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free and
the carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.

25,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS

24.

(iif)

(iv)

ERENTME QRN

(&)

BFBTmOEBEMETREER DA
REERE LT HFEN FIBGEE -
i — 2B EEIE THEFABIRE 39(a) i) ©

BFHBmLE M TRERR AR
RERE LT RN IRR
B E— T FHBIENMEE390)
(ifi) ©

SAET AR AR M BT B 2 A R R AU
U 4 i B A7 18 B A EL A R 5 3K
TAERER o E — SR BENKE
39(a)(iii) ©

R-EBE-FF+-_A=+—AHFEK
TAREENERABR AT MAEARN
BRI AR A R)IRE HIER%E ©

BHRAEER  HEREN RS B%F
e REEREENTERS

25.

BeRkRAETEEYUARCER
EHER

Group
rEE
2020 2019
et —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHE 682,041 884,448
Pledged time deposits EERERER
Current BEA 706,035 499,346
Non-current JEBNEA 1,400 -
1,389,476 1,383,794
]
Less: Pledged time deposits: B BEREEE
Pledged time deposits for bills payable MENZEDERL
E BT (601,501) (378,137)
Pledged time deposits for bank loans HIRITE D ER
E BT - (93,871)
Pledged time deposits for L/C and others SR R E MBI
EHER (105,934) (27,338)
Cash and cash equivalents Re MESEED 682,041 884,448
T
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
TIME DEPOSITS (CONTINUED)

25. ReRREEEFYUREIER

R RIRTTHERR - RS
MIREEEY

Cash and bank balances, representing the cash
and cash equivalents

At 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB648,297,000 (2019: RMB863,666,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

EHER (&)
Company
LN
2020 2019
i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T ARETTT
18,976 16,086
|

R-ZZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H '  UAR
BAENAEERES RBITEBERTA
R#648297000T( ZE—NF : AR
863,666,0007T) ° AR BHAEIRAE
HaER - Rl - ARIBEPBE A INEE
FHED R 45T - EEMMEEERETE - &~
SEEEBRBEREEITINEEBHIRTT
BARB S HAHME o

RITF IR A B RITF A R EEF R
REIAE - EREMFERNF—BE={E
AZBMAZHRE - 8 FAREBEAE R
ERFME - LIRS B /R HERFHA
REREUKE. - RITER R ERFRIE
PPMEE A SR BT HHE R FCER VIR TT ©

26. EZEMNSRE

5 ENFBEBRREHARANRER DT (R
BRZEAE)WT :

Group

rEE
2020 2019
i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Within 1 month TE A AR 169,569 157,435
110 3 months 12 3@ A 109,120 92,956
3to 6 months 3Z61EA 65,384 51,156
6to 12 months 621218 A 121,958 42,167
Over 12 months 128 A LA E 42,947 22922
508,978 366,636

]

EOED —F - TFEH
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26. TRADE PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. Trade payables are denominated in RMB.

27. BILLS PAYABLE

The Group’s bills payable have an average maturity period of 180 days and
are non-interest-bearing. Bills payable are denominated in RMB and are
secured by time deposits of RMB601,501,000 (2019: RMB378,137,000) (Note
25).

28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. EZENFIE(E)
ESREMNTIEARENR—MRNR30E200HA
BIE - B EMPIAUARERHE -

27. BENEE

AEEMEMNEZERFEHR 180 NEIH -
BARE - ENEHUAARESE - WA
EHFRAR®601501,00T(ZE—Ah
F 0 AREE378,137,000 70 ) IR (MI5E25) ©

28. EFTEAREMENE

Group
rEE
2020 2019
t et 223 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Current: ENER :
Accruals FEETE R
Accrued expenses FEETHIS 246,808 224,938
Accruals for construction costs and purchases ERBANEEDE BB
of property, plant and equipment RS Ba T &R 1,311,053 472,008
1,557,861 696,946
]
Other payables HAb R RIR
VAT and other operating tax payables RE R EMENEETIE 11,064 18,405
Tender deposits KiZike 105,460 151,992
Others Hity 172,903 224,450
289,427 394,847
Total accruals and other payables (current) JEETE A I E A e FRE
wEORE) 1,847,288 1,091,793
]
Contract liabilities (Note 6) aHEE (HEe) 818,149 582,181
T
Non-current: JEENER :
Other payables related to the construction of BEME - BB REE
property, plant and equipment 2 E MR IR 89,117 107,019
]
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28. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 28. EFFEAREMESRUE (E)

Company
NN
2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETTT
Current: EN&R :
Accruals FEETE A
Accrued expenses JEET 16,462 17,427
]
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of six ~ HMENFHIBB AR L - FHFEH E/NE
months. A
29. DEFERRED GRANTS 29. EZEREL
Group
rEH
2020 2019
. i —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
Cost: BN
At 1 January m—H—8 118,959 129312
Acquisition of subsidiaries g Tinp= 0N - 5407
Received during the year FAUER 26,863 7,030
Refund of deferred grant REBRTERHAL - (22,790)
At 31 December W+Z—A=+—8H 145,822 118,959
Accumulated amortisation: FEHE
At 1 January Kn—H—H 41,730 33,679
Amortisation during the year FREH 12,670 8,051
At 31 December W+ZRA=+—H 54,400 41,730
Net carrying amount: BRMEDFE -
Current mED 9,317 7,976
Non-current JEmE 82,105 69,253
91,422 77,229
T

EOED —F - TFEH
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29. DEFERRED GRANTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, deferred grants related
to government grants were given to the Group for the construction of
production plants and installation and building of machinery to implement
energy-saving production methods and to reduce production cost. They
are amortised over the useful lives of the related items of property, plant
and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants. During the year, aggregate government grants of
RMB26,863,000 (2019: RMB12,437,000) were received by the Group.

29. EFEFRL ()

N_E-_TF+_A=FT—HBRZZE—N
F+_A=+—H AEEERERF
WAL AR AL - AEREERE A
MR MRS - BEAETENER
EEAFRKBIEEERS - WREEEY
¥ WMEMXEEEMNAFRFEEE -

AEBWHEBEZEMM BB RETIRGE
HHAEE - RER - BFCAAEER

FTEHEARY 26863000 (=T —NF -
AR# 12,437,000 70) BI8E ©
30. LOANS FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 30. FERESZER
Group
rEE
2020 2019
—z-25 —ThE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Loans from a non-controlling interest JEIEE R B 24,870 48670
Less: T
Current portion BNEAZR 5 (24,870) (25,000)
Non-current portion FERNERER 5 - 23,670
]

The loan from a non-controlling interest is unsecured, with no interest
bearing (2019: 4.75% for current portion and Nil for non-current portion):
According to the payment terms of the loan agreement between the
parties, RMB24,870,000 (2019: RMB25,000,000) is expected to be repaid
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period and is
considered as current liability as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

EREEERAEREREREE(ZE—N
& AIEER S ZiiFEUBﬂJﬂ/\/\ﬁu%kfF*U
475% R EFTR) o RIBE T I E XK
FE TG AR 248700007 (==
— N AR 25000,0007T) FEHR A RS
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFERITREMER
BORROWINGS
2019
ZENE
Contractual interest Contractual
rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMBI000
Group pie-1:] A= HHA AEETT RiF% £|5A AREFT
Current ik
Bank loans FIER
- secured -EHE 4% 2021 283,214 435%-6.53% 2020 2423
ot S “Z°%
- unsecured -EAR 3.522%-6.525% 2021 3,527,013 363%-6.18% 200 2346561
“B--E -%-%
Loan from the government HIFER
- unsecured -EHA - - - Floating rate at 0.3% 2020 909
above the market prime ZREE
lending rate
i
(BRTEER
BEHR03)
Loansfiom leasing company/ ~~ REAFER/ BN 475% 2021 327433 475% 200 182476
finance lease payables FARE ZBz-fF %%
4,137,660 2774169
Non-current 78
Bank loans FIER
- secured -EER 6% 202202027 540,000 5.70%-6.18% 201 10,000
—E-CEZR i
It ad 3
- Unsecured -BER 3.88%-6.20% 2022102026 4115925 475%-6.18% 202110 206 3413988
Stk 3 e S
ZEIR ZEIR
Loansfrom easing company/ ~~ ERFEF/EXH 475% 2022102023 554,134 475% 110202 315099
finance ease payables HERE St 33 “E--F%F
—ECCE B
5,210,059 3739087
9,347,119 6,513,256
T

EOED —F - TFEH
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. EFERTREMGER(E)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Group
rEH
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETTT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: AEBERITER
Within one year or on demand —FARIRENKEE 3,810,227 2,590,784
In the second year F_F 2,101,962 2,486,204
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FFERF
(&) 2,298,963 896,784
Beyond five years AFE 255,000 41,000
8,466,152 6,014,772
Loan from the government:; BRER
Within one year or on demand —FAIRERKIEERE - 909
Loans from leasing company/finance lease ENHEERRER
payables: BEMEE
Within one year or on demand —FAPIRERIERE 327,433 182,476
In the second year BEF 385,306 119,355
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-—EFRF
(2) 168,828 195,744
881,567 497,575
9,347,719 6,513,256
]
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. FFESETRAEMMER (&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: FaE -

(@) The Group's bank facilities amounting to RMB11,534,288,000 (2019: @ AEB ARM11,534288000C (=T —
RMB9,220,600,000), of which RMB6,322,332,000 (2019: RMB5,034,545,000) had F 1 ARM9,2206000007T ) KR 1T @&
been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are unsecured. B HR AR®6,3223320000(ZF— N

&+ ARM5,034,5450007T) RS EARE
B - TR

(b) The Group's bank loans of RMB823,214,000 (2019: RMB254,223,000) are secured (b) A B /IR 1T B R A R #823,214,000 7T
loan. Among of which, the current bank loans amounting to RMB28,000,000 (ZZE—NF: AR¥254223 OOOT_E) y=)
are guaranteed by the related companies and a third party, Xinxiang Xinlianxin BEBER . Hh - BIHRITERAR
Chemicals Equipment CO., LTD,, Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO., LTD. 28,000,000 7T 9 B Bt 2 7& Eﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ
and Henan Shenleng New Energy Development CO,, LTD. The current bank TEME T RAEBR AT ~ A EOED
loans amounting to RMB187,214,000 are secured by the pledge of certain of {ETEEBRR 7&7[?5/5&/7\ G
the Group’s bill receivable amounting to RMB187,214,000. Besides, the current BRAGRMEER - BIAIRT E/TA/\E
bank loan amounting to RMB60,000,000 and non-current bank loan amounting 187,214,000 7T AR R BB T W R 1R K
to RMB540,000,000 are guaranteed by property, plant and equipment of TEHATF SR A R B8 187,214,000 TTIEHE IR - Uit
RMB985,424,000. The rest of loans with the amount of RMB8,000,000 are secured Sh - BNERER 17 & XA K ¥ 60,00,000 7T K&
by juridical persons. JERNERE kA R ¥ 540,000,000 T A A R

985,424,000 TTEV I 5 - R/ MR iR (it 2
R HEAE AR 8,000,000 7T A A TR
HAER o

© The loans from leasing company of RMB881,567,000 (2019: RMB497,575,000) are © HERRIERARY 881,567,000 (= 2

secured by certain of the Group’s items of property, plant and equipment. — N /\ R¥497,575,00070) AR E S
BTV - BEREEEBEER -

(d) Balance of RMB137,450,000 (2019: RMB281,141,000) are denominated in United (d) EER AR ¥137,450000T (ZF — L4 -
States dollars ("USD") as at the end of the reporting period. All remaining }\E%B] 141,00070) R & BARIAE T
borrowings are in RMB. ([T DEHE - FTER TEBRENAARK

FHE ©
2019
—T-NF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMB'000
Company NG| BHFE 3I4A ARBT R BRI gl AREFT
Current b
Bank loans BITER
- unsecured - R LIBOR +1.40% 2021 137,450 LIBOR +1.20% 2020 181,381
]
(@  The bank loans of RMB137,450,000 (2019: RMB181,381,000) are  (a)  $R1T & K A R % 137,450,000 70 ( =

denominated in United States dollars ("USD") as at the end of the
reporting period.

%—ﬂi-AEMms&mwﬂ
RREEARUFETT ([FETT))FHE -

hELELD — S -_TFFH
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A reconciliation of liabilities (excluding lease liabilities) arising from

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31. EFERTREMGER(E)

MERPELCZAE(MEREEERE)Z

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

financing activities is as follows: HERWT -
Non cash changes
FREHE
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2019 Cashflows W  movement Other 2020
Group XEE —T-NE HeRE HEAR EXZE Hir [t 2oa
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT BNE A0
Loans from a non-controlling e RN E R
interest
- current ) 25,000 (25,000) - - 24870 24,870
- non-current -3ERE 23670 1,200 - - (24,870) -
Interest-bearing bank and TRRITREMIET
other borrowings
- current - 2,774,169 (136,781) 35,000 (32924) 1,498,19% 4,137,660
- non-current B i) 3,739,087 2902712 20173 - (1451913) 5,210,059
Bonds payable [ENBEESR
- current - 500,000 (500,000) - - - -
- non-current -3 388,697 97,000 - - 4195 489,892
Total 1@zt 7450623 2,339,131 55173 (32924) 50478 9,862,481
|



31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31. FTRBITREAMER (&)

Non cash changes

FREE
Acquisition of Foreign
subsidiaries exchange
2018 Cashflows W movement Other 2019
Group KEE —TN\F BeneE =N 3R Hth —Z-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Loansfromanon-controlling ~ FEEMRERER
interest
- current -RE 50,500 (50,5500) - - 25,000 25,000
- non-current -FERE 25,000 23670 - - (25,000) 23670
Interest-bearing bank and SERITREMER
other borrowings
- current - g 2,774452 (995,926) 118,000 (13,557) 891,200 2,774,169
- non-current -ERH 2568439 2,190,439 81,000 - (1,100,791) 3,739,087
Bonds payable EfRES
- current i) - - - - 500,000 500,000
- non-current -FRE 692833 194,000 - - (498,136) 388,607
Total 1@t 6,111,224 1,361,683 199,000 (13,557) (207,727) 7450623

The ‘other’ column relates to reclassification of non-current portion of loans
and borrowings including obligations under finance leases due to passage
of time, interest accretion on bonds payable and reclassification of finance
lease payables to lease liabilities.

[Ht ] — S ERREHEREH D BER N
ER(BEREMERE) 2RI D E
NEFOFESE LR EHERNKIAE
DHEAHEREARR -

EOED —F - TFEH
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32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

32. REHE

Group
TEE
2020 2019
—ECEH —T-NHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETTT
At the beginning of year REH] 24,276 23,836
Additions NE 447 440
Atthe end of year RER 24,723 24,276
]

A provision for rehabilitation is mainly recognised for the present value of
estimated costs to be incurred in complying with the Group’s obligations
for the closure and environmental restoration and clean-up on completion
of the Group’s mining activities. These costs are expected to be incurred
on mine closure, based on the estimated rehabilitation expenditures
at the mine when the mining licence expires, and are discounted at a
discount rate of 4.90% for the year ended 31 December 2020. Changes
in assumptions could significantly affect these estimates. Over time, the
discounted provision is increased for the change in the present value
based on the discount rate that reflects current market assessments and
risks specific to the provision. The periodic unwinding of the discount is
recognised in profit or loss as part of interest expenses.

33. BONDS PAYABLE

RE R T BERBAREN TR AEBR
A B B 1T RAR SRR IR E MBI ) &
5 EE £ R A ET AR IR E IR » RIFZR
AT Al 7 B B R LU O A R T IRTE ST - 5%
FRATER SRR EL - WK
E_T_TF+ A=t HLEFENR
ET490%?EEE REWEE A R E %
EMAELEEARE - BERBHHER -
Tﬁiﬁﬁéﬁlﬁﬁ/\&ﬂ%”‘*L*i%EHm‘DEZ%%
B TRRNITIRENIVEZZ ME N -
EHRFAITRN BT RER S SR H
i)

33. FEES

Group

REE
2020 2019
—BCEF —T—NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBFT

Analysed into amount repayable: DT RER S
Within one year —FR - 500,000
In the second year REZF 196,202 -
In the third year RE=F 293,690 194,311
In the fourth year REMF = 194,386
Current B EA - 500,000
Non-Current JEENER 489,892 388,697
489,892 888,697
]
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33. BONDS PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

33.

The bonds of RMB200,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 issued in 2018 and n=

2019 have a maturity term of within five years and three years respectively,
bear fixed interest rates of 6.98% and 5.70% per annum. In May 2020, the
Group issued a bond of RMB100,000,000 with a maturity term of within 3

years and a fixed interest rate of 5.20%.

34. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

&S (&)

—NER=
2oo,ooo,ooo TR A E #£ 200,000,000 7T B {&
FRRRAFER=FAEH - ZEEFF
E698% K 570%FT B RZ_F =
A AEEET

—NFBTOARE

TEFH
A R 100,000,000 7T B9 &

7 BIHIFEA=F - REEFHES520%

o
E+ /%\ °

34,

e

EEBE
AEREEHREREMEEZI BRI

FEERIEEE

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
=1y
ATELRK  Withholding tax Total
AR EFAE EINHE #Et
([EE)] (Note b)
(Ffzxa) (FffEED)
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
rEE ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 —hF—HA—H 22,443 9,130 31,573
Deferred tax (credited)/charged FREBRREGIA)

to profit or loss during the year R AEESIE (Fi5E11)

(Note 11) (1,468) 18,878 17410
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB AR 3732 - 3732
At 31 December 2019 and F:ﬁ—ﬂi‘f‘_ﬂ:‘f’—ﬁ

1 January 2020 ER-ZZFE-_FTF—H—H 24,707 28,008 52,715
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FRFEIBZRFT AREETLIE

loss during the year (Note 11) (B=E 1) (3,404) (7,991) (11,395)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R B B8 2 A (B3 37(a))

(Note 37(a)) 8,823 - 8,823
At 31 December 2020 W_Z_ZF+_A=+—H 30,126 20,017 50,143

RELED T -TEFR
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34. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35. RZEHIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS BEHIEEE
Loss available for
offsetting against
future taxable
profits Deductible
88 R K temporary
b | ol N ) differences Total
RIERBE AHBERERS st
(Note c)
ETI)
Group RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
rEH AR%T AR¥ TR AR® TR
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 7,001 76,231 83,322
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREEZENR GTA) K
to profit or loss during the year EIERIIE (FiaE11)
(Note 11) 26,565 (16,027) 10,538
At 31 December 2019 and 1 RZE—NF+_HA=+—H
January 2020 ERZZE_TF—H—H 33,656 60,204 93,860
Deferred tax charged to profitor  FRTE BRI AIRETRH
loss during the year (Note 11) (MEE1T) 5,109 934 6,043
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note ~ URBERI B A &) (M 37(a))
37(a)) - 527 527
At 31 December 2020 W_E_TF+_A=1+—H 38,765 61,665 100,430

Notes:

BtEE
Deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments upon acquisitions of (a
subsidiaries represent the deferred tax liabilities on the fair value uplift of the
net tangible assets owned by the subsidiaries, arising in 2011, 2015, 2018, 2019
and 2020. The deferred tax liabilities are amortised to the profit or loss over the
estimated useful lives of related assets.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied (b)

on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China for earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group made provision for
deferred tax liabilities on withholding tax at 10% of the forecasted dividend pay-
out of the earnings of all its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that
the PRC subsidiaries would pay out all their earnings as dividends.
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HIRIERIA B E  IRIETIR A BT AMER
BEMHEAFEIESE -

REBEPECEMBRE LT LF
T A=t R WESET B AR L
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34, DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 35. IRIERIIE (1)

Notes: (continued) sk« (48)

© Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses (© KRERMBEENECHBEEAESBEAA

amounted to RMB40,207,000 (2019: RMB36,762,000) as in the opinion of the R #40207000c( ZZE—NLF: ARK
directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available 36,762,0007C) * R NN EE R K 2D
against which the tax losses can be utilised. It 02 B AR A A R EUE B IR ESE -

() Unrecognised temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries ()] AERMBARIRENRERL R ETE
A deferred tax liability of RMB177,104,000 (2019: RMB134,856,000) that could BRI DIRER Z B B B Al E iR
arise upon the distribution of profit at certain subsidiaries has not been provided FIRE AN - WA RFAE THBER
for as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the distributable profits is controlled and A km M AT EAE ZIEERIBEAGBA
there is currently no intention for the profits to be remitted to Singapore. R¥177,10400 L (ZF—NF : AR

134,856,000 7T ) YEH B 5

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. B&

Number of ordinary shares Amount
ZEREE &8

2020 2019
S8 —=-ns
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARETFT

Issued and fully paid BT AT 1,171,621,000 1,171,621,000 1,194,686 1,194,686*
I

* Equivalent to Singapore dollars (“SGD") 242,261,000 in 2020 and SGD230,906,000 * —TTHFEMRE #242 261,000 %7 0 3

in2019. ([ #FmExl) - —NEEER

230,906,000 %ﬁﬂﬂiﬂin °

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when BREAEAARZEARARATEIRAK
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share B ' FiB L BRI FEKRERE - &} ﬁﬂxﬁﬁf
without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value. HE °
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36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law applicable
to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to make
appropriations to the Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF"). At least 10% of
the after-tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until
the cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

The special reserve refers to the safety fund accrued but not yet used for
the coal mining operations.

In 2020, other reserve mainly arises from capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounting to RMB41,260,000.

In 2019, other reserve mainly arises from capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries amounting to RMB187,174,000
and charged with acquisition of non-controlling interest shares of Xinjiang
Xinlianxin Energy Chemical CO,, LTD. and Henan Shenleng Energy CO,, LTD.
amounting to RMB66,245,000 and RMB4,851,000 respectively.
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36. f#fE

AEBRAFEMBEFENFHERL
BRZHCNGEERESHRAZS

RBERNTENBRRNINEBELE
e REMBARARREELERHESR
(DEREFBEE ] - REERNTBEEE
A BRI EE FE BRI A RO ZE 2 10%
PRADBEREAEREE  BEEXEHER
M REFHABEEERZENBAREMER
H)50% o AXHERA R BB HLER - SR E R
o Al MR RSH I Rt B IR SR I F
MEARNEMER - XERF BT
RABRRIEL R E DI

5 I e 5 1 O R ) PR AR 2 P R EHE i R A3
RHRIEES -

R-ZE-_ZTF - EMHEEEZZREHEA
AR I R A EE AR 41,260,000 7T ©

RZE-—NF HFEEEZEREHNE
N A IEFERR IR R A EE AR5 187,174,000
TG AR W EEFT B OB RERIETH
FRA B A RO E LR AZ BRI D AR A
AIMSEIERERR D - ORI AARE
66,245,000 7T E2 A R ¥ 4,851,000 7T °



37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
37 (A) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

ACQUISITION OF XINXIANG RUICHENG TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND ITS
SUBSIDIARY XINXIANG RUINUO PHARMACEUTICAL CO,, LTD. (“XINXIANG
RUICHENG & XINXIANG RUINUO")

During the period from 24 February to 30 June 2020, Hydrogen Energy
(the subsidiary of the Group) signed equity transfer agreements with
various shareholders to acquire equity shares of Xinxiang Ruicheng and
the Company signed a subscription agreement with Xinxiang Ruicheng to
acquire additional shares for consideration amounted to RMB44 million. The
Group’s equity shares in Xinxiang Ruicheng totalled 51% as at 30 June 2020.

Xinxiang Ruicheng is engaged in the manufacturing and trading in medical
intermediates. Further details of the transaction are included in note 44
(d) to the financial statements. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to expand its market share of manufacturing and trading in
medical intermediates.

37. X¥BE6f
37 (A) RMIBARIRE

Y b 3 AR 3 L R B D B IR X B R B P 8
NEFT A R AR A ([ 8 im &
#abtnes 1)

—E-EF_A-tWBEEXNA=TH
HfE » Hydrogen Energy ( 4 22 B B9 1 B A
7)) SRR EZBREEE B A
B ImB A B - AR A B R A I A
REBHEUANEEIINRGD  RERARKE
44,0000007C c RZZT=TFA=+H -
REBRIF I ARAES £ 51% ©

A B SR R B A E M E o
AR ZEE - T BEENM B RRM T
44(d) ° LRI R AN ERABEH HE
MAEEMEE TS BB —

EOED —F - TFEH
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 37. ¥EKE6F(E)
A RITBATIRE (8)

ACQUISITION OF XINXIANG RUICHENG TECHNOLOGY CO, LTD. AND ITS Hﬁzﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁfﬁuﬁw&ﬂxf BRARRENE
SUBSIDIARY XINXIANG RUINUO PHARMACEUTICAL CO,, LTD. ("XINXIANG N Im e s B R A F) ([ #4885 5 &

RUICHENG & XINXIANG RUINUO") (CONTINUED) Mlisss ) (8)

AR E B N B B e O M B B B RO T BB
BEMBEMNAHAFERT

7 (A) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The consolidated fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Xinxiang Ruicheng & Xinxiang Ruinuo as at the date of acquisition were as
follows:

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

RUREERERN
AEE
Notes RMB'000
BisE ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEED 79,000
Inventories FE 55,046
Trade receivables B ZRIGK 58,380
Other receivables /HWEJEHQTAIE 41,795
Property, plant and equipment W~ BB KEE 14 151,103
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 12,921
Intangible assets | EE 16 14,658
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE B 34 527
Other non-current assets HAIEmBIEE 1311
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ETERITREMER (55,173)
Trade payables B S ENFIE @1 960)
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E MR FRIB (48,959)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIARE 34 (8823)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEFAENAIBNFEELE 260,326
Less: Non-controlling interests (49.00%) T FEIERARAE ZR (49.00%) (152,822)
Net assets acquired FrisiE & E 107,504
Goodwil B 17 34,021
Purchase consideration W (E 141,525
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)
7 (A) INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

ACQUISITION OF XINXIANG RUICHENG TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND ITS
SUBSIDIARY XINXIANG RUINUO PHARMACEUTICAL CO,, LTD. (“XINXIANG
RUICHENG & XINXIANG RUINUO") (CONTINUED)

37. ¥XBE0(HE)
A) RHEQEIRE (&)

H&ﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬂﬁ‘iﬂxf BRABNENES
NEFT A R AR A ([ 8 im &
#abines ) (48)

Effects on cash flows
of the Group
HEEEESRE
s
Notes RMB'000
B=E AREETFIT
Consideration transferred for the acquisition of WA B R A RENEERE
Xinxiang Ruicheng & Xinxiang Ruinuo
Purchase consideration WHERE 141,525
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired & @ FTUEBHTE A 78IRS &
REEEY (79,000)
Net cash outflow on acquisition UWWEEHYIR &R F5a 62,525

The purchase price allocation review was finalised as at 30 June 2020.

TRANSACTION COSTS

There was no transaction costs related to the acquisition recognized in the
Group's profit or loss.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ACQUIRED

Trade and other receivables acquired comprise of trade and other
receivables with fair values of RMB100,675,000. Their gross amounts are
RMB100,675,000 are expected to be collected.

IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION ON PROFIT OR LOSS

From the acquisition date, Xinxiang Ruicheng & Xinxiang Ruinuo has
contributed RMB231,856,000 of revenue and RMB22,272,000 to the Group’s
profit for the year. If the business combination had taken place at the
beginning of the year, the revenue from continuing operations would have
been RMB10,660,334,000 and the Group's profit for the year would have
been RMB552,181,000.

BEE RSN
SEAK ©

F-2FXA=+A

RS

WEKBERENRZZKARNEENIER
EFITJEM‘J\ ©

FUEBEN'E 5 Mo A FE M TR IR

FriiEmE 5 M A BB EATE
AN EE100,675,000 7T B B 5 K Ho 4t FE Uk

BRI - HE ST AR 100675000 LIEET
HRFUCER o
s s EZ—

B UKEE B HARE - FT AR Im A T A Imas B AN
EBEEFREEUWAARE 231,856,000 7T &
R REE 22,272,000 7T © IR EKA G
EEFY  AEBNFELERAZBA
R ¥10,660,334,0007C * M AEEHFE R
Hi A A R #E 552,181,000 7T °

EOED —F - TFEH
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

37 (B) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group's investments in associates are summarised below:

37. XBE6F(E)
37 (B) REEZE N RIIRE

REEREERARIRERBLAT -

Group
rEE
2020 2019
—E-SE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Jiujiang Pengcheng Port CO, LTD. (“Pengcheng”) Ui QAR A7)
(rz#l) 89,656 11,947
Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. SAE BRI OELEERAR A A
(‘Lingtong’) (FE@]) 4,755 5,046
94,411 16993
T

Aggregate information about the Group's investments in associates that are

not individually material are as follows:

ARAEEREE A ARE GHEREX)
M ERIT

Total comprehensive income net of tax

2 WS A E R

Group

REE
2020 2019
=t N i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
582 (260)

The summarised financial information in respect of Lingtong and
Pengcheng, based on its IFRS financial statements and a reconciliation
with the carrying amount of the investments in the consolidated financial

statements are as follows:
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED) 37. XBE6F(E)

7 (B) INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) B) ME¢ZNTIIRE (8)

SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BN KRR

2020

ke i 223

RMB’000

Lingtong EBE ARBT T
Inventories T8 115
Trade receivables B 5 EBGRIE 128
Other receivables E At RN IR 36
Other current assets HibhmeEh&E 567
Property, plant and equipment M - BE RS 13,670
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE (745)
Accruals and other payables FEEHE R I H A JE AT RIE (186)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATVEAENFIBNFEEES 13,585
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEHEERELLE 35%
Group's share of net assets AEEENTEE 4,755
2020

—E-EF

RMB’000

Pengcheng £ AR® TR
Other receivables EAtb EHGRIR 338,360
Other current assets EfRBIEE 15,209
Property, plant and equipment W BB N 150,668
Accruals and other payables FEET B A I E e A< /I8 (266)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ETERITREMBER (205,000)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEAENAIBNFEELE 298,971
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEEHERENLE 30%
Group's share of net assets REBEGTE 89,691

EOED —F - TFEH
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37.

7 (C) DISPOSAL OF OWNERSHIP IN INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY,

WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

DISPOSAL OF OWNERSHIP IN INTEREST IN HENAN XLX

On 19 June 2020, the Group disposed of a 2.067% equity interest in Henan
XLX. Following the disposal, the Group still controls Henan XLX and its
subsidiaries, retaining 76.31% of the ownership interests. The transaction
has been accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling

interests, resulting in:

37. XBE6F(E)
) HEMB AR EEEERDM T X
LR
HENREOENEEEER
ﬁ/\‘\:?_?/\ﬂ"i'jla $E.Hj /_Jﬁ
BN 2067% B IR HE - HEER - NEE

s EOELRERB AR - WIRE
7631%%%&%%%& °c MRS EANERIEE
PR AER A RRAE ABR - BEL:

2020
— i

RMB’000
AR®T T

Proceeds from sale of ownership interest L ERBREERFTSHIR 200,000

Less: Net assets attribution to NCI B BERIEER R FEE (158,740)

Increase in equity attributable to parent entity BN RN R B SRR N 41,260
|

On 30 September 2019, the Group disposed of a 9.479% equity interest in
Henan XLX. Following the disposal, the Group still controls Henan XLX and
its subsidiaries, retaining 78.38% of the ownership interests. The transaction

—NEALA=1TH KEFEHEN
FEOB D 0479% HIPLHE - HER - KNEE
iEglaEOELRENEAT - WIRE

has been accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling ~ 7838% HI¥E B % © EZ X5 EAERIEE
interests, resulting in: RIERHBRERZ S AR - B2
2019
—NEF
RMB'000
AREFT
Proceeds from sale of ownership interest D EEEERERPTSE 796,500
Less: Net assets attribution to NCI B BB FEE (609,326)
Increase in equity attributable to parent entity SBENE AR EEAERIE I 187,174
|
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

7 (C) DISPOSAL OF OWNERSHIP IN INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARY,
WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

DISPOSAL OF OWNERSHIP IN INTEREST IN HENAN XINXING CHEMICAL
(XINXING CHEMICAL)

On 19 June 2020, the Group disposed of a 39.388% equity interest in
Xinxing Chemical. Following the disposal, the Group still controls Xinxing
Chemical, retaining 60.61% of the ownership interests. The transaction has
been accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling interests,
resulting in:

37. ¥XKE6t(8#])

O HEMBAREREERM X
R (E)

HENEOEL T (ODEAT) AR
MR

RZZEZZFAATIE  AEBREL

Fl{k, T 39388% MIAR#E - HER ANEE
Wﬁﬂm%kl IR B8 60.61% K1 A #E
%AOMx%EWE#?h%ka%Q
SRR - B

2020
ket 23
RMB’000

ARETR
Proceeds from sale of ownership interest HE BRSPS EIR 33,480
Less: Net assets attribution to NCI B BERIERERTFEE (33,480)
Increase in equity attributable to parent entity BN AR BB ERIE M =

|

37 (D) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Country of incorporation and
Name operation

L AEMR K BB X

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser CO,, LTD.
ARLEME BT EEERRG
BRAH

of fertiliser

RN (CIENEENE S

Mainland China, Manufacture and trading

D) ERFERERNNE LT

BAEASREHIERN B QRN KE
BT

TR S FTS ARHELL 1)

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF

76.31%

78.37%

EOED —F - TFEH
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37.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

37 (D) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest:

37. XBE6F(E)
37 (D) EARFEEREZNMME AT (&)
BRI A BT ER%E ¢

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser CO,, LTD.

A EDEME BT E B
BRAA]

Profit allocated to material non-controlling interest:

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser CO,, LTD.

AELEMEBTREERN,

BRAA]

2020 2019

—T-FF —E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARBFTT

1,327,172 1,164,985
L

D EAEEAIFE AR AR A -

2020 2019

. i —E-NEF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMTT ARBF T

97,339 48,106
T

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided
below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

Summarised statement of profit or loss for 2020:

ZEMBARNMEERNMBINT - ZE&
FERNGRARIREEER < 28 -

2020

—BIEF

RMB’000

AR® T

Revenue from contracts with customers REBEFE DA 10,282,782
Cost of sales HEMA (8,052,006)
Gross profit EF 2,230,776
Profit before tax FRBEATER 560,325
Income tax FFriSas 77,441
Profit for the year from continuing operations BELSEEENEERF 482,884
Total comprehensive income 2 HN AR 482,884
Attributable to non-controlling interests SRR IR G 420,229
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT T IERE R M R U AR 62,655

|
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

7 (D) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020:

37. XBE6F(E)
D) EAFFIERERME AT (8)

R-Z-_ZTF+-A=1t—HB2Z2HBRR
RIPE

2020
—v—qu

RMB’000
ARMF T

Inventories and cash and bank balances (Current) T8 - Be RRTEHR ORED) 2,194,360
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets WE BELEERAMIEREEE

(non-current) (GEmED) 16,247,411
Total equity R 5,869,710
Attributable to: J/){—It/\iJTETE :

Equity holders of parent NRERFEA 5,585,956

Non-controlling interests 3Fhﬁx%ﬁ7’1 283,754

|

Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 2020:

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLFEZ
REREME

2020
—g-%5

RMB’000
AR®T T

Operating

R RS

1,917,622

Investing

RE RS

(3,723,352)

Financing

BELH

1,569,528

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

HERREEENRLD FEE (236,202)

EOED —F - TFEH
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38. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital and other commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

38. TRiE

REBRHREMREEG AT ER R E A%

Group
rEH
2020 2019
—E-EH —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Capital commitments BAAEIE
Contracted, but not provided for: BERT4ERBHE
Buildings gF 1,083,528 826,213
Plant and machinery R e e 2,536,334 2,919,181
Coal mines B 12,727 15,408
3,632,589 3,760,802
T
Other commitments H b dE
Purchases of raw materials BEERME 833,238 812,342
T
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year:

Notes

Fifzt

FIATAR#EEKREREA

Sales of electricity, water and steam to: *

HELXRS

BT ELESEHREREMEBS %L
mx%%’$$l#$Wﬁﬁ
ET TR S -

2020 2019
—s-%5 —T—nF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF 7 ARBF

~ Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD.* —AmELENERHE

~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, LTD. * - %ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁi/b@/mtl?&

- Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. *

- Xingjiang Shenleng Gas CO, LTD. #

- Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy CO, LTD*

AATR Tﬁﬁ;ﬁjkea

Purchases of electricity, water and steam from:

- Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. *

Sales of goods and raw material to:

I‘EUL;QTQET%%%%&J?M

~ Xinlianxin Chemnicals Equipment CO, LTD. ¥ -3 m:uuu{tl

- Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. *

- Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD.

- Henan Shenleng Gas CO, LTD. #

- Xingjiang Shenleng Gas CO, LTD. *

562 687

350 398

49 -

= 67305

- 14,010

961 82400
]

= 62

= 62
]

1,072 297

1,332 2469

12 -

= 131867

= 919

2,416 135,552
]
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,\7.1- 7_]’& iﬁﬂzﬁ Bﬁ? For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #{ 2 —

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

— =

7—7

Ft+_H=+—HIFE

39. E%@Ex% (II‘E)

2020 2019
—BCRE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wisr AR¥TT AREFT
Purchases of equipment and service fee expenses FATAREBER
from: KRB &S (i)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, - T OEME TR
LTD.* BRAT 79,367 63,959
- Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-corrosion Installation - AN RS
Co,LTD.* BRAE" 12,440 8121
— Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD. * - JI%L\L!UF& #
BRA = 18
91,807 72,098
T
Purchase of goods or raw materials from: AT ARBEBERMN
JRAEE - (iv)
— Henan Lingtong Xinlianxin Energy CO, LTD. # - AEEBLELER
BRAT 7,645 4963
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, - Fm B ML TR
LTD.* BRAF 6,855 126
- Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy CO, LTD* —EE KRR
BRAR = 91
14,500 5,180
]
Operating lease income from: REUTRREETEERA -
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, -3 FTMJL/U{I:I
o.* BRA 56 -
— Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou CO, LTD * - ﬂﬁﬂ/b%@bﬁ%iﬁﬁ
BRAR" 21 -
77 -
T
Service income from: RE AT R BRI ARTS
LN )
- Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, L FDIL\L/UTEIWJ%
LTD.* BRA 9 42
— Henan Xinlianxin Jingmi Fengtou Co Ltd # - ‘}ﬂfﬁ’#ﬁ/b%@bﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ
BRAR" 9 41
— Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO, LTD? —ELNEMETIER
ABRAT 9 9
- Xingjiang Shenleng Gas CO, LTD. * - DEORRAREARAT - 845
— Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy CO, LTD # —SAROERR R
BRRE" - 47
— Anhui Xinlianxin Fengtou CO, LTD * - REDELHBEARD = 16
27 1,000
]
Loan guarantee from: REUTRERERER (vi)
- Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO, - LEME TR
LTD.* ARAR 10,000 10,000
— Henan Shenleng New Energy Development CO, - ffﬁééﬁ@ bﬁffﬁ?"‘
LTD.* BREA 18,000 -
— Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO, LTD. * - ﬂﬁé'b?@b{tl%@
BRAE) - 10,000
28,000 20,000
T
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39.

(iii)

(vi)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

These companies are subsidiaries of Henan Chemicals Equipment CO,, LTD.,,
which has common shareholders with the Company. The Company’s executive
directors and executive officers have certain equity interests in Henan Chemicals
Equipment CO,, LTD.

These companies are controlled by Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy CO,, LTD,,
which was the associate of the Group before 30 April 2019.

The amounts represent gross sales of by-products.

The sales of electricity were made according to the unit cost of electricity
announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform Committee (J7]
LER M EZL B D) The sales of water and steam were made according to
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.

The purchase of electricity, water and steam were made according to the unit
cost of electricity announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform
Committee (A & 2 R FItR &£ & B 2). The sales of water and steam were
made according to mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract
between the parties.

The purchases of property, plant and equipment were charged based on the
mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.
The service fee expenses were the maintenance costs, which were charged by
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO.,, LTD. and Xinxiang Shenzhou Anti-
corrosion Installation CO,, LTD. respectively.

The purchases of goods and raw materials were charged by Henan Lingtong
Xinlianxin Energy CO., LTD. and Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment CO.,
LTD. from which the group purchased fuel oil, spare parts and gas respectively.

The service income represents brand royalty paid by related parties.

Henan Xinlianxin Shenleng Energy CO., LTD and Henan Heli Energy CO,, LTD,;
borrowed bank loans amounting to RMB10,000,000 and RMB18,000,000
respectively by which is secured by Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment
CO, LTD, Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group CO,, LTD. and Henan Shenleng New
Energy Development CO, LTD. respectively.

All the related party transactions above constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

#

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

RELSXS (&)

ZENTR BB T REER AT B
DA OAEE TRRCR AR BRI
[l > RARMAITES RITHRA BRI
EIREBRARERE TIRE -

RZZE-NEWEB=THZZFAFH
A& B B N A OB DR R BEIRBR
DBERREEES -

ZECHRRREERMNHERE

HEBNDRBEITREERNNERZES
R E N BRIKAIE  $HERKRE
FIRIRHE S KR N E T R I E 2 1R
AEH -

REBKERFZOIDRBTE R ERMABE
ZEENHOENEMRARIEL - HER
IKEREATIRBHE S KA T ET WL
TEZMEFRAEH

BEME  BEMREIRIBHES R
TR E 2 R © BRG B S
REEER - DRIBRFEHLEMETR
BARAR LM BHEMNDBLREARA
AR -

REE QMR AT EEROELEER
BRAREFBHOLBEMETREARA
BIER - AEEmEEEREDL - TEM

R -
PRSI A SERIBET S RO IS E o

AR E LR RBERRMD B R A R XA
MARNERBNHBRAR  BERTE
o Bl A AR #10,0000007T & A R
18,000,000 7C + ERFTAF T OEME LRIBEHR
Raa  AEsEMEIEEBRATR
SARRRFEERFAE B R A AR EER -

EXHREBETRZEREEHARS
FIERARIRER ETMRAE+HAZRR
EHRFERERXZREERS -

EOED —F - TFEH
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the

39. BEFRS (&)
b AEFBEELTEZEEEAEMH

Group: i -

Group

rEH
2020 2019
—E-EH —T—NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Directors' fees FEHRE 1,050 1,050
Salaries and bonuses e RAEAT 16,174 13,402
Contributions to defined contribution plans TE R G Rl E AR S 128 84
17,352 14,536

T

Further details of the directors remuneration are included in Note 9 to these
financial statements.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

40. EDEIRHNERMIE

REEHR FEeRITANKREEN
T~

IFRS 9 measurement category

AR S RIS 9 ST B R

bt 223
Fair value
through other
comprehensive
Fair value through income
profit or loss Amortised cost BAYEFA Total
RAVER ABE BERA Hin2EKE @t
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
bis-. | (=3 ARBTR N AR¥BTR ARETR
Equity investmentts at fair value BATEFABRE
through profit or loss RERE 19 22,800 = = 22,800
Trade and bills receivables B HREIER
et 3 539,360 204,032 - 743,392
Financial assets included in deposits 5T Ad& & R E At fEUR
and other receivables HENSREE 20 = 156,063 = 156,063
Due from related companies VNG 2% = 1,804 - 1,804
Pledged time deposits EEAESRER 25 - 707,435 - 707,435
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBR2EEY 25 = 682,041 = 682,041
562,160 1,751,375 - 2,313,535

RELED T -TEFR

199



Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 812 —F ZFF+ = =1 —HIFFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. BROFEIRNEMTE (F)
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 9 measurement category
BB B S X RS 9 SRt 2185

2019
—T-NEF
Fair value through
other comprehensive
Fair value through income
profit or loss Amortised cost BATERA Total
BATEH A BR BERA Hin2E Bt
Group Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KEE Bzt ARETFTL AREFTT AREFTL AREFTT
Equity investments at fair value BATE ABRA
through profit or loss RIERE 19 27611 - - 27611
B HRWFIER
Trade and bills receivables EER 23 245413 148,006 - 393419
Derivative financial instruments FEemTA 2 1358 - - 1358
Financial assets included in deposits 5 A ¥k & K E b UL
and other receivables TENEREE 20 - 68033 - 68033
Due from related companies JEW FE N AR 2% - 745 - 745
Pledged time deposits BT R 25 - 499,346 - 499,346
Cash and cash equivalents BeLRESEY 25 - 884,448 - 884448
274,382 1,600,578 - 1,874,960
|
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES TRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
RBEARIIRNSREE
2020 2019
—F=F —
Group Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
TEE BsE AR%T T AREETIT
Trade payables B 5 EARIE 26 508,978 366,636
Bills payable ER IR 27 1,110,814 809,050
Financial liabilities included in accruals and 5T AJETE F K H A
other payables ERRIENeREE 28 1,925,341 1,180,407
Due to related companies BN EE R R FA 24 12,353 7,543
Loans from a non-controlling interest IR R E R 30 24,870 48670
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188877 R E M f&5X 37 9,347,719 6,513,256
Bonds payable ERES 33 489,892 888,697
Lease liabilities HEAE 72,541 170,400
13,492,508 9,984,659
]
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL ASSETS

40. EDFEIRHNEEITE (E)

IFRS 9 measurement category

R & X RS 9 SR AT B3R R

2020
—B-FF

Fair value

through profit or

loss
Amortised cost  RAFEFTA Total
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
/N B EE AR®TR ARBTT ARETT
Equity investments IR E 19 - 16,092 16,092
Due from subsidiaries FEN P R RIFRIA 24 139,398 - 139,398
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREZED 25 18,976 - 18,976
158,374 16,092 174,466

|
IFRS 9 measurement category
BIBR & 5T 2RI 39 5% 5T 248 R
2019
—E-NF

Fair value through

profit or loss
Amortised cost A F(ERTA Total
3 I B st
Company Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N/NC] Bt ARBFIT ARETFT AREBFT
Equity investments IR & 19 - 20,903 20,903

Due from a subsidiary R —RHTB A

IR 24 7,600 - 7,600
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 25 16,086 - 16,086
23,686 20,903 44,589
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. BROFEIRNEMTE (F)
(CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ERERE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

REBHEREIRNSHEE
2020 2019
—E-2F —T-hEF
Company Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
PN Bt aE ARBTR AREF T
Financial liabilities included in accrualsand ~ &F AJERT & B R EHAD
other payables ENFIENTSREE 28 16,462 17,427
Due to a subsidiary ER—RHB A RIFIE 24 16,850 7,268
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5188817 & EAb &K 31 137,450 181,381
170,762 206,076
T
41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 4. BEERBENAFE
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHIES DR EER
The Group categorises fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy ~ AEBRABAFEERE AT EFEHTT
that is dependent on the valuation inputs used as follows: DR ZERBURN AT AR E R
A
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical ~ $F—# - ANEBEFEHTAESBH
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the HREEXBBERNERTS
measurement date, HRE CREETHE) -
Level2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 FIR - FAFABPEREUINNE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or ENBEZBARE  FTE
indirectly, and EoEEHE - &k
Level3 -  Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. F=H - BEHEBENHTAEBERBHA
R -
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41.
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period:

Quoted prices in

41.

BAFEFENEERER

TREIIRHEHRIZAFER

BENBEDN

Group
REH
2020
S

Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RAUTERRBEHAN AV ERE

EEREBNDFE(E)

B

pull}

active markets Significant
foridentical observable inputs Significant
instruments other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HEIERER WEUNEE (Level 3)
TIENRE FBERAAZRE EEFUHEH Total
(E—#%) (B=R) ABE(E=R) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TT
Assets measured at fairvalue AT EFENEE
Financial assets: PHEE -
Equity investments et & 16,092 - 6,708 22,800
Bills receivable TEWEE - 539,360 - 539,360
Financial assets as at 31 N-E-EE+=-A8
December 2020 =Et+t—HNEMEE 16,092 539,360 6,708 562,160

Quoted prices in
active markets

Group

A
2019

—ZT—NEF

Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RANTERNRERROAFEAE

Significant

foridentical  observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HERIERNER HREUAINER (Level 3)
M350 HRIE EJER@%Z\%{E BETAEEE Total
(B—%) (FZ;) AEEGE=4) #BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ANREFIT AREFT AREFIT
Assets measured at fairvalue RN EFENEE
Financial assets: EHEE -
Equity investments et & 20,903 - 6,708 27,611
Bills receivable FEWEE - 245412 - 245412
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 4RI T A - 1,358 - 1,358
Financial assets as at 31 RZE—-hAF+=A
December 2019 Et—HWERMEE 20,903 246,770 6,708 274,381

MELED T -TEFER
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B RRIIEE  For the financiar year ended 31 December 2020 B = FE = FF+ = =+—HIFFZE

41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Quoted prices in
active markets

41. BEERBENLFE(E)

BAFEFENEERERE (A)

Company
AT
2020

—g-%%

—E=
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using

RAUTERRBEHMAN AP EE

Significant

foridentical observable inputs Significant
instruments other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HEITERER WEUNEE (Level 3)
MENRE TREHARE EETTHEH Total
(B—%) (B=8&) ABB(E=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBTT
Assets measured at fairvalue I AFEIENEE
Financial assets: 2HEE
Equity investments fRiERE 16,092 - - 16,092
Financial assets as at 31 R-Z2-ZH+=A
December 2020 Et+t—HHNERMEE 16,092 - - 16,092
|
Company
PN/
2019
—ZT-NF
Fair value measurements at the end of the reporting period using
KANTERNRERRNATETE
Quoted prices in
active markets Significant
foridentical  observable inputs Significant
instruments  other than quoted un-observable
(Level 1) prices (Level 2) inputs
HRTANERE WEUINEE (Level 3)
TISHMRE FBERRARE ZETEEHR Total
(B—#%) (B ABE(E=R) wEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
Assets measured at fairvalue R AFETENEE
Financial assets: PHEE -
Equity investments RS & 20,903 - - 20,903
Financial assets as at 31 R-ZE-h&E+=A
December 2019 =t+—HWERMEE 20903 - - 20,903

204
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41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following is a description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in the fair value measurement for assets and liabilities that are categorised
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy:

BILLS RECEIVABLE

The fair value of bills receivable is estimated by discounting expected future
cash flows at market incremental lending rate at the end of the reporting
period.

DERIVATIVE

Foreign currency swap and future are valued using a valuation technique
with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation
techniques include forward pricing and swap model, using present value
calculation. The model incorporates various inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
forward rate curve.

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

() INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Unquoted equity investment

The fair value of the unquoted equity investment designated at fair
value through profit or loss has been estimated using a market-based
valuation technique based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation ("EV/EBITDA") multiple, price to earnings ("P/E") multiple and
price to net book value ("P/B") multiple, for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of
the comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is
then discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discount for lack of marketability is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unquoted equity investment to
measure the fair value.

41. BEERBENLFE(E)

EZRATETE
MTE“$@J§%ﬁ%ﬁ@&mﬂ%A

OB - RED R A FERBRSE
%&B’Uﬁé&ﬁfﬁ :

FEW R
EW?WW“i@LLFﬁiﬁiuﬁ%

HEERMEFTRBHRIA S REK A
ate

PTATE

SMNEEREIR R ER AR NS A BRHA
BB A ERMETHE - XERNMGE
o &35 68 A IRE & B 00 18 HE (B S 4= 1
EE - ZEARAT R ARE  BEX

SHFOEREE HNERE - AWES

REMER S -

E=RAVEHE

0 E=RATENEFHEAEET
TR A B AR

S ETRIERA

R RA P A BRI LR E

) A TR R ST BB D (KL

S ENBREAMIGHES AG o HE
BREEENITE  RE - BRRERE
FEA LB ARAR (A7)« WS LH7
MATLLE A RGTEEE NEREE - flm
EEBEHERFE - B8 - FTEREHEA
BF(EVERITDAD b E - MAEX( WA
KD RMEREE(MRE]) - ZESIETT
BRARNCEBEKRUTENRFIFE -

[ERE S EHE AT LB AR ZHRIERE
&&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ EEEREZENEFENAA
B R IER T AR o B ] s S AT
REARIE LT IRER E N EEAFIEE
LARTERFE -

EOED —F - TFEH
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41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

0) INFORMATION ABOUT SIGNIFICANT UNOBSERVABLE INPUTS USED
IN LEVEL 3 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unquoted equity investment (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2020:

41. BEERBENLFE(E)

E=ZRAHEE (E)

)  F=ZRRXFEAERAEREEDT
ARG ASIENERERN (B)

FEEMRHERE ()
TR ZZE-_TF+ - A=1t—HzR

Iﬁﬁ@ﬁ’]iﬁ?‘f&ﬁ;ﬁm]\%ﬂﬁﬁ%x
ENHREDT

Significant

Valuation unobservable input
technique EARRAEHE Range  Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fh{E i WARE gE ATEHBARBNSRE
Unquoted equity investment at  Valuation multiples  Average P/B multiple 2020:1.2 5% (2019: 5%) increase in multiple
fair value through profit or loss) HERE of peers (2019:1.25)  would result in increase in fair value by
. N ol . R1THY _7_7¢ 12 RMB306,000 (2019: RMB306,000)

RATE A BSPR L RUELERS e 306 :

Hﬁ@é&?é i AR 2 —VE 1 1.25) EHUEIN 5% (ZF—NEF : 5%) -

HE A A hn A RS 306,000 7T
(ZZ—NF : AR®306,0007T)

Discount for lack of
marketability

2020: 20% 5% (2019: 5%) increase in discount
(2019:20%)  would result in decrease in fair value by

R EEMEREEIR T TF 0% RMB76, ooo (2019 RMB76,000)

—E 1 20%) BRIRIEIE N S5% (=T —NAF : 5%) ¢

HE A AR D )\E#ﬁ%m,oooﬁ
(ZZE—NF : AR¥760007T)

(1) VALUATION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

It is the Group's policy to engage external valuation expert to perform
valuation of unquoted equity securities. The management is responsible
for selecting and engaging valuation experts that possess the relevant
credentials and knowledge on the subject of valuation, valuation
methodologies, and IFRS 13 fair value measurement guidance.

Management reviews the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted, and the reliability of the inputs used in the

valuations.

There has been no transfer from Level 1 and Level 2 to Level 3 for the
financial years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019
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41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE AND WHOSE CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE REASONABLE
APPROXIMATION OF FAIR VALUE

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged time deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, trade and bills
payables, loans from a non-controlling interest and financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.
The fair value of the non-current portion of accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for non-current accruals and other payables,
loans from a non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bonds payable as at 31 December 2020 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities approximate their fair values as its
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") used to measure lease liabilities is close
to market rate of interests for similar arrangement with financial institutions.

41. BEERBENLFE(E)

WHRAFEFTEEHRAESE b
ERAFENEMTIANAFE

RERENL BekReFEY 2K
RERFH - EHRUGKERERERE
e REMBYKKRIE - B TENBEER
AR - EPRNFEARENRE - JFHE
iR E R - AT AR BB R EMENRK
AZeMBEZAFERER@ERS
TERHFMRREREER o

AEBENDERERMIIAVHRIEERSE -
BEETFESMIAZATENBERK
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41. FAIRVALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

LIABILITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

The Group had no financial liability measured at fair value as at 31
December 2020 and 31 December 2019

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management
of these risks, which are executed by the chief financial officer and finance
manager.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure
to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.

(A)  CREDITRISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from related
companies, bills receivables and deposits and other receivables, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
the majority of customers who wish to trade are required to pay cash on
delivery or in advance before collecting any goods. A minority of customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when
the counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 90 days when
they fall due, which are derived based on the Group's historical information.

The Group considers “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with
at least one major rating agency for those investments with credit rating.
To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information which includes the following indicators:

- Internal credit rating

- External credit rating

- Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

- Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the borrower

- Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the same borrower

- Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers
in the group and changes in the operating results of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is
presumed if a debtor is more than 90 days past due in making contractual
payment.

The Group determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

- There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower

- A breach of contract, such as default or past due event

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation

- There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulty
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

The Group categorises a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments more than 360 days past due.
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where loans and receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group's debt instrument at fair value through profit or loss comprised
solely of bills receivables that are graded in the top investment category by
A and, therefore, are considered at low credit risk.

The Group provides for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade
and other receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
determined based on the Group's historical observed default rates analysed
in accordance to days past due by grouping of customers based on
customer type. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information such as GDP growth and central bank base rates.

The information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade and

other receivables using provision matrix and the loss allowance movement
of trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 23.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(A)  CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)
EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION PROFILE

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by monitoring on an on-
going basis the aged analysis of its trade receivables. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. At 31 December 2020, the
Group's trade receivables of RMB42,184,000 (2019: RMB672,000) were due
from its 10 largest customers.

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group's exposure to
liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit
facilities.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42, BiBEREEEEZERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (B) REELREMRE(E)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the ~ BEBEEXMHEIFNRNR - AEESHAE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as ~ RIEREFHROFEABROT

follows:
Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERSARERER 1238 3E5E SENE st
Group RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
by ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
31 December 2020 —E-EE+-B=1-A

Trade payables BHEMNTE 508,978 - - - 508,978
Bils payable ENZE 1,110,814 - - - 1,110,814

Financial iabiltes included inaccrualsand — &T AEATE B REMEFIRR
other payables SHER 1,847,288 89,117 = = 1,936,405
Due to elated companes EREEAAE 12353 - - - 12353
Loans from anon-controlling interest SHERERER 24810 - - - 24810
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T E ST REAET: 4,515,565 2,717,454 2,725,803 7493 10231315
Bonds payable e 30,560 28,748 302713 = 562,021
Lease [ibilies HERE 48,09 280 8851 9427 89214
8,098,522 3,038,161 3,037,367 301,920 14,475,970

|
31 December 2019 ZE-NETZA=TH

Trade payables BHEAZR 366636 - - - 366636
Bils payable ERZE 809050 - - - 809050

Finandialliabiltes included in accrualsand 3T AR B RE M (2R
other payables RAR 1084254 %307 - - 1,183561
Due to elated companes EREELAE 7543 - - - 7543
Loans from a non-controling interest FHERER AT 171 B0 - - 49841
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T 85T RE MR 2829341 2615051 973541 43986 6461919
Bonds payable ERfES 560360 50720 436760 - 1047840
Lease liabilies HERE 110834 47079 82% 18686 184895

5794189 2835827 1418597 62672 10,111,285
|
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as
follows:

42. BiBEAEEEEZERBEE (#)

(B) RBETEMR(E)

BEBEAQMFERRMNR ARAFSREE
RREHROZ BRI T

Within 1 year or on
demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
1ERZRERRE 1235 3B5% SEML a5t
Company RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
31 December 2020 ZECEETCAZT-R
Financial iabiftes included inaccualsand 5T AERTE B REM TR
other payables SHERE 16462 - = 16462
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T S8R REMER 138,054 - = 138,054
154,516 - - 154,516
|
31 December 2019 “ENETCA=TR
Financial iabifties included inaccualsand 5T AERTE B REMEFFIER
other payabes HAR 17608 - - 17608
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 3T 85T RE MR 184810 - - 184810
202418 - - 202418

(C) INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily from its loans and borrowings subject to a floating
interest rate.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

(C) FIEmRpx

NERBRAARESRTANAFEIR
KR RERTIZHEEE M LR LB
[\ o 7 5= [ BT I 4 ) T 5 A R B B R B
TERBEFBNERERRMER -

2R B SR E DA
ERTANRFHEGRENN
AEBIERESEREERAGBEBE

WIRDFENGE - Bt FIEN R A
HYB B T BB -

EOED —F - TFEH

213



Notes to Financial Statements
BIERRMEE  ror the financiar year ended 31 December 2020 B = FE = FF+ = =+—HIFFZE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42, BiBEREEEEZERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(©)  INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED) O F=Ek(E)
CASH FLOW SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS FRETERRESRESHE DN

For variable rate financial assets and liabilities, the Group has determined WEEEMEENEBENS  AEBEE
the carrying amounts of cash and short-term deposits based on their ~ EHR & REPFFIIZERSBFENER
notional amounts, which reasonably approximate to their fair values ~ EEEXFESEBMAE - AERE ST
because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently. ~ AE FEBREHSKEENIE - Rt 2
For interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a change in interest rate at ~ $R1T R EAMERM S - F XN PR A ED
the reporting date would (decrease)/increase profit or loss by the amounts ~ ZENIE N X RAIE 5 OB L) /18 IN1E
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular o DWW BRERMBEEMAIEREE - £

foreign currency rates, remain constant. HEINEERRIFIE -

2020 2019

Increase in basis —ECoEE —T—NF

Group points RMB’000 RMB'000

rEE E AR¥ T ARETFT
Interest expense F B

RMB AR 10 (196) (177)

usb EH 10 (1) Q)
Interest income FEMA

RMB AR 10 13 10
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(D)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank

EI\ZI-JBIJ_‘,FQMEE E E&E&% (IIE)

SN JeR\ B

AEBEFFNINETENRE LR EE

borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for working capital MAERBITRERIEEEERRE - N
purposes. At the end of the reporting period, these foreign currency net &K  REUIINELENFEE (8
assets/(liabilities) (mainly in SGD, USD, HKD and EUR) are as follows: B)(EEEFNFE T Ex BT KIE
TOIT
2020 2019
e —E-NEF
Group RMB’000 RMB'000
EM ARBT AREEFIT
SGD FnE T 173 84
usD e (96,739) (153,647)
HKD BT 1,034 2,158
EUR BT 321 -
(95,211) (151,405)
]

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in the EUR, SGD, USD, and HKD exchange rates (against RMB), with
all other variables held constant, on the Group’s profit, net of tax and equity.

TRETEMBEEMAIZERZRE T E
T AEEGEN (S INERTIA RS
T FINBOT - ERERABT(ELARE)H
[E R A IR R BEE B EURE -

$)HE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

Group RMB’000 RMB'000

rEH ARETR ARETFT
EUR - strengthened 5% (2019:Nil) BT ~ER 5% (ZE—NF - &) 16

— weakened 5% (2019: Nil) - 88555% (ZT—NF - &) (16) -

SGD - strengthened 5% (2019:5%) AN IT - 8858 5% (ZF—NF : 5%) 9 4

— weakened 5% (2019: 5%) - 88555% (ZF—NF : 5%) 9) )

USD - strengthened 2% (2019:2%) 37T - 8858 20 (ZT—NF 1 2%) (1,935) (3,073)

— weakened 2% (2019: 2%) ~ 825520 (ZE—LF : 2%) 1,935 3,073

HKD - strengthened 1% (2019:1%) 7T - #3819 (ZF—NF 1 1%) 10 22

— weakened 1% (2019: 1%) —E55 1% (—F—NF  1%) (10) (22)

T
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

As disclosed in Note 36, subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are required
by the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to
and maintain a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is
subject to approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed
capital requirement has been complied with by these subsidiaries for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided
by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, short-term and long-term bonds payable, trade and bills
payables, amounts due to related companies, accruals and other payables
and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent less the
statutory reserve fund. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio below
909%.
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43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

43. EXEHE (&)

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETIT

Trade payables 2 5 ENFIR 508,978 366,636
Bills payable iANES 1,110,814 809,050
Contract liabilities aRAaE 818,149 582,181
Accruals and other payables FE&HE A R E MR I8 1,936,405 1,198,812
Due to related companies JEREE R RIFIR 12,353 7,543
Loans from a non-controlling interest FEIE AR MR B K 24,870 48,670
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sHERTT R EMER 9,347,719 6,513,256
Bonds payable FEHES 489,892 888,697
Lease liabilities HERE 72,541 170,400
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BERReEEY (682,041) (884,448)
Pledged time deposits [REEwGaE=IVEEN (707,435) (499,346)

Net debt BEFE 12,932,245 9,201,451
Equity attributable to owners of the parent QRS AL 4,530,433 4,235,241
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OEERES (200,307) (145,518)
Adjusted capital EHRBER 4,330,126 4,089,723
Capital and net debt BEARKBESHE 17,262,371 13,291,174
Gearing ratio BRBELE 74.92% 69.23%
T
HELED —T_THFR
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44. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

4. AMIBRARNKEE

Investments in subsidiaries

RHERRNRE

Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Company
/N
2020 2019
—F-FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETTT
1,672,275 1,620,755
|

AATIMBRAHFEWOT

Place ofregistration and

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser
CO, LTD.

("Henan XLX") *#

AR LB M B
TEEE KRG,
BRATE]
AR ])

business

AL AR it B

PRC/Mainland China
BB At

Nominal value of
registered capital

AfEAEE

RMB1,895,480,000
ARE
1,895,480,000 7T

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company

DTS
REFD L

Direct

HE
78.37%

Principal activities

FEEH

Indirect

DS

- Manufacture and trading
of urea, compound
fertiliser, methanol,
dimethyl ether and
liquid ammonia

HENHERE -
BERE - FEE -
B RRAER

Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB2,100,000,000 - 7837%  Investment holding,
Chemical CO, LTD. FE B A ARHEE manufacture and
("Xinjiang XLX") @*# 2,100,000,000 7T trading of urea and

os B eERIE T compound fertiliser,
BRAT] e methanol and
([FrsE0EN]) melamine

REER  £ER
HERE A
e i R =&
i

Akesu Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 78.37%  Manufacture and trading
Compound Fertiliser FRE, R B A AR of compound fertiliser
CO, LTD. 200,000,000 7T BERHEEAE
("Akesu XLX") @

F R L e A E
BRAA
(TPTse gL ) et

Manas Tianli Coal CO,, PRC/Mainland China RMB114,000,000 - 78.37%  Coal mining and sales of
LTD. (‘Tianli")y @ * B, B A AR coal

IEHT RS 114,000,000 7T BERFR MR RS
BEREELF]

([RF]]) e
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44, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place ofregistration and

business

B AR it B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMEAEE

44. RKBERANRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN EFE(L

BEES
Direct Indirect

B Dk

Principal activities

FTBREY

Manas Tianxin Coal CO,, PRC/Mainland China RMB580,000,000 - 7837%  Coal mining and sales of
LTD. (‘Tianxin") @ * REHREA AR coal
EHTALIPNTY S 580,000,000 7T BRI MR R E
BREFRAF
(TR 1) et
Xinlianxin (Jilin) Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMBS5,000,000 - 7837%  Trading of urea and
CO, LTD. (“Jilin XLX") @ # FREL R E A AR compound fertiliser
DL (B LA 5,000,000 7C HERERESE
BRAA
(FEMDEL ) e
Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB2,700,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and
Fertiliser CO, LTD. HE B A AR trading of urea and
(“Jivjiang XLX") @ *# 2,700,000,000 7T compound fertiliser,
JUTOEMERE methanol, dimethy!
BRAR] ether and liquid
(TUT R ) et ammonia
SUENHERE - &
& Bfg - —F
Bk o R BE R
Henan Nongxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB37,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and trading
CO, LTD. ("Nongxin”) @ FREL, R B i AR of compound fertiliser
AEROEEBRAF 37,000,000 7T and related products
(T D)er FUENMHERAER
MEREZE
Xinxiang Country PRC/Mainland China RMB97,165,400 - 7837%  Selling and distributing
Shoudian CO, LTD. R B AR electricity
(“Shoudian”) @ * 97,165,400 7T HERDIHE
FBFENES
BRAR([EE])er
Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7837%  Testing equipments
Testing CO, LTD. FE HREA AR ORI
("Testing”) @ * 1,000,000 7T
A O DM E AR R
BRAR ([l ]) e
Henan Hydrogenpower PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 100.00% - Manufacture and trading
Energy CO, LTD. B B A AR of furfuryl alcohol
(Hydrogenpower) * # 60,000,000 7T HliE R S E RS
AR NEEIRE R

~A)([EHeER]) >

RELED T -TEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RRIIEE  For the financiar year ended 31 December 2020 B = FE = FF+ = =+—HIFFZE

44, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place ofregistration and

business

B AR it B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMEAEE

44, HRHBLATIMNKRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN EFE(L
BEES

Direct Indirect

B Dk

Principal activities

FTBREY

Henan Xinlianxin Blue PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and trading
Environmental B, B A AR of vehicles urea
Protection Technology 50,000,000 7T solution
CO, LTD. SUERHEER
("Henan Blue") @ * FREAR

A EOE D B IR IR
R BR AT
(IELEE])er

Henan Xinlianxin Tailan PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 3997%  Manufacture and trading
Environmental FREY B A AR of vehicles urea
Protection Technology 10,000,000 7T solution
O, LTD. HEREAREER
("Henan Tailan") @ *

A LEOREIRIR
AR AR
(DAmZREE]) e

Henan Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 4498%  Manufacture and trading
Technology CO, LTD. BB At PN of humic acid
(‘Henan Black) @ * 20,000,000 7T S5 M HE RIER

R B A RE R
BRAA
(DAmEe])er

Xinjiang Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB48,800,000 - 4498%  Investment holding
Technology CO, LTD. FE B A ANRHEE TEZR
("Xinjiang Black") @ * 48,800,000 7T

i8R E A RRRHRAR D
ARAA
([FhEEE]) et

Henan Shenleng Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 42.25%  Manufacture and trading
CO, LTD. ("Shenleng FREL R E A AR of gas
Energy’) @ 100,000,000 7T BUE MIHEAR

/TI:L_J'L,\L/L,\M( BEIR
RO BR LD
(M&Qazﬁj et

Xinjiang Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 42.25%  Manufacture and trading
CO, LTD. (“Xinjiang BB A AR of gas
Shenleng’) @ 20,000,000 7T BUE R IHERRE

DR RS
BRAF]

(FFre@xz e

Henan Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 4225%  Trading of gas
CO, LTD. ("Henan AR% HEMR
Shenleng”) @ * 1,000,000 7T

ABRLTR
ERAT
(AmRA e
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44, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place ofregistration and

business

B AR it B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMEAEE

44, HRHBLATIMNKRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN EFE(L
BEES

Direct Indirect

B Dk

Principal activities

FTBREY

Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and trading
Blue Environmental R R AR of vehicles urea
Protection Technology 20,000,000 7T solution
CO, LTD. (iujiang BUERIHEBARE
Blue”) AR
JULELEERRE
RARAT
(ThiItgEel)er
Henan Heli Energy CO, PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 51.25% - Manufacture and trading
LTD. ("Heli Energy”) * # FRE B A AR of furaldehyde
A EAR SR IRA D 78,000,000 7T HENIHENRRE
BRAF]
(TRAgEIR1) **
Xinxiang Huineng Yuyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 51.25% - Selling and distributing
Power Generation BB At NG electricity
CO, LTD. ("Huineng 30,000,000 7T HERDIEE
Yuyuan”) * #
APTHERE FREE
BRAF]
([FERERIR]) *
Jiangxi Shenleng Gas PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 4225%  Manufacture and trading
CO, LTD. (“Jiangxi B, B A AR of gas
Shenleng”) @ # 10,000,000 7T BUE R IHERE
IR REBARIR
(hImx< et
Jiujiang Pengcheng PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 7837%  Selling and distributing
Power CO, LTD. FE B A NG electricity
("Jiujiang Power”) @ ¥ 35,000,000 7T SHE MO IHE
NIZHENBRAF
(MHrEhDer
Xinxiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 7837%  Agricultural production
Agricultural B HRE A AR BELXE
Development CO, LTD. 1,000,000 7T
("Xinxiang
Agriculture”) @*
Urumqi Black Ecological PRC/Mainland China RMB35,000,000 - 4498%  Manufacture and trading
Technology CO, LTD. FE HREA AR of humic acid
(“Urumaqi Black”) @ * 35,000,000 7T SUE K HE BIER

SEAERBERRE
BRAT
([HEBRAREERE])

RELED T -TEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RRIIEE  For the financiar year ended 31 December 2020 B = FE = FF+ = =+—HIFFZE

44, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place ofregistration and

business

B AR it B

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMEAEE

44, HRHBLATIMNKRE (&)

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN EFE(L
BEES

Direct Indirect

Principal activities

FTBREY

B Dk

Henan Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7837%  International business
International Business R R AEE and trading
and Trade CO, LTD. 10,000,000 7T RREEMES
("Guojimaoyi”) @ *#

TR OB O B PR P S AT
B AR AR
(TERE S ) e

Shanghai Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7837%  Technological
Technique CO, LTD. REL B PN development
("Shanghai Yibo") @ * 200,000,000 7T KghE

FEEBEKBERER
AR BBl et

Jiujiang Yibo Water PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 7837%  Technological
Technique CO, LTD. FRE,FR B A AR development
("Jiujiang Yibo") @ * 200,000,000 7T g

TULEEKBEIR B R
ARN([JIEE ) et

Henan Xinxing Chemical PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 60.61% - Manufacture and
CO, LTD. ("Xinxing B R E A AR trading of chemical
Chemical”) ** 50,000,000 7T production

ArEE LR THER SLENHEL R M
RE([LEET])*

Harvest international HK/Hongkong HKD5,000,000 - 7837%  International business
Business Limited B8/ BB 5,000,000 87T and trading
("Harvest”) * ¥ BEBENE S

s I B B PR P 75 A5 R
AE ([ MERTRR]) >

Henan Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 7837%  Manufacture and
Intelligent Equipment FRE B At AR trading of intelligent
Technology CO, 100,000,000 7T equipment
LTD. ("Intelligent s NI E SRR
Equipment”) @ #

(Note a)

A EOEOS BE R
L] EYNCIRST 2
et (Mta)

Xinxiang Ruicheng PRC/Mainland China RMB21,000,000 51.00% - Manufacture and
Technology CO, LTD. B R E A AERHEE trading of medical
("Xinxiang Ruicheng”) *# 21,000,000 7© intermediate

(Note d)

b EH AR B BR
~al ([#F 4 mas ) <+
(Mf7Ed)

RUE R HE BB ]

A=
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44,

Place ofregistration and
business

B AR it B

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMEAEE

44,

Percentage of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
RN EFE(L
BEES

Direct

B

Indirect

LIEES

REE AR RE (&)

Principal activities

FTBREY

Xinxiang Ruinuo PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 26.01% - Manufacture and
Pharmaceutical R B AEE trading of medical
CO, LTD. ("Xinxiang 60,000,000 7T intermediate
Ruinuo”) * * (Note d) B % 8K B8 B ]

I SEE AR AE e
(M 3maa 1)

(BtzEd)

Xinjiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 3997%  Manufacture and trading
Tailan Environmental BB A AR of vehicles urea
Protection Technology 6,000,000 7T solution
CO, LTD. ("*Xinjiang BUERIHEBARE
Tailan”) @ * (Note b) B

e B LD RERRE
BRERAE (38
RE e (HzEb)

Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 7837%  Agricultural
Agricultural Science BB A AR development
and Technology 10,000,000 7T REER
CO, LTD. (“Jiujiang
Agricultural”) @ *

(Note )
JUTOEDRERHR
BRAT( T
BE et (fifaEo)

Hangzhou Xinnuo PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 7837%  Trading of gas
Chemical Co. Ltd. FRE B At AR SHERE
("Hangzhou Xinnuo”) @ * 5,000,000 7T

(Note a)
(Mf7xa)

*

@

The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

These subsidiaries are established in the PRC and registered under PRC law.

Not audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore or another member firm of the Ernst

& Young global network

* %M A B RE P BDEREMA AN

EEERE -

o Z LB A AR R B AR S I AR AE AR A
s o

# I IEFR Ernst & Young LLP T I s &2 ok &5

HIEF ST = b T

PrEgtz -

REOED

—EoTEFy 223
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Notes to Financial Statements
MEBRRMTE  rorhe financial year ended 31 December 2020 B = E = FF+=H=+—HIFFE

44,

Notes:

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

On 06 May 2020, and 16 December 2020, Henan XLX established two new
subsidiaries named Henan Xinlianxin Intelligent Equipment Technology
Co. Ltd., and Hangzhou Xinnuo Chemical Co. Ltd. with registered capital of
RMB100,000,000 and RMBS5,000,000 respectively. The main business of these
subsidiaries are manufacturing and trading of intelligent equipment and trading

of gas respectively.

On 25 August 2020, Henan Xinlianxin Tailan Environmental Protection Technology
established a new subsidiary named Xinjiang Xinlianxin Tailan Environmental
Protection Technology CO., LTD. with a registered capital of RMB6,000,000. The
main business of the subsidiary is manufacturing and trading of vehicles urea

solution.

On 15 October 2020, Jiujiang XLX established a new subsidiary named Jiujiang
Xinlianxin Agricultural Science and Technology CO., LTD. with a registered
capital of RMB10,000,000. The main business of the subsidiary is agricultural

development

Xinxiang Ruicheng Technology CO., LTD. and Xinxiang Ruinuo Pharmaceutical
CO., LTD. were purchased from third parties. Details please refer to Note 37
Business combinations.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report

B

(@)

RE B AR RE (&)

R-ZE-_TFERFANAR-_ZE-_TF+—
B+7XB  WELELFHKIARMER
A BRATEMELEEEEREER

A7) &z Hangzhou Xinnuo Chemical Co. Ltd. -
i%ﬁ$ﬁ%ﬁAE%(mmmmﬁ&A

R#50000007C ° ZEMBRARIMESZE
50 R AR MIHE SRR A R E R

Ko

R-Z-_ZFNA=+AB A LEL
RERRBMBHRL—RMBAR - &1
AHELBEOCRERREEERAA =
& A A AR 6,0000007T ° ZHB A A
WEBEBARENHEBRARZAR °

RZZ-ZFE+A+RBE - UTOELH
R —RMBRAR > &AL LEDL

BERBARQAR aMELAAARE
10,000,000 7 ° ZMBRARNESEK BE
IR o

AR IR AR AR B PR R ) K3 483 v 4%
(BRATGBEE=T - FIEH2HM
37 EBAH



45. COVID-19 OUTBREAK

Since the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 ("“COVID-19") in January
2020, the prevention and control of the COVID-19 has been going on
throughout China.

The COVID-19 situation has certain temporary impacts on the Group’s
production and operation. The degree of the impact depends on the levels
of the epidemic preventive measures, the duration of the epidemic and the
implementation of regulatory policies. The Company and its subsidiaries
have implemented strict measures in epidemic prevention.

The Group will keep continuous attention on the COVID-19 situation, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 19 March 2020.

45. HEPREE

BR-_ZF-_ZTF-ANH09EBRKES
([COVID-19]) IBBELAZK » AR K —H7E
FEBH A HI COVID-19 °

COVID-19 By & i AN S (B A9 AR EE A& 2
EXEATERUHRZE - ZEREEIURNE
BREEER RIEFENEUREEBUER
REE - AR RENBARERZ @
EREUBRARFE I ©

AR E B4 E T COVID- 198k - 51 1E

HURNEETHRRAMEERENTE
WA TR & o

46. HUEMTEEHK

EEep RN T ZF=-A+LBHET
RETZEBI SRR -

EOED —F - TFEH
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IEMBEREE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

VAN 051 AN 5% [ 70 48 25 T 1 B R 4F /2 VAR
AREMNEERAEHME  DHREZAST
B RBERIERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
sl —T-hF T \& —T—+F TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARETT ARETIT ARETT ARETT
Results E
Revenue WA 10,444,722 8928255 9,194,676 7,561,547 5,710,698
Cost of sales HEMAR (8,230,163) (6,987,218) (6,955,245) (5.974,597) (4,687,090)
Gross profit EF 2,214,559 1,941,037 2,239,431 1,586,950 1,023,608
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 198,730 160,349 112,716 87,594 69,985
Selling and distribution HE kD HFAX
expenses (620,599) (515,827) (508,048) (482,909) (435,334)
General and administrative —MRITHFA
expenses (624,260) (661,442) (496,623) (415,467) (318612)
Other expenses HAbFZ (129,755) (16,712) (223,416) (5,600) (33,192)
Impairment losses on financial & @& &=
assets BIEBE (5,640) (10,007) (22,241) - -
Share of (losses)/profits of FE(RESE A T]
associates (B18), w7 (582) 2,298 657 - -
Finance costs BTSN (401,379) (374,076) (325,329) (285,851) (266,366)
Profit before tax BRBL AT R 631,074 525,620 777,147 484,717 40,089
Income tax expense FriSfiF s (106,926) (111,557) (121,833) (61,185) (11,054)
Profit for the year AEEER 524,148 414,063 655,314 423532 29,035
T
Attributable to: LA AT
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZSPN 347,662 316,495 624,932 397,778 30,120
Non-controlling interests R 176,486 97,568 30,382 25,754 (1,085)
524,148 414063 655,314 423532 29,035
T
Assets, liabilitiesand non- &&E - 8ER
controlling interests IR RS
Total assets BEE 20,955,092 16,490,865 13,655,296 11,905,762 10,919,995
Total liabilities MmE G (14,530,718)  (10,769,185) (8,742,497) (8,255,808) (7,637,034)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR i o (1,893,941) (1,486,439) (990,985) (283,279) (247,174)
4,530,433 4,235,241 3921814 3,366,675 3,035,787
T
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Glossary
ARR

In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

"AC" or "Audit Committee”

AGM”

“Board”

“Companies Act”

“Company”or“China XLX"

or "XLX"

“Constitution”

“Director(s)”

EGM”

“FY2019"

“FY2020"

“Group”

"Henan XLX"

"HKD"

“Listing Rules”

Audit Committee of the Company

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Board of Directors

The Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.

Constitution of the Company
Director(s) of the Company

Extraordinary General Meeting of the
Company

The financial year ended 31 December 2019

The financial year ended 31 December 2020

The Company and its subsidiaries altogether

Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co,, Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the SEHK

RARERR - BXE BRI T
1 AL TRE -

[EZREE]

[ERBFRE ]

[EFg ]

8

[RELA]

[ARRA) ] 3%
[P E L&D
s [ ]

(272 ]
=3

[BERFFRIRE ]

[ZZ—NER
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[ZZE =T
FE]

S

[AEED ]

(&7t

[ EmAR Al

¥

EE

N3 5E B 56 50

BERADE
RO E OB RE
BRAF]
RARIHER
RRARNER

7R ) HY BRCR K
ol

IERBERFEE
HE—_%—
+=—A=+
IFRETBEE

TF
—H

AR A3 A H Y
NG

AR E OB
BERAT BA
NAW AN B
yNC]

BT BAEARTE

»(éf ﬁg

B PTE S £
Al

EOED —F - TFEH
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Glossary
AR

“Model Code”

“NC”or “Nomination
Committee”

“PRC" or "China”

"RC"or"Remuneration
Committee”

“RMB"

/rS$u

“SEHK”

“SFO"

"SGX-ST"

“Shareholder(s)”

"XLX Chem”

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules

Nomination Committee of the Company

The People’s Republic of China

Remuneration Committee of the Company

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Singapore dollars

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited

Shareholder(s) of the Company

Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd.

China XLX 2020 Annual Report
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